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In this document references to ‘‘ANTS’’ are references to Abbey National Treasury Services plc;

references to ‘‘Santander UK’’ and the ‘‘Guarantor’’ are references to Santander UK plc; and

references to the ‘‘ANTS Group’’ are references to ANTS and its subsidiaries and references to the

‘‘Santander UK Group’’ and the ‘‘Group’’ are references to Santander UK and its subsidiaries which
includes A&L (as defined below). References to the ‘‘Issuer’’ and the ‘‘Issuers’’ are references to

ANTS or Santander UK plc (as issuer of the relevant Notes) or each of them as the context requires.

References to ‘‘Banco Santander’’ are references to Banco Santander, S.A. and references to the

‘‘Banco Santander Group’’ are references to Banco Santander and its subsidiaries. References to

‘‘A&L’’ are references to Alliance & Leicester plc and references to the ‘‘A&L Group’’ are references

to A&L and its subsidiaries.

The Issuers and the Guarantor (the ‘‘Responsible Persons’’) accept responsibility for the

information contained in this Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge of the Issuers and the Guarantor
(each having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this

Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such

information.

The previous paragraph should be read in conjunction with the 10th paragraph on the first page of

this Prospectus.

A&L accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Prospectus set out: (i) in the

Alliance & Leicester plc audited consolidated annual financial statements (which are incorporated by

reference into this Prospectus); (ii) in the specific sections of A&L’s Annual Report and Accounts for
the year ended 31 December, 2009 set out in paragraphs 4 and 5 on page 9 of the Prospectus (which

are incorporated by reference into this Prospectus); (iii) in the specific sections of A&L’s Annual

Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2008 set out in paragraphs 7 and 8 on page 9

of the Prospectus (which are incorporated by reference into this Prospectus); (iv) under the ‘‘Summary

of the Programme’’ under the heading ‘‘Guarantee by A&L’’ on page 17 of the Prospectus; (v) in the

‘‘Risk Factors’’ on pages 18 to 29 of the Prospectus insofar as it relates to A&L; (vi) under the

heading ‘‘Acquisitions – Alliance & Leicester plc’’ on pages 97 and 98 of the Prospectus; (vii) under

the heading ‘‘Changes to Alliance & Leicester plc: Part VII Transfer’’ on page 98 of the Prospectus;
(viii) under the heading ‘‘Directors of Santander UK’’ on page 100 of the Prospectus; (ix) in the

significant or material change statement and the litigation statement in paragraphs 6 and 7

respectively of the General Information section on page 119 of the Prospectus (insofar as it relates to

the A&L Group); and (x) under the heading ‘‘Auditors’’ in paragraph 9 of the General Information

section on page 120 of the Prospectus (insofar as it relates to the A&L Group) (together, the ‘‘A&L

Information’’). To the best of the knowledge of A&L (having taking all reasonable care to ensure that

such is the case) the A&L Information contained in this Prospectus is in accordance with the facts

and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

Subject as provided in the applicable Final Terms, the only persons authorised to use this

Prospectus in connection with an offer of Notes are the persons named in the applicable Final Terms as

the relevant Dealer or the Managers and the persons named in or identifiable following the applicable

Final Terms as the Financial Intermediaries, as the case may be.

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO ACQUIRE OR ACQUIRING ANY NOTES FROM AN

OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND SALES OF THE NOTES TO AN INVESTOR BY

AN OFFEROR WILL BE MADE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY TERMS AND OTHER

ARRANGEMENTS IN PLACE BETWEEN SUCH OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR
INCLUDING AS TO PRICE, ALLOCATIONS AND SETTLEMENT ARRANGEMENTS. THE

RELEVANT ISSUER WILL NOT BE A PARTY TO ANY SUCH ARRANGEMENTS WITH

INVESTORS (OTHER THAN THE DEALERS) IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OR

SALE OF THE NOTES AND, ACCORDINGLY, THIS PROSPECTUS AND ANY FINAL TERMS

WILL NOT CONTAIN SUCH INFORMATION AND AN INVESTOR MUST OBTAIN SUCH

INFORMATION FROM THE OFFEROR.

Any reference in this Prospectus to Base Prospectus means this Prospectus excluding all

information incorporated by reference at (25) and (26) on page 10. The Issuers and the Guarantor have
confirmed that the information incorporated by reference at (25) and (26) on page 10, has not been and

does not need to be included in the Base Prospectus to satisfy the requirements of the Prospectus

Directive or the FSMA. The Issuers and the Guarantor believe that none of the information incorporated

by reference at (25) and (26) on page 10 conflicts in any material respect with the information included

in the Base Prospectus.
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Neither the Dealers nor the Trustee have independently verified the information contained herein.

Accordingly, no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no

responsibility or liability is accepted by the Dealers or the Trustee as to the accuracy or completeness of

the information contained or incorporated in this Prospectus or any other information provided by the
Issuers or the Guarantor in connection with the Programme. No Dealer or the Trustee accepts any

liability in relation to the information contained or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus or any

other information provided by the Issuers or the Guarantor in connection with the Programme.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuers or the Guarantor to give any information or to

make any representation not contained in or not consistent with this Prospectus or any other information

supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or

representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of

the Dealers or the Trustee.

Neither this Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or

any Notes (i) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (ii) should be

considered as a recommendation by the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the Dealers or the Trustee that

any recipient of this Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or

any Notes should purchase any Notes. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make

its own independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the

creditworthiness, of the relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor. Neither this Prospectus nor any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of any Notes constitutes an offer or

invitation by or on behalf of the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the Dealers or the Trustee to any person

to subscribe for or to purchase any Notes.

Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Notes shall in any

circumstances imply that the information contained herein concerning the Issuers and/or the Guarantor is

correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection

with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document

containing the same. The Dealers and the Trustee expressly do not undertake to review the financial

condition or affairs of the Issuers or the Guarantor during the life of the Programme or to advise any

investor in the Notes of any information coming to their attention. Investors should review, inter alia, the

most recently published documents incorporated by reference in this Prospectus when deciding whether or
not to purchase any Notes.

The Notes in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or

delivered within the United States or its possessions or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons,

except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the
meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and the U.S. Treasury regulations

promulgated thereunder.

To ensure compliance with Treasury Department Circular 230, Noteholders are hereby notified
that: (a) any discussion of federal tax issues in this document is not intended or written to be relied

upon, and cannot be relied upon, by Noteholders for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be

imposed on Noteholders under the Internal Revenue Code; (b) such discussion is included herein by the

Issuers in connection with the promotion or marketing (within the meaning of Circular 230) by the

Issuers of the transactions and matters addressed herein; and (c) Noteholders should seek advice based

on their particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

Notwithstanding anything in this Prospectus to the contrary, each prospective investor (and each

employee, representative or other agent of the prospective investor) may disclose to any and all persons,

without limitation of any kind, the U.S. tax treatment and U.S. tax structure of any offering and all

materials of any kind (including opinions or other tax analyses) that are provided to the prospective

investor relating to such U.S. tax treatment and U.S. tax structure, other than any information for

which nondisclosure is reasonably necessary in order to comply with applicable securities laws.

Persons into whose possession offering material comes must inform themselves about and observe

any such restrictions. This Prospectus does not constitute, and may not be used for or in connection

with, an offer to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or a solicitation by anyone
not authorised so to act.

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Notes

in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such
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jurisdiction. The distribution of this Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law

in certain jurisdictions. The Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers and the Trustee do not represent that

this Prospectus may be lawfully distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance

with any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an
exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or

offering, or that all actions have been taken by the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers or the Trustee

which would permit a public offering of any Notes or distribution of this Prospectus in any jurisdiction

where action for that purpose is required. In particular, no action has been taken by the Issuers, the

Guarantor, the Dealers or the Trustee which would permit a public offering of any Notes outside the

European Economic Area or distribution of this Prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for that

purpose is required. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this

Prospectus nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any
jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and

regulations. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus or any Notes may come must inform

themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Prospectus and the

offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Prospectus and

the offer or sale of Notes in the United States, the European Economic Area, the United Kingdom,

Australia, Canada, Japan, Hong Kong and Singapore, see ‘‘Subscription and Sale and Transfer and

Selling Restrictions’’.

This Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that, except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii) below
may apply, any offer of Notes in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has

implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member State) will be made pursuant to an

exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from the

requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Notes. Accordingly any person making or intending to

make an offer in that Relevant Member State of Notes which are the subject of an offering

contemplated in this Prospectus as completed by final terms in relation to the offer of those Notes may

only do so (i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a

prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to
Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer, or (ii) if a prospectus for

such offer has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State or, where

appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that

Relevant Member State and (in either case) published, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive,

provided that any such prospectus has subsequently been completed by final terms which specify that

offers may be made other than pursuant to Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant

Member State and such offer is made in the period beginning and ending on the dates specified for such

purpose in such prospectus or final terms, as applicable. Except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii) above
may apply, none of the Issuer, the Guarantor nor any Dealer have authorised, nor do they authorise, the

making of any offer of Notes in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the relevant Issuer or

any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the relevant

Issuer and the Guarantor and the terms of the Notes being offered, including the merits and risks

involved.

Certain of the Dealers and their affiliates have engaged and may in the future engage in investment

banking and/or commercial banking transactions with, and may perform services for the Issuers, the
Guarantor and their respective affiliates.

None of the Dealers, the Issuers, the Guarantor and the Trustee makes any representation to any

investor in the Notes regarding the legality of its investment under any applicable laws. Any investor in

the Notes should satisfy itself that it is able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Notes for

an indefinite period of time.

Each of the Australian Registrar and the Canadian Agent has consented to being named under the

Prospectus in the form in which its respective name appears, but has no liability in respect of the

Prospectus.

This Prospectus has not been and will not be lodged with the Australian Securities and Investments

Commission and is not and does not purport to be a document containing disclosure to investors, for the

purposes of Part 6D.2 or Part 7.9 of the Corporations Act 2001 of the Commonwealth of Australia

(‘‘Australia’’) (the ‘‘Corporations Act 2001’’). It is not intended to be used in connection with any offer

for which such disclosure is required and does not contain all the information that would be required by
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those provisions if they applied. It does not take into account the objectives, financial situation or needs

of any potential investor and is not to be provided to any ‘‘retail client’’ as defined in secton 761G of the

Corporations Act 2001.

This Prospectus is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an advertisement or a

public offering of the securities referred to in this document in Canada. No securities commission or

similar authority in Canada has reviewed or in any way passed upon this Prospectus or the merits of the
securities described herein and any representation to the contrary is an offence. This Prospectus may not

be distributed or delivered in Canada or to any resident of Canada other than in compliance with

applicable securities laws in the relevant province or territory of Canada.
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U.S. INFORMATION

The Notes have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange

Commission or any other securities commission or other regulatory authority in the United States, nor

have the foregoing authorities approved this Prospectus or confirmed the accuracy or determined the

adequacy of the information contained in this Prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

This Prospectus may be distributed on a confidential basis in the United States to a limited number

of QIBs (as defined under ‘‘Form of the Notes’’) for informational use solely in connection with the

consideration of the purchase of the Notes being offered hereby. Its use for any other purpose in the

United States is not authorised. It may not be copied or reproduced in whole or in part nor may it be
distributed or any of its contents disclosed to anyone other than the prospective investors to whom it is

originally submitted.

Registered Notes may be offered or sold within the United States only to QIBs in transactions

exempt from the registration requirements under the Securities Act. Each U.S. purchaser of Registered
Notes is hereby notified that the offer and sale of any Registered Notes to it may be made in reliance

upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 144A

under the Securities Act (‘‘Rule 144A’’).

Each purchaser or holder of Notes represented by a Rule 144A Global Note or any Notes issued in

registered form in exchange or substitution therefor (together ‘‘Restricted Notes’’) will be deemed, by its

acceptance or purchase of any such Restricted Notes, to have made certain representations and

agreements intended to restrict the resale or other transfer of such Notes as set out in ‘‘Subscription and

Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions’’. Unless otherwise stated, terms used in this paragraph have

the meanings given to them in ‘‘Form of the Notes’’.

NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS

Neither the fact that a registration statement or an application for a licence has been filed under

Chapter 421-B of the New Hampshire revised statutes with the State of New Hampshire nor the fact

that a security is effectively registered or a person is licensed in the State of New Hampshire constitutes

a finding by the Secretary of State of New Hampshire that any document filed under Chapter 421-B is

true, complete and not misleading. Neither any such fact nor the fact that an exemption or exception is
available for a security or a transaction means that the Secretary of State has passed in any way upon

the merits or qualifications of, or recommended or given approval to, any person, security or transaction.

It is unlawful to make, or cause to be made, to any prospective purchaser, customer or client any

representation inconsistent with the provisions of this paragraph.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

If the Guarantor ceases to be a reporting company under the Exchange Act (as defined below), to

permit compliance with Rule 144A in connection with any resales or other transfers of Notes that are

‘‘restricted securities’’ within the meaning of the Securities Act, each Issuer has undertaken in the Trust

Deed to furnish, upon the request of a holder of such Notes or any beneficial interest therein, to such

holder or to a prospective purchaser designated by him, the information required to be delivered under

Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act if, at the time of the request, such Issuer and the Guarantor

are neither reporting companies under Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, (the ‘‘Exchange Act’’) nor exempt from reporting pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder.

The Guarantor is currently a reporting company under the Exchange Act.

SERVICE OF PROCESS AND ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

ANTS and the Guarantor are companies incorporated in England. All of their directors reside

outside the United States and all or a substantial portion of the assets of each Issuer and the Guarantor

are located outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service

of process outside England upon an Issuer or the Guarantor, or to enforce judgments against them

obtained in the United States predicated upon civil liabilities of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor or
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such directors under laws other than English, including any judgment predicated upon United States

federal securities laws. The Issuers and the Guarantor have been advised by Slaughter and May, their

English solicitors, that there is doubt as to the enforceability in England in original actions or in actions

for enforcement of judgments of United States courts of civil liabilities predicated solely upon the federal
securities laws of the United States.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

All references in this document to ‘‘U.S. dollars’’, ‘‘U.S.$’’ and ‘‘$’’ are to the currency of the

United States of America, to ‘‘Sterling’’ and ‘‘£’’ are to the currency of the United Kingdom, to

‘‘Australian dollars’’ and ‘‘A$’’ are to the currency of Australia, to ‘‘Canadian dollars’’ and ‘‘C$’’ are to

the currency of Canada and to ‘‘euro’’ and ‘‘A’’ are to the currency introduced at the start of the third

stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty on the Functioning of the

European Union, as amended.

From 1 January, 2005 each of the Issuers and the Guarantor maintains its financial books and

records and prepares its financial statements in Sterling in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards (‘‘IFRS’’) as approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘‘IASB’’),

interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘‘IFRIC’’) of

the IASB that, under European Regulations, are effective and available for early adoption at the Group’s
reporting date. The Group has complied with IFRS as issued by the IASB in addition to complying with

its legal obligation to comply with IFRS as adopted for use in the European Union.

BANKING ACT OF AUSTRALIA

Abbey National Treasury Services plc (Issuer of the Australian Domestic Notes) is not a bank

which is authorised under the Banking Act 1959 of Australia. The Australian Domestic Notes are not

the obligations of any government and, in particular are not guaranteed by the Commonwealth of

Australia.

BANK ACT (CANADA)

None of the Issuers or the Guarantor is regulated as a financial institution in Canada. The Issuers

and the Guarantor are not member institutions of the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation. The

liability incurred by an Issuer or the Guarantor through the issuance and sale of Canadian Notes (as

defined herein) is not a deposit.
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In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the

Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the applicable

Final Terms may, outside Australia and on a market operated outside Australia, over-allot Notes or

effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Notes at a level higher than that

which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance that the Stabilising Manager(s) (or

persons acting on behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation

action may begin on or after the date on which adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of
the relevant Tranche of Notes is made and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it must end no later

than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant Tranche of Notes and 60 days after the

date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of Notes. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must

be conducted by the relevant Stabilising Manager(s) (or person(s) acting on behalf of any Stabilising

Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents which have previously been published or are published simultaneously

with this Prospectus and have been approved by the FSA or filed with it shall be incorporated in,

and to form part of, this Prospectus and the Base Prospectus set out in this Prospectus and approved

by the FSA for the purpose of the Prospectus Directive:

(1) the audited consolidated annual financial statements of ANTS for the financial year ended

31 December, 2009, which appear on pages 10 to 80 of ANTS’ Annual Report and

Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2009;

(2) the audited consolidated annual financial statements of ANTS for the financial year ended

31 December, 2008, which appear on pages 10 to 66 of ANTS’ Annual Report and

Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2008;

(3) the audited consolidated annual financial statements of A&L for the financial year ended
31 December, 2009, which appear on pages 46 to 107, and the cross guarantee which

appears on pages 115 to 117, of A&L’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended

31 December, 2009;

(4) the audited information in the paragraph entitled ‘‘Retired Benefits’’ in the Directors’

Report on page 41 of A&L’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31

December, 2009;

(5) the audited information in the Risk Management Report on pages 15 to 37 of A&L’s
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2009;

(6) the audited consolidated annual financial statements of A&L for the financial year ended

31 December, 2008, which appear on pages 43 to 101 of A&L’s Annual Report and

Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2008;

(7) the audited information in the Directors’ Report on page 38, excluding (i) the first

paragraph on page 38, (ii) the paragraph entitled ‘‘Remuneration Committee’’ on page 38

and (iii) the first paragraph on page 39, of A&L’s Annual Report and Accounts for the

year ended 31 December, 2008;

(8) the audited information in the Risk Management Report on pages 16 to 33 of A&L’s

Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2008;

(9) the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the Guarantor for the financial year

ended 31 December, 2009, which appear on pages 99 to 188 of the Guarantor’s Annual

Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2009;

(10) the audited information in the Directors’ Report on page 92, except the paragraph entitled

‘‘Bank Payroll tax’’, of the Guarantor’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended
31 December, 2009;

(11) the audited information in the Risk Management Report on pages 49 to 85 of the

Guarantor’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2009;

(12) the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the Guarantor for the financial year

ended 31 December, 2008, which appear on pages 69 to 137, and the cross guarantee

which appears on pages 148 to 150, of the Guarantor’s Annual Report and Accounts for

the year ended 31 December, 2008. The audited consolidated annual financial statements of
Santander UK for the financial year ended 31 December, 2008 have been amended in the

Annual Report and Accounts of Santander UK for the financial year ended 31 December,

2009 to reflect the transfer of A&L to Santander UK from Banco Santander in exchange

for ordinary shares of Santander UK (please see note 47 of the Annual Report and

Accounts of Santander UK for the financial year ended 31 December, 2009 which is

incorporated by reference into this Prospectus at paragraph 9 above). With respect to

Santander UK’s audited consolidated annual financial statements for the financial year

ended 31 December, 2008, potential investors should read the Annual Report and
Accounts of Santander UK for the year ended 31 December, 2009 and not the Annual

Report and Accounts of Santander UK for the year ended 31 December, 2008;

(13) the audited information in the Directors’ Report on page 63, excluding the paragraph

entitled ‘‘Directors’ Interests and Related Party Transactions’’, of the Guarantor’s Annual

Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2008;

9

c102367pu020Proof6:5.5.10B/LRevision:0OperatorWilD



(14) the audited information in the Risk Management Report on pages 36 to 56 of the

Guarantor’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2008;

(15) the unaudited table titled ‘‘Personal Financial Services profit before tax by segment’’ on

page 19 of the ‘‘Business Review – Personal Financial Services’’ section of the Guarantor’s

Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2009;

(16) the Notice given in relation to the proposed transfer to Santander UK plc of the business
of Alliance & Leicester plc under Part VII of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000,

dated 27 April, 2010; and

(17) Santander UK’s unaudited Q1 trading statement, dated 29 April, 2010, for the three

month financial period ending 31 March, 2010, except (i) bullet points 2, 4 and 9 of the

section titled ‘‘Key Highlights’’; (ii) paragraph 1 under the heading ‘‘Antonio Horta-Osorio,

Chief Executive, Santander UK plc, said:’’; (iii) the third sentence of the first paragraph of

the section titled ‘‘Q1 Business Review’’; (iv) the third paragraph, and the first sentence of

the fourth paragraph, of the section titled ‘‘Q1 Business Review’’; (v) the second sentence

of the first paragraph under the heading ‘‘Integration’’; (vi) the last sentence of the second

paragraph under the heading ‘‘Trading provisions’’; (vii) the table titled ‘‘CML (mortgages

only)’’; (viii) lines 5, 6, 9 and 14 of the table appearing under the section titled ‘‘Business

Flows’’; and (ix) the first sentence of the second bullet point under the section titled

‘‘Business Flows’’;

provided also that any statement contained in a document all or the relevant portion of which

is incorporated by reference herein shall be modified or superseded for the purpose of this

Prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this Prospectus modifies or supersedes

such earlier statement (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so

modified or superseded shall not, except as so modified or superseded, constitute part of this

Prospectus.

In addition to the above, the following Terms and Conditions of the Notes shall be

incorporated by reference in, and form part of, this Prospectus:

(18) the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out on pages 26 to 51 of the Information
Memorandum dated 29 March, 2004;

(19) the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out on pages 26 to 52 of the Information
Memorandum dated 11 April, 2005;

(20) the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out on pages 34 to 59 of the Information

Memorandum dated 5 August, 2005;

(21) the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out on pages 36 to 63 of the Prospectus dated

22 June, 2006;

(22) the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out on pages 36 to 63 of the Prospectus dated

18 May, 2007;

(23) the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out on pages 50 to 79 of the Prospectus dated

26 March, 2008; and

(24) the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out on pages 54 to 85 of the Prospectus dated

14 April, 2009.

In addition, the following documents published or issued prior to the date hereof or published

or issued from time to time after the date hereof, except to the extent included in paragraphs

(1) through (24) above, shall be incorporated in, and form part of, this Prospectus provided that

such documents shall not form part of the Base Prospectus approved by the FSA for the

purpose of the Prospectus Directive:

(25) the most recently published Annual Report and Accounts containing audited consolidated

and non-consolidated annual financial statements and, if published later, the most recently
published Interim Financial Results containing interim consolidated and non-consolidated

financial statements (if any) of the Guarantor and the most recently published Guarantor’s

Annual Report on Form 20-F as filed with the SEC, as the same may be amended from

time to time; and

(26) the most recently published Annual Report and Accounts containing audited consolidated

and non-consolidated annual financial statements of ANTS.
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Any statement contained herein or in a document which is incorporated by reference herein

shall be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Prospectus to the extent that a subsequent

statement which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein or contained herein modifies or

supersedes such earlier statement (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise), (provided, however,
that such statement shall only form part of the Base Prospectus to the extent that it is contained in a

document all of the relevant portion of which is incorporated by reference by way of a supplement

proposed in accordance with Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive). Any statement so modified or

superseded shall not, except as so modified or superseded, constitute part of this Prospectus.

Copies of the documents incorporated by reference in this Prospectus, listed in (1) to (24) above,

can be obtained without charge from the RNS website.

Any documents themselves incorporated by reference in the documents incorporated by reference

in this Prospectus shall not form part of this Prospectus.

The Issuers and the Guarantor will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake

or inaccuracy relating to information included in this Prospectus which is capable of affecting the

assessment of any Notes, prepare a supplement to this Prospectus or publish a new Prospectus for

use in connection with any subsequent issue of Notes. The Issuers and the Guarantor have

undertaken to the Dealers in the Programme Agreement (as defined in ‘‘Subscription and Sale and

Transfer and Selling Restrictions’’ herein) that they will comply with section 87G of the FSMA.
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SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

This summary must be read as an introduction to this Prospectus and any decision to invest in any

Notes should be based on a consideration of this Prospectus as a whole, including the documents

incorporated by reference. Following the implementation of the relevant provisions of the Prospectus

Directive in each Member State of the European Economic Area no civil liability will attach to the
Responsible Persons in any such Member State solely on the basis of this summary, including any

translation hereof, unless it is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other

parts of this Prospectus. Where a claim relating to information contained in this Prospectus is brought

before a court in a Member State of the European Economic Area, the plaintiff may, under the national

legislation of the Member State where the claim is brought, be required to bear the costs of translating

the Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated.

Words and expressions defined in ‘‘Form of the Notes’’ and ‘‘Terms and Conditions of the Notes’’

shall have the same meanings in this summary.

Issuers: Abbey National Treasury Services plc (including any Designated

Branch)

Santander UK plc

Guarantor: Santander UK plc

Description of Issuers and

Guarantor:

The Guarantor is the parent company of the Santander UK Group

which provides financial services in the U.K. The Guarantor was

incorporated in England and Wales in 1988. ANTS is a wholly

owned subsidiary of the Guarantor and was incorporated in England

and Wales in 1989. The Guarantor and the Issuers form part of the

Banco Santander Group.

Risk Factors: There are certain factors that may affect the Issuers’ and the
Guarantor’s ability to fulfil their obligations under Notes issued

under the Programme. These are set out under ‘‘Risk Factors’’ below

and include risks concerning borrower credit quality, general

economic conditions, operational risk and risks relating to the

Notes. In addition, there are certain factors which are material for

the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with Notes

issued under the Programme (see ‘‘Risk Factors’’).

Description: Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Arranger: Deutsche Bank AG, London branch

Dealers: Banco Santander, S.A.

Barclays Bank PLC

BNP Paribas

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Goldman Sachs International

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

HSBC Bank plc

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

Merrill Lynch International

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

UBS Limited

and any other Dealers appointed in accordance with the Programme

Agreement.
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Certain Restrictions: Each issue of Notes denominated in a currency in respect of which

particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting

requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which

comply with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or
reporting requirements from time to time (see ‘‘Subscription and

Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions’’).

Australian dollars

Notes denominated in Australian dollars may only be issued in the

Australian domestic capital markets by entities which are authorised

as banks in their home jurisdiction in accordance with the directive
issued by the Assistant Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Australia

dated 23 September, 1996 as contained in the Banking (Exemption)

Order No. 82 which requires all offers and any transfers which occur

in Australia of such Notes to be for a consideration of at least

A$500,000.

ANTS may issue Notes denominated in Australian dollars in the

Australian domestic capital markets (‘‘Australian Domestic Notes’’)
in accordance with these requirements.

Australian Domestic Notes:

* will be issued in registered, uncertificated (or inscribed) form,

constituted by the Deed Poll dated on or around 14 April, 2009

executed by ANTS and governed by the laws of New South

Wales, Australia (as amended, supplemented or replaced from

time to time) (the ‘‘Deed Poll’’) and take the form of entries on
a register to be maintained by Computershare Investor Services

Pty Limited (ABN 48 078 279 277) or such other Australian

registrar appointed by ANTS and specified in the applicable

Final Terms (the ‘‘Australian Registrar’’);

* will provide for payments of principal and interest to be made

in Australia;

* will provide for ANTS to submit to the jurisdiction of the

courts of New South Wales and appoint Dabserv Corporate

Services Pty Limited (ABN 73 001 824 111) (or such other

person specified in the applicable Final Terms) as its agent for

the service of process in New South Wales;

* may be listed on the Australian Stock Exchange Limited; and

* will be eligible for lodgement into the Austraclear System
operated by Austraclear Limited (ABN 94 002 060 773).

The requirements of the Banking (Exemption) Order No. 82 do not

apply to transfers of Australian Domestic Notes which occur outside

Australia.

It is not intended that Santander UK will issue Australian Domestic

Notes.

Canadian dollars

Subject to any applicable laws and regulations, under the

Programme ANTS may issue Notes denominated in Canadian

dollars settling and clearing through the clearing system operated in

Canada by CDS and (if so indicated in the applicable Final Terms)

also clearing through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg

(‘‘Canadian Notes’’). Canadian Notes will be issued in registered
form, represented by certificates, each certificate representing one or

more Notes registered in the name of the recorded holder of such

Canadian Notes. Canadian Notes will be issued under a sub-paying

agency agreement (the ‘‘Sub-Paying Agency Agreement’’) dated

5 May, 2010 between ANTS, the Guarantor, the Principal Paying
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Agent, the Registrar, BNY Trust Company of Canada (the

‘‘Canadian Agent’’) and the Trustee, will have the benefit of the

Trust Deed and will be made pursuant to such other additional

documentation as ANTS considers appropriate and in agreement
with the Programme documents.

It is not intended that Santander UK will issue Canadian Notes.

Trustee: The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c.

Issuing and Principal Paying

Agent:

Citibank, N.A., London.

Registrar: Citigroup Global Markets Deutschland AG & Co. KGaA.

Programme Size: Up to U.S.$20,000,000,000 (or its equivalent) outstanding at any

time. The Issuers and the Guarantor may increase the amount of the

Programme in accordance with the terms of the Programme
Agreement.

Distribution: The Notes may be distributed by way of private or public placement

and in each case on a syndicated or non-syndicated basis.

Currencies: Any currency indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Redenomination: The applicable Final Terms may provide that certain Notes may be

redenominated in euro and will detail the relevant provisions

applicable to any such redenomination, and any renominalisation,
reconventioning and/or consolidation with other Notes denominated

in euro.

Maturities: Subject to any applicable legal or regulatory restrictions and the rules

from time to time of any relevant central bank (or equivalent body),

such maturity as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Issue Price: Notes may be issued on a fully-paid or a partly-paid basis and at an

issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or premium over, par.

Form of Notes: The Notes will be issued in bearer or registered (or inscribed) form as
described in ‘‘Form of the Notes’’. Notes issued in bearer form may

also be issued in new global note (NGN) form. Registered Notes will

not be exchangeable for Bearer Notes or vice versa.

Australian Domestic Notes will take the form of entries in a register

maintained by the Australian Registrar.

Canadian Notes will be issued in registered form.

Fixed Rate Notes: Interest on Fixed Rate Notes will be payable on such date or dates as

indicated in the applicable Final Terms and on redemption and will
be calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction as may be

agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Floating Rate Notes: Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:

(1) on the same basis as the floating rate under a notional interest

rate swap transaction in the relevant Specified Currency

governed by an agreement incorporating the 2006 ISDA

Definitions (as published by the International Swaps and

Derivatives Association, Inc., and as amended and updated as

at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes of the

relevant Series); or

(2) on the basis of a reference rate appearing on the agreed screen

page of a commercial quotation service; or

(3) on such other basis as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

The Margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be indicated in

the applicable Final Terms.
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Index Linked Notes: Payments of principal and/or interest in respect of Index Linked

Notes will be calculated by reference to a single index or a basket of

indices and/or formula or to changes in the prices of securities or

commodities, or to such other factors as indicated in the applicable
Final Terms.

Credit Linked Notes, Equity

Linked Notes and other
structured Notes:

Payments of principal and/or interest in respect of Credit Linked

Notes, Equity Linked Notes and other structured Notes will be
calculated by reference to the price, value, performance or some

other factor relating to one or more Reference Assets and/or the

creditworthiness of, performance of obligations by or some other

factor relating to one or more Reference Entities, as set out in the

applicable Final Terms. Credit Linked Notes, Equity Linked Notes

and other structured Notes may be issued as Cash-Settled Notes or

Physically-Settled Notes or a combination of both, as set out in the

applicable Final Terms.

Other provisions in relation to

Floating Rate Notes and

Variable Interest Notes:

Floating Rate Notes and Variable Interest Notes may also have a

maximum interest rate, a minimum interest rate or both.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Variable Interest Notes in

respect of each Interest Period, as agreed prior to issue by the
relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer, will be payable on such

Interest Payment Dates, and will be calculated on the basis of such

Day Count Fraction, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Change of interest/payment basis: Notes may be converted from one interest and/or payment basis to

another if so provided in the applicable Final Terms.

Dual Currency Notes: Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and whether at

maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual Currency Notes will be
made in such currencies, and based on such rates of exchange, as

indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Variable Notes: Index Linked Redemption Notes, Credit Linked Redemption Notes,
Equity Linked Redemption Notes, Dual Currency Notes and other

Notes where the Redemption Amount is variable are referred to as

‘‘Variable Redemption Notes’’. Index Linked Interest Notes

(together with Index Linked Redemption Notes, ‘‘Index Linked

Notes’’), Credit Linked Interest Notes (together with Credit Linked

Redemption Notes, ‘‘Credit Linked Notes’’), Equity Linked Interest

Notes (together with Equity Linked Redemption Notes, ‘‘Equity

Linked Notes’’) and other Notes (excluding Floating Rate Notes)
where the rate of interest is variable are referred to as ‘‘Variable

Interest Notes’’. Variable Redemption Notes and Variable Interest

Notes are collectively referred to as ‘‘Variable Notes’’.

Zero Coupon/Discount Notes: Zero Coupon Notes and Discount Notes will be offered and sold at a
discount to their nominal amount and, in the case of Zero Coupon

Notes, will not bear interest.

Non-Interest Bearing Notes: Non-Interest Bearing Notes are Variable Redemption Notes which
do not bear interest. Such Notes do not have a Stated Yield.

Partly-Paid Notes: Notes may be issued on a partly-paid basis in which case interest will

accrue on the paid-up amount of such Notes or on such other basis

as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer
and indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Redemption: The applicable Final Terms will indicate either that the relevant

Notes cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than
in specified instalments, if applicable, or for taxation reasons or

following an Event of Default or a credit event) or that such Notes

will be redeemable at the option of the relevant Issuer and/or the

Noteholders upon giving notice to the Noteholders or the relevant

Issuer, as the case may be, on a date or dates specified prior to such
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stated maturity or automatically upon the occurrence of certain

specified events and at a price or prices and on such other terms as

may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer

and indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

The applicable Final Terms may provide that Notes may be

redeemable in two or more instalments of such amounts and on

such dates as are indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Denomination of Notes: Notes will be issued in such denominations as indicated in the

applicable Final Terms save that the minimum denomination of each

Note will be such as may be allowed or required from time to time by

the relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or
regulations applicable to the relevant Specified Currency see

‘‘Certain Restrictions – Notes having a Maturity of less than one

year’’ in this Summary.

No sales of Restricted Notes in the United States to any one

purchaser will be for less than U.S.$100,000.

Non principal protected Variable Notes issued by ANTS will have a

minimum denomination of Euro 50,000.

Although there is no minimum denomination for Australian

Domestic Notes, the minimum subscription price for Australian

Domestic Notes will be A$500,000 (disregarding moneys lent by

ANTS or its associates) unless the offer otherwise does not require
disclosure to investors in accordance with Parts 6D.2 or 7.9 of the

Corporations Act. The issue must also comply with the Bank

(Exemption) Order No. 82 promulgated under the Banking Act 1959

of the Commonwealth of Australia (to the extent applicable) (which

requires all offers and any transfers which occur in Australia of

Australian Domestic Notes to be for a consideration of at least

A$500,000) and any other applicable laws, regulations or directives.

Taxation: All payments in respect of the Notes will be made without

withholding of or deduction for or on account of taxes imposed by

the relevant tax jurisdiction, subject as provided in Condition 8. In

the event that any such withholding or deduction is required by law,
the relevant Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor will, save in

certain circumstances provided in Condition 8, be required to pay

additional amounts to cover the amounts so deducted.

Negative Pledge: The terms of the Notes will contain a negative pledge provision as
further described in Condition 4.

Cross Default: The terms of the Notes will contain a cross default provision as

further described in Condition 10(a).

Status of the Senior Notes: The Senior Notes will constitute direct, unconditional and, subject to

the provisions of Condition 4, unsecured obligations of the relevant

Issuer and will rank without preference among themselves and,

subject as aforesaid, pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured
and unsubordinated obligations of the relevant Issuer, present and

future, but, in the event of insolvency, only to the extent permitted by

laws relating to creditors’ rights.

Status of the Subordinated Notes: The Subordinated Notes will be direct, unsecured, subordinated
obligations of the Subordinated Issuer and will rank pari passu and

without any preference among themselves. The rights of holders of

Subordinated Notes will be subordinated in right of payment in the

manner provided in the Trust Deed and as specified in Condition

3(b)(i).

Guarantee: The Senior Notes will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed

by the Guarantor. The obligations of the Guarantor under such

guarantee will constitute direct, unconditional and, subject to the
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provisions of Condition 4, unsecured obligations of the Guarantor

and will rank without any preference among themselves and, subject

as aforesaid, pari passu with all other outstanding unsecured and

unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantor, present and future,
but, in the event of insolvency, only to the extent permitted by laws

relating to creditors’ rights.

Guarantee by A&L: A&L has granted a guarantee in respect of Santander UK’s

unsubordinated liabilities incurred prior to 31 July, 2012 and in

turn Santander UK has granted a guarantee in respect of A&L on a

substantially similar basis. A&L is not a guarantor under the

Programme and the guarantee by A&L does not apply to any

Subordinated Notes.

Rating: The rating of the Notes to be issued under the Programme will be

specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Listing: Application has been made for Notes issued under the Programme to

be admitted to the Official List and trading on the London Stock

Exchange’s Regulated Market. The Notes may also be listed on such

other or further stock exchange(s) as indicated in the applicable
Final Terms in relation to each Series. In particular, Australian

Domestic Notes may be listed on the Australian Stock Exchange

Limited.

Unlisted Notes may also be issued.

The applicable Final Terms will state whether or not the relevant
Notes are to be listed and, if so, on which stock exchange(s).

Governing Law: The Notes and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in
connection therewith will be governed by, and construed in

accordance with, English law except that Australian Domestic

Notes will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the

laws of New South Wales, Australia.

Selling Restrictions: There are restrictions on the offer, sale and transfer of Notes in

certain jurisdictions, including in the United States, the European

Economic Area, the United Kingdom, Australia, Canada, Japan,

Hong Kong and Singapore and such other restrictions as may be

required in connection with the offering and sale of a particular

Tranche of Notes (see ‘‘Subscription and Sale and Transfer and

Selling Restrictions’’).
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RISK FACTORS

The Issuers and the Guarantor believe that the following factors may affect their ability to fulfil

their respective obligations under the Notes issued under the Programme. Most of these factors are

contingencies which may or may not occur and the Issuers and the Guarantor are not in a position to

express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring. In addition, risk factors which are

specific to the Notes are also described below.

The Issuers and the Guarantor believe that the factors described below represent the principal risks

inherent in investing in the Notes issued under the Programme, but the inability of the Issuers and the

Guarantor to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in connection with any Notes may occur for

other reasons and the Issuers and the Guarantor do not represent that the statements below regarding

the risks of holding any Notes are exhaustive. Prospective investors should also read the detailed

information set out elsewhere in this Prospectus and reach their own views prior to making any

investment decision.

Words and expressions defined in the ‘‘Terms and Conditions of the Notes’’ below or elsewhere in

this Prospectus have the same meanings in this section.

Business Risk Factors

In this context the following specific risks have been identified as areas of focus:

1. Risk factors relating to the Senior Issuer

The Senior Issuer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Guarantor, which is an indirect wholly-

owned subsidiary of Banco Santander. The principal activity of the Senior Issuer is to provide

treasury, corporate and wholesale banking services. As part of this activity the Senior Issuer provides

a treasury function, incorporating liquidity, funding, capital and risk management products to

Santander UK. It also provides treasury services, supplying products and risk management services
for other financial services companies, and corporate banking services principally to small and

medium sized UK companies. As a result, the Senior Issuer’s ability to meet and perform its

obligations may be affected by any inability of third parties to perform obligations owed to the

Senior Issuer.

2. Risk factors relating to the Issuers, the Guarantor and the Group

The Guarantor and its subsidiaries, which shall include Alliance & Leicester plc and its

subsidiaries (the ‘‘Group’’) provide a comprehensive range of personal financial services, including

savings and investments, mortgages, unsecured lending, banking, pensions, life and general insurance

products to customers throughout the United Kingdom. In addition, the Group provides offshore

operations in certain jurisdictions. As a result, the Guarantor’s ability to meet and perform its
obligations may be affected by the performance of the Group.

The Group’s risk management measures may not be successful

The management of risk is an integral part of all the Group’s activities. Risk constitutes the

Group’s exposure to uncertainty and the consequent variability of return. Specifically, risk equates to

the adverse impacts on profitability arising from different sources of uncertainty including credit risk

(retail), credit risk (wholesale), credit risk (corporate and commercial), market risk (traded and non-

traded), operational risk, asset backed funding risk, concentration risk, liquidity risk, reputational

risk, business and strategic risk, pension obligation risk, residual value risk and regulatory risk. The

Group seeks to monitor and manage its risk exposure through a variety of separate but

complementary financial, credit, market, operational, compliance and legal reporting systems. While
the Group employs a broad and diversified set of risk monitoring and risk mitigation techniques, such

techniques, and the judgments that accompany their application, cannot anticipate every unfavourable

event or the specifics and timing of every outcome. Accordingly, the Group’s ability to successfully

identify and balance risks and rewards, and to manage all material risks, is an important factor that

can significantly affect the Group’s results of operations.
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Risks concerning borrower credit quality and general economic conditions are inherent in the Group’s business

Risks arising from changes in credit quality and the recoverability of loans and amounts due

from borrowers and counterparties are inherent in a wide range of the Group’s businesses. Adverse
changes in the credit quality of the Group’s borrowers and counterparties or a general deterioration

in UK or global economic conditions, or arising from systemic risks in the financial systems, could

reduce the recoverability and value of the Group’s assets and require an increase in the Group’s level

of provisions for bad and doubtful debts. Likewise, a significant reduction in the demand for the

Group’s products and services could negatively impact the Group’s business and financial condition.

Since August 2007, the global financial system has experienced difficult credit and liquidity conditions

and disruptions leading to less liquidity, greater volatility, an increase in general fraud and money

laundering activity (first and third party) and general widening of spreads.

In September 2008, global financial markets deteriorated sharply following the bankruptcy filing

by Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. Since then, a number of other major financial institutions,
including some of the largest global commercial banks, investment banks, mortgage lenders, mortgage

guarantors and insurance companies, have experienced significant difficulties.

Governments and central banks took concerted action to make substantial funds and guarantees

available to boost liquidity and confidence in their financial systems, stimulate lending and support

important institutions at risk of failing, in addition to cutting taxes and lowering interest rates. As a

consequence, conditions eased in 2009 and most leading developed economies, including the United

Kingdom, began to emerge from recession, although the pace and depth of recovery was uneven

across asset markets. However, the financial services industry continued to face an unusually high

degree of uncertainty.

Despite the stabilisation in conditions experienced in 2009, dramatic declines in the previous two

years in the housing markets in the UK combined with increasing unemployment continue to
adversely affect the credit performance of real estate related exposures, resulting in significant write-

downs of asset values by financial institutions, including the Group. These write-downs, initially of

asset backed securities but spreading to other securities and loans, caused many financial institutions

to seek additional capital, to reduce or eliminate dividends, to merge with larger and stronger

competitors or, in some cases, to fail.

This market turmoil and reduction of available credit have contributed to decreasing consumer

confidence, increased market volatility, reduced business activity and, consequently, increasing

commercial and consumer loan delinquencies. These market developments may further affect

consumer confidence levels and may cause adverse changes in payment patterns, causing further
increases in delinquencies and default rates, which may impact the Group’s write-offs/charge-offs and

provision for credit losses. These market conditions could materially and adversely affect the Group’s

financial condition and results of operations.

In the United Kingdom, the contraction in economic output appears to have ceased with the

country emerging slowly from recession in the last quarter of 2009. However, economic indicators

remain weak and the risk of the country slipping back into recession in 2010, prolonging the

recovery, remains. Government measures to tackle the record levels of national debt, including

taxation rises and public spending cuts, are also likely to result in a slower recovery than other recent

recessions. Political involvement in the regulatory environment and the major financial institutions in

which the state has a direct financial interest will continue. Government demands for increased credit
to support the economic recovery will increase competition for deposits, narrowing margins. The

combination of slow economic recovery, government intervention and competition for deposits will

maintain the pressure on the Group’s retail business model. Credit quality should improve in some

sectors as the economy returns to growth but could be adversely affected by any increase in

unemployment into 2010.

The soundness of other financial institutions could materially and adversely affect the Group’s business

The Group’s ability to engage in routine funding transactions could be adversely affected by the

actions and commercial soundness of other financial institutions. Financial services institutions are
interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty or other relationships. The Group has

exposure to many different industries and counterparties, and routinely executes transactions with

counterparties in the financial industry, including brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment

banks, mutual funds, and other institutional clients. As a result, defaults by, or even rumours or

questions about, one or more financial services institutions, or the financial services industry generally,
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have led to market-wide liquidity problems and could lead to losses or defaults by the Group or by

other institutions. Many of these transactions expose the Group to credit risk in the event of default

of the Group’s counterparty or client. In addition, the Group’s credit risk may be increased when the

collateral held by the Group cannot be realised upon or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to
recover the full amount of the loan or derivative exposure due to the Group. There is no assurance

that any such losses would not materially and adversely affect the Group’s results of operations.

Risks associated with liquidity and funding are inherent in the Group’s business

A&L receives a large proportion of its funding and liquidity from its parent company,

Santander UK, however liquidity risks are inherent in any retail and commercial bank. Whilst the
Group has implemented liquidity management processes to mitigate and control these risks,

unforeseen systemic market factors in particular make it difficult to eliminate these risks completely.

Adverse and continued constraints in the supply of liquidity, including inter-bank lending, may

materially and adversely affect the cost of funding the Group’s business and extreme liquidity

constraints may impact the Group’s current operations as well as limit growth possibilities. These

events may also have a material adverse effect on the market value and liquidity of bonds issued by

the Group in the secondary markets. From 2007 to date, the prime residential mortgage securitisation

and covered bond markets have experienced severe disruption as a result of a material reduction in
investor demand for these securities. These severe disruptions have resulted in extraordinary

government intervention into the financial services sector as a whole. These markets, which are

important sources of funding for the Group, were effectively closed to new external issuances of

securities. Global investor confidence also remains low and credit remains relatively scarce.

Continued or worsening disruption and volatility in the global financial markets could have a

material adverse effect on the Group’s ability to access capital and liquidity on financial terms
acceptable to it, if at all. If capital markets financing ceases to become available, or becomes

excessively expensive, the Group may be forced to raise the rates it pays on deposits to attract more

customers. While central banks around the world have taken coordinated efforts to increase liquidity

in the financial markets by taking measures such as increasing the amounts they lend directly to

financial institutions, lowering interest rates and significantly increasing temporary reciprocal currency

arrangements (or ‘‘swap lines’’), it is not known how long these market conditions will continue or

whether they will worsen or how long central bank schemes will continue or on what terms. The

persistence of these adverse market conditions could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
liquidity and funding.

Any reduction in the Group’s credit rating could increase its cost of funding and adversely affect its interest

margins

Credit ratings affect the cost and other terms upon which the Group is able to obtain funding.

Rating agencies regularly evaluate the Group and their ratings of the Group’s short-term and long-

term debt are based on a number of factors, including the Group’s financial strength as well as
conditions affecting the financial services industry generally. In light of the difficulties in the financial

services industry and the financial markets, there can be no assurance that the rating agencies will

maintain the Group’s current ratings or outlooks. Any reduction in those ratings and outlooks could

increase the cost of the Group’s funding and adversely affect the Group’s interest margins and/or

impact its liquidity position.

Market risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates, bond and equity prices and other market factors are
inherent in the Group’s business

The most significant market risks the Group faces are interest rates and bond and equity price

risks. Changes in the general level of interest rates, as well as changes in the shape of yield curves

and basis spreads may adversely affect the interest rate margin realised between lending rates and

borrowing costs in the Group’s banking operation. Significant declines in housing markets over the

past two years have negatively impacted the credit performance of real estate related loans and

resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by many financial institutions. These write-downs,
initially of asset-backed securities but spreading to other securities and loans, have caused many

financial institutions to seek additional capital, to reduce or eliminate dividends, to merge with larger

and stronger institutions and, in some cases, to fail. Reflecting concern about the stability of the

financial markets generally and the strength of counterparties, many lenders and institutional investors

have reduced or ceased providing funding to borrowers, including to other financial institutions.
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As a result of these market forces, volatility in interest rates and basis spreads has increased,

which has increased the Group’s borrowing costs, while decreasing values of global debt and equity

markets has had an adverse effect on the value of the Group’s investment portfolio. Any such

increase in capital markets funding costs or deposit rates could entail a re-pricing of loans, which
would result in a reduction of volumes, and may also have an adverse effect on the Group’s interest

margins. The Group also sponsors a number of defined benefit staff pension schemes, and its

obligations to those schemes may increase depending on the performance of financial markets.

Although the Group is undertaking measures to mitigate and control the effects of these conditions,

there can be no assurances that such controls will insulate the Group from deteriorating market

conditions.

Risks associated with strategic decisions regarding organic growth, and potential acquisitions and disposals

The Group allocates management and planning resources to develop strategic plans for organic

growth and to identify possible acquisitions and disposals and the potential restructuring of the

Group’s businesses. If the outcomes of these plans do not match expectations, the Group’s earnings
may not develop as forecast.

The Group may incur unanticipated losses related to its recent business combinations

The Group acquired the Bradford & Bingley savings business in September 2008. In January

2009, Banco Santander transferred its shares in Alliance & Leicester plc to Santander UK. The

Group’s assessment of these business combinations is based on limited and potentially inexact

information and on assumptions with respect to operations, profitability, asset quality and other

matters that may prove to be incorrect. The aforementioned financial institutions have been adversely

affected by the current financial crisis and Alliance & Leicester plc has material portfolios of

securities that have suffered losses and could decline meaningfully in value. There can be no

assurances that these businesses will not incur substantial further losses or that the Group will not be
exposed to currently unknown liabilities resulting from these business combinations. Any such losses

or liabilities could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and

results of operations.

The Group may fail to realise the anticipated benefits of its recent business combinations

The success of the Group’s business combinations will depend, in part, on the Group’s ability to

realise the anticipated benefits from combining the Group’s business with the businesses of Alliance &

Leicester plc and the Bradford & Bingley savings business it has acquired. It is possible that the

integration process could take longer or be more costly than anticipated or could result in the loss of

key employees, the disruption of each company’s ongoing businesses or inconsistencies in standards,

controls, procedures and policies that adversely affect the ability of each company to maintain
relationships with clients, customers or employees. In addition, these businesses are currently run by

management and employees who have not previously been exposed to the Group’s business culture or

philosophy. The Group’s efforts to integrate these companies are also likely to divert management

attention and resources. If the Group takes longer than anticipated or is not able to integrate the

aforementioned businesses, the anticipated benefits of the Group’s recent business combinations may

not be realised fully or at all, or may take longer to realise than expected.

The Group’s business is concentrated in the UK and on the offering of mortgage related products and services

The Group’s business is principally concentrated in the UK and on the offering of mortgage

related products and services. As a consequence, the Group’s financial condition and results of

operations are highly dependent on economic conditions in the UK, generally, and the UK property
market, in particular. Beginning in the second half of 2008, UK and global economic conditions

deteriorated significantly and global financial markets experienced acute turbulence. The UK economy

contracted further in 2009 overall, though it returned to slight positive GDP growth in the last

quarter. In 2008 and much of 2009, the UK property market suffered a significant correction as a

consequence of housing demand being constrained by a combination of subdued earnings growth,

greater pressure on housing finances, rising unemployment, changes in interest rates, a decline in the

availability of mortgage finance and the continued effect of global market volatility.

UK and global economic conditions and uncertainties may have an adverse effect on the quality

of the Group’s loan portfolio and may result in a rise in delinquency and default rates and write-offs/

charge-offs. There can be no assurance that the Group will not have to increase its provisions for
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loan losses in the future as a result of future increases in non-performing loans or for other reasons

beyond its control. Any increases in the Group’s provisions for loan losses could materially and

adversely affect the Group’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Group’s business is conducted in a highly competitive environment

The market for UK financial services is highly competitive and the financial crisis has re-shaped

the banking landscape in the United Kingdom, reinforcing both the importance of a retail deposit
funding base and strong capitalisation. The financial industry’s renewed focus on building retail

deposit bases has resulted in greater pricing competition in terms of interest rates offered, and

management expects such competition to intensify in response not only to regulatory actions but to

other factors, including competitor behaviour, consumer demand, technological changes, the impact of

consolidation. If financial markets remain unstable, financial institution consolidation may continue.

Moreover, the UK government has effectively nationalised some of the country’s largest banks, has

implemented a preferred equity program open to all financial institutions and another program to

guarantee short-term and certain medium-term debt of financial institutions, among other measures.
These measures could lead to increased government ownership and control over financial institutions

in the UK and further consolidation in the financial industry, all of which could adversely affect the

Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations. The Group’s financial condition and

results of operations may be materially and adversely affected by competition, including declining

lending margins or competition for savings driving up funding costs that cannot be recovered from

borrowers. If the Group is not successful in retaining and strengthening customer relationships, it

may lose market share, incur losses on some or all of its activities or fail to attract new deposits and

retain existing deposits, which could materially and adversely affect its financial position and results
of operations.

Operational risks are inherent in the Group’s business

Operational losses can result from fraud, criminal acts, errors by employees, failure to document

transactions properly or to obtain proper authorisation, failure to comply with regulatory

requirements and conduct of business rules, failure or breakdown of accounting, data processing and

other record keeping systems, natural disasters, or failure or breakdown of external systems, including

those of the Group’s suppliers or counterparties.

Nothing in this risk factor should be taken to imply that any of the Issuers, the Guarantor, or

A&L would be unable to comply with their obligations as companies with securities admitted to the

Official List or as a supervised firm regulated by the Financial Services Authority.

Reputational risk could cause harm to the Group and its business prospects

The Group’s ability to attract and retain customers and conduct business transactions with its

counterparties could be adversely affected to the extent that its reputation, or the reputation of

affiliates operating under the Santander brand, is damaged. Failure to address, or appearing to fail to

address, various issues that could give rise to reputational risk could cause harm to the Group and its

business prospects. Reputational issues include, but are not limited to: appropriately addressing

potential conflicts of interest; legal and regulatory requirements; ethical issues; adequacy of anti-
money laundering processes; privacy issues; record-keeping; sales and trading practices; proper

identification of the legal, reputational, credit, liquidity and market risks inherent in products offered;

and general company performance. The failure to address these issues appropriately could make

customers unwilling to do business with the Group, which could adversely affect its results of

operations.

The Group’s businesses are subject to substantial legislation, regulatory and governmental oversight

The Group is subject to financial services laws, regulations, administrative actions and policies in

each location in which the Group operates and, indirectly, in Spain, as a result of being part of

Banco Santander. During the recent market turmoil there have been unprecedented levels of

government and regulatory intervention and scrutiny and changes to the regulations governing
financial institutions. In addition, in light of the financial crisis, regulatory and governmental

authorities are considering, or may consider, further enhanced or new legal or regulatory requirements

intended to prevent future crises or otherwise assure the stability of institutions under their

supervision in addition to those measures that have already been announced. For instance, the UK

Government published a White Paper on 8 July, 2009 (HM Treasury paper ‘‘Reforming Financial
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Markets’’ (CM 7667)) which contained a number of proposals for reforming the UK financial system,

including more stringent capital and liquidity requirements for systemically significant firms,

requirements for banks to develop detailed plans for winding down their businesses and enhanced

regulatory powers for the UK Financial Services Authority. A number of the proposals set out in the
White Paper now form part of the Financial Services Bill that was published on 19 November, 2009

and which is currently going through the UK Parliamentary approval process. In November, 2009,

the UK Financial Services Authority also released the Banking Conduct of Business sourcebook, a set

of rules and guidance that regulate how authorised banks conduct business with their customers,

including rules relating to communications, cancellation rights and information rights of customers.

Recent proposals and measures taken by governmental and regulatory authorities and future

changes in supervision and regulation, in particular in the UK, which are beyond the Group’s

control, could materially affect the Group’s business, the products and services offered or the value of
assets as well as the Group’s operations and result in significant increases in operational costs.

Changes in UK legislation and regulation to address the stability of the financial sector may also

affect the competitive position of the UK banks, including the Group, particularly if such changes are

implemented before international consensus is reached on key issues affecting the industry, for

instance in relation to the UK Financial Services Authority’s proposals on liquidity risk management

(see the risk factor ‘‘The Group is subject to regulatory capital and liquidity requirements that could

limit its operations’’ below for further details). Although the Group works closely with its regulators

and continually monitors the situation, future changes in regulation, fiscal or other policies can be
unpredictable and are beyond the control of the Group. No assurance can be given generally that

laws or regulations will be adopted, enforced or interpreted in a manner that will not have an adverse

effect on the Group’s business. The resolution of a number of issues, including regulatory

investigations and reviews and court cases affecting the UK financial services industry, including the

Group, could have a negative impact on the Group’s results of operations or on its relations with

some of its customers and potential customers.

The Group is subject to regulatory capital and liquidity requirements that could limit its operations

The Group is subject to capital adequacy requirements adopted by the UK Financial Services

Authority for a bank, which provide for a minimum ratio of total capital to risk-adjusted assets both

on a consolidated basis and on a solo-consolidated basis expressed as a percentage. If the Group fails

to maintain its ratios this may result in administrative actions or sanctions against it which may

impact the Group’s ability to fulfil its obligations.

However, in response to the recent financial crises, the UK Financial Services Authority could

impose more stringent capital adequacy requirements, including increasing the minimum regulatory

capital requirements imposed on the Group. For instance, the UK Financial Services Authority has
adopted a supervisory approach in relation to certain UK banks, including the Group, under which

those banks are expected to maintain tier 1 capital in excess of the minimum levels required by

existing UK Financial Services Authority rules. The UK Financial Services Authority is also

consulting on changes to the eligibility criteria for tier 1 capital as well as requirements that may

result in banks increasing the level of regulatory capital held in respect of trading book risks,

implementing the recent amendments to the EU-wide capital adequacy requirements (as set out in the

amended Directive 2006/48/EC and Directive 2006/49/EC, collectively referred to as the ‘‘Capital

Requirements Directive’’).

In December, 2009, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision also published and is currently
consulting on a number of proposals to reform international capital adequacy and liquidity standards

in order to increase resilience in the banking sector from financial and economic stresses. Proposals

include phasing out innovative tier 1 instruments with incentives to redeem and implementing a

leverage ratio on institutions in addition to current risk-based regulatory capital requirements.

Measures are also proposed to promote the building of counter-cyclical capital buffers that may be

drawn upon in stress scenarios, such as limiting the ability of institutions to distribute capital

(dividend payments, discretionary bonus payments, share repurchases) in the event that the

institution’s capital (over and above minimum capital adequacy requirements) fall under prescribed
thresholds, thereby conserving capital in stress scenarios.

On 5 October, 2009, the UK Financial Services Authority published its new liquidity rules which

significantly broaden the scope of the existing liquidity regime and are designed to enhance regulated

firms’ liquidity risk management practices. As part of these reforms, the UK Financial Services

Authority is also expected to gradually implement requirements for financial institutions to hold
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prescribed levels of liquid assets and have in place other sources of liquidity to address the

institution-specific and market-wide liquidity risks that institutions may face in short-term and

prolonged stress scenarios.

These measures could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s results of operations,

financial condition and prospects. There is a risk that changes to the UK capital adequacy regime

may result in increased minimum capital requirements, which could reduce available capital and
thereby affect the Group’s ability to pay dividends, continue organic growth or pursue acquisitions or

other strategic opportunities (unless the Group were to shrink its balance sheet or alternatively raise

additional capital but at increased cost and subject to the prevailing market conditions). In addition,

changes to the eligibility criteria for tier 1 capital may impact the Group’s ability to raise tier 1

capital or the eligibility of existing tier 1 capital resources (although this risk may be mitigated if the

UK Financial Services Authority adopt measures to grandfather the regulatory capital treatment of

existing tier 1 resources that do not comply with any revised criteria).

There is also a risk that implementing and maintaining enhanced liquidity risk management

systems may result in significant costs for the Group, and more stringent requirements to hold liquid

assets and liquidity facilities may materially impact the Group’s lending business as more funds may
be required to acquire or maintain liquidity resources.

In the United Kingdom the Group is responsible for contributing to compensation schemes in respect of banks
and other authorised financial services firms that are unable to meet their obligations to customers

In the United Kingdom, the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (the ‘‘FSCS’’) was

established under FSMA and is the UK’s statutory fund of last resort for customers of authorised

financial services firms. The FSCS can pay compensation to customers if a UK Financial Services

Authority authorised firm is unable, or likely to be unable, to pay claims against it (for instance, an

authorised bank is unable to pay claims by depositors). The FSCS is funded by levies on firms

authorised by the UK Financial Services Authority, including the Group and other members of the
Group.

In the event that the FSCS raises funds from authorised firms, raises those funds more

frequently or significantly increases the levies to be paid by such firms, the associated costs to the
Group may have a material impact on its results of operations or financial condition. The recent

measures taken to protect the depositors of deposit-taking institutions involving the FSCS have

resulted in a significant increase in the levies made by the FSCS on the industry and may do so in

the future if similar measures are required to protect depositors of other institutions.

In addition, regulatory reform initiatives in the UK and internationally may result in further

changes to the FSCS, which could result in additional costs and risks for the Group. For instance,

the UK Government has proposed a consultation on pre-funding the FSCS, which may affect the

profitability of the Group (and other members of the Group required to contribute to the FSCS),

although it has made clear that pre-funding would not be introduced before 2012. Furthermore, the

UK Financial Services Authority has proposed that UK deposit-taking institutions develop systems by
31 December 2010 to enable the institution to produce an aggregated view of each customer’s

eligibility for compensation in the event of a failure (a ‘‘Single Customer View’’), which may require

the Group to incur significant costs arising from the development and implementation of systems and

controls that would enable Single Customer Views to be produced.

To the extent that other jurisdictions where the Group operates have introduced or plan to

introduce similar compensation, contributory or reimbursement schemes, the Group may incur

additional costs and liabilities which may negatively impact its results of operations or financial

condition.

The Banking Act 2009 may adversely affect the Group’s business

The Banking Act 2009 (the ‘‘Act’’) came into force on 21 February, 2009. The Act creates a

special resolution regime (‘‘SRR’’) which provides the Treasury, the Bank of England and the
Financial Services Authority (the ‘‘Authorities’’) with a variety of tools for dealing with UK

institutions which are authorised deposit takers (such as ANTS or Santander UK) which are failing,

and in certain circumstances, their holding companies. The Act replaced the emergency powers

contained in the Banking (Special Provisions) Act 2008 (which powers ceased to be exercisable on

21 February, 2009, when the Act came into force).
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The Act enables the Authorities, in specified circumstances, to: (i) take a bank or a bank

holding company into temporary public ownership (‘‘TPO’’); (ii) transfer all or part of the business of

a bank to a private sector purchaser (‘‘PSP’’); or (iii) transfer all or part of the business of a bank to

a bridge bank owned by the Bank of England (‘‘Bridge Bank’’). The SRR also comprises a new
insolvency procedure and a new administration procedure, each of specific application to banks.

TPO and PSP transfers may be effected via a compulsory transfer of securities in the affected

entity (which includes bonds). PSP and Bridge Bank transfers may be effected via a compulsory
transfer of the affected entity’s assets and liabilities.

SRR transfers are subject to the satisfaction of two general conditions. In summary, the

Financial Services Authority must determine that (i) the bank is failing or likely to fail to meet its
regulatory threshold conditions (within the meaning of section 41(1) of FSMA); and (ii) having regard

to timing and other relevant circumstances, it is not reasonably likely that (ignoring the stabilisation

powers under the Act), action will be taken by or in respect of the bank that will enable the bank to

satisfy the threshold conditions (ignoring for this purpose, Treasury or Bank of England financial

assistance). There are additional trigger conditions which must be satisfied, the nature of which

depends on the nature of the transfer and certain statutory objectives to which the Authorities must

have regard in operating the SRR.

SRR transfers under the Act may impact the rights of transferors and third parties in relation

to the affected institution. Legal or contractual rights which would operate to inhibit the transfer or

which would otherwise be triggered by the transfer (and in certain other circumstances) can be

disregarded and SRR transfers can take effect free from trusts, liabilities or other encumbrances. A
PSP or Bridge Bank transfer may involve a partial transfer of the affected institution’s property

which could lead to the rights and obligations of counterparties of the affected institution being split

between the transferor and transferee entity (although the Act and the Banking Act 2009 (Restrictions

of Partial Property Transfers) Order 2009 do restrict partial property transfers to some extent

including protection such that certain partial property transfers may not provide for the transfer of

some, but not all, of the property, rights and liabilities which are, or form part of, a ‘‘capital market

arrangement’’ (as that expression is currently defined in the Insolvency Act 1986) to which the

relevant institution is a party).

The Act confers wide-ranging ancillary powers on the Authorities to enable SRR transfers and

to ensure the continuity of the transferred business. In particular, the Treasury is given the power to

change the law, either generally or specifically and with immediate or with retrospective effect, if the
Treasury feels it is necessary or desirable in order to make an SRR power more effective. The Act

includes provisions to effect the payment of compensation to transferors under an SRR transfer and

third parties. In general, there is considerable uncertainty about the scope of the powers afforded to

the Authorities under the Act and how the Authorities may choose to exercise them.

If an instrument or order were made under the Act in respect of ANTS or Santander UK, such

instrument or order (as the case may be) may (amongst other things) (i) result in a compulsory

transfer of the Notes and/or other securities or property of ANTS or Santander UK and/or (ii)

impact on the rights of Noteholders and/or result in the nullification or modification of the Terms

and Conditions of the Notes and/or (iii) result in the de-listing of the Notes.

As at the date of this Prospectus, no instruments or orders have been made under the Act in

respect of ANTS or Santander UK and there has been no indication that any such order will be

made, but there can be no assurance that this will not change and/or that Noteholders will not be

adversely affected by any such order if made in the future.

The Group’s business could be affected if its capital is not managed effectively

Effective management of the Group’s capital position is important to its ability to operate its

business, to continue to grow organically and to pursue its strategy. Any future change that limits the

Group’s ability to manage its balance sheet and capital resources effectively or to access funding on

commercially acceptable terms could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial condition

and regulatory capital position.

The Group relies on recruiting, retaining and developing appropriate senior management and skilled personnel

The Group’s continued success depends in part on the continued service of key members of its

management team. The ability to continue to attract, train, motivate and retain highly qualified

professionals is a key element of the Group’s strategy. The successful implementation of the Group’s
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growth strategy depends on the availability of skilled management, both at its head office and at each

of its business units. If the Group or one of its business units or other functions fails to staff their

operations appropriately or loses one or more of its key senior executives and fails to replace them in

a satisfactory and timely manner, its business, financial condition and results of operations, including
control and operational risks, may be adversely affected. Likewise, if the Group fails to attract and

appropriately train, motivate and retain qualified professionals, its business may also be affected.

Risks relating to the Notes

In this context the following specific risks have been identified as areas for focus:

The Issuers and the Guarantor cannot assure a trading market for the Notes will ever develop or be maintained

Each of the Issuers may issue Notes in different series with different terms in amounts that are

to be determined. Such Notes may be unlisted or listed on a recognised stock exchange and there can

be no assurance that an active trading market will develop for any series of Notes. There can also be

no assurance regarding the ability of Noteholders to sell their Notes or the price at which such

holders may be able to sell their Notes. If a trading market were to develop, the Notes could trade at

prices that may be higher or lower than the initial offering price and this may result in a return that

is greater or less than the interest rate on the Notes, depending on many factors, including:

* the Group’s financial results;

* any change in the Issuers’ or the Guarantor’s creditworthiness;

* the market for similar securities;

* the complexity and volatility of the index or formula applicable to the Notes;

* the method of calculating the principal, premium and interest in respect of the Notes;

* the time remaining to the majority of the Notes;

* the outstanding amount of the Notes;

* the redemption features of the Notes;

* the amount of other debt securities linked to the index or formula applicable to the

Notes; and

* the level, direction and volatility of market interest rates generally.

In addition, certain Notes have a more limited trading market and experience more price

volatility because they were designed for specific investment objectives or strategies. There may be a

limited number of buyers when an investor decides to sell such Notes. This may affect the price an

investor receives for such Notes or the ability of an investor to sell such Notes at all.

Risks associated with redemption of the Notes

If the applicable Final Terms specify that the Notes are redeemable at the option of an Issuer,

or are otherwise subject to mandatory redemption, the relevant Issuer may (in the case of optional

redemption) or must (in the case of mandatory redemption) choose to redeem such Notes at times
when prevailing interest rates may be relatively low. Accordingly, an investor generally will not be

able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable security at an effective interest rate as high

as that of the Notes.

The yield to maturity of the Notes may be adversely affected by redemptions by the Issuer

The yield to maturity of each class of Notes will depend mostly on: (i) the amount and timing

of the repayment of principal on the Notes and (ii) the price paid by the Noteholders of each class.

The yield to maturity of the Notes may be adversely affected by a higher or lower than anticipated

rate of redemptions on the Notes.

The Notes are subject to selling and transfer restrictions that may affect the existence and liquidity of any
secondary market in the Notes

The Notes have not been, and will not be, registered under the Securities Act or any other

securities laws. Accordingly, the Notes are subject to certain restrictions on the resale and other

transfer thereof as set forth under ‘‘Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions’’. As
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a result of such restrictions, the Issuers and the Guarantor cannot be certain of the existence of a

secondary market for the Notes or the liquidity of such market if one develops. Consequently, a

Noteholder must be able to bear the economic risk of an investment in such Notes for an indefinite

period of time.

The Issuer and the Guarantor may rely on third parties and the Noteholders may be adversely affected if such

third party fails to perform their obligations

The Issuers and the Guarantor may be a party to contracts with a number of other third parties

that have agreed to perform services in relation to the Notes. For example, a paying agent and the
agent bank have agreed to provide payment and calculation services in connection with the Notes;

and Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have in respect of Bearer Global Notes in NGN form,

agreed, inter alia, to accept such Bearer Global Notes as eligible for settlement and to properly

service the same, and to maintain up to date records in respect of the total amount outstanding of

such Bearer Global Notes in NGN form. In the event that any relevant third party was to fail to

perform its obligations under the respective agreements to which it is a party, the Noteholders may

be adversely affected.

If the United Kingdom joins the European Monetary Union prior to the maturity of the Notes, the Issuers and

the Guarantor cannot assure the Noteholders that this would not adversely affect payments on the Notes

It is possible that prior to the maturity of the Notes the United Kingdom may become a

participating member state in the European economic and monetary union and the euro may become

the lawful currency of the United Kingdom. In that event (i) all amounts payable in respect of any

Notes denominated in pounds sterling may become payable in euro; (ii) applicable provisions of law
may allow or require the Issuers to re-denominate such Notes into euro and take additional measures

in respect of such Notes; and (iii) the introduction of the euro as the lawful currency of the United

Kingdom may result in the disappearance of published or displayed rates for deposits in pounds

sterling used to determine the rates of interest on such notes or changes in the way those rates are

calculated, quoted and published or displayed. It cannot be said with certainty what effect, if any,

adoption of the euro by the United Kingdom would have on investors in the Notes.

Notes where denominations involve integral multiples: definitive Notes

In relation to any issue of Notes which have denominations consisting of a minimum Specified

Denomination plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount, it is possible

that such Notes may be traded in amounts that are not integral multiples of such minimum Specified

Denomination. In such a case a holder who, as a result of trading such amounts, holds an amount

which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the relevant clearing

system at the relevant time may not receive a definitive Note in respect of such holding (should
definitive Notes be printed) and would need to purchase a principal amount of Notes such that its

holding amounts to a Specified Denomination.

If definitive Notes are issued, holders should be aware that definitive Notes which have a

denomination that is not an integral multiple of the minimum Specified Denomination may be illiquid
and difficult to trade.

Risks relating to:

Fixed Rate Notes

Investment in Fixed Rate Notes involves the risk that subsequent changes in the market interest

rates may adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate Notes.

Fixed / Floating Rate Notes

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a

floating rate or vice versa. If the rate converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate, the spread on the
Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may be less favourable than then prevailing spreads on comparable

Floating Rate Notes relating to the same reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any time

may be lower than the interest rates payable on other Notes. If the rate converts from a floating rate

to a fixed rate, the fixed rate may be lower than the then prevailing interest rates payable on the

Notes.
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Inverse Floating Rate Notes

Inverse Floating Rate Notes have an interest rate equal to a fixed rate minus a rate based upon

a reference rate such as the London Interbank Offered Rate (‘‘LIBOR’’). The market value of Inverse
Floating Rate Notes typically is more volatile than the market value of other more conventional

floating rate debt securities based on the same reference rate (and with otherwise comparable terms).

Inverse Floating Rate Notes are more volatile because an increase in the reference rate not only

decreases the interest rate payable on the Notes, but may also reflect an increase in prevailing interest

rates, which may further adversely affect the market value of these Notes.

Capped Floating Rate Notes

Capped Floating Rate Notes usually have an interest rate equal to the sum of a reference rate

such as LIBOR and the specified margin (if any) subject to a maximum specified rate. The maximum

amount of interest payable in respect of these Notes will occur when the sum of the reference rate
and the specified margin (if any) equals the maximum specified rate. Investors in Capped Floating

Rate Notes will therefore not benefit from any increase in the relevant reference rate which, when the

specified margin is added to such reference rate, would otherwise cause such interest rate to exceed

the maximum specified rate. The market value of these Notes would therefore typically fall the closer

the sum of the relevant reference rate and the margin is to the maximum specified rate.

Variable Interest Notes

Notes with variable interest rates can be volatile investments. If they are structured to include

multipliers or other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of those features or other

similar related features, their market value may be more volatile than those for securities that do not
include these features. The investor may receive substantially less or no interest at all on such

Variable Interest Notes.

Notes issued at a substantial discount or premium

The market value of securities issued at a substantial discount or premium from their principal

amount tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for

conventional interest-bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the securities, the

greater the price volatility as compared to conventional interest-bearing securities with comparable

maturities.

Credit Linked Notes, Equity Linked Notes, Index Linked Notes or other Variable Notes

The amount of principal and/or interest payable (if any) in respect of such Notes, and payable
by the Guarantor under its guarantee thereof, is based on the price, value, performance or some

other factor relating to one or more assets or other property (each a ‘‘Reference Asset’’) and/or the

creditworthiness of, performance of obligations by or some other factor relating to, one or more

entities (each a ‘‘Reference Entity’’), and/or the level of a particular index each as indicated in the

applicable Final Terms. With respect to an investment in such Notes, significant risks exist that are

not associated with a conventional fixed rate or floating rate debt security. Such risks may arise from

the fluctuation in the value of the Reference Asset, the creditworthiness of the Reference Entity or

the level of the relevant index.

In addition, an Issuer may (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) be entitled to redeem
such Notes either by payment of a cash amount (‘‘Cash-Settled Notes’’) and/or by physical delivery

of all or part of a Reference Asset or of some other asset or property (‘‘Physically-Settled Notes’’). In

certain circumstances (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms), the cash amount payable on Cash-

Settled Notes, or the value of assets or property deliverable on Physically-Settled Notes, on

redemption of such Notes (whether at maturity or otherwise) may be less than the principal amount

of the Notes together with any accrued interest and may in certain circumstances be zero. Moreover,

each interest-bearing Note may cease to bear interest from the interest payment date immediately

preceding the date of occurrence of the event giving rise to early redemption of the Notes.

In addition, if the formula used to determine any amounts payable in respect of the Notes
contains a multiplier or leverage factor, the effect of any fluctuation in the value of the Reference

Assets, the adjustments of the Reference Entity or level of the indices to which the Notes are linked

or indexed will be magnified. In recent years, values of certain equities, bonds, notes or other

financial instruments, indices and formulae have been volatile and such volatility may be expected in

the future. However, past experience is not necessarily indicative of what may occur in the future.
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The obligations of ANTS are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Guarantor. It should

however be noted that this guarantee extends only to amounts which have become due and payable

in accordance with the terms of the relevant Credit Linked Notes, Equity Linked Notes or other

structured Notes. It is not an assurance that any amount will become due and payable under the
terms of the relevant Note (for example, in certain circumstances, interest and/or principal will cease

to be payable, or the amount payable will be reduced, under the terms of the relevant Note).

Purchasers of such Notes are deemed to have sufficient knowledge, experience and professional

advice to make their own investment decisions and to have undertaken their own legal, financial, tax,

accounting and other business evaluation of the risks and merits of investments in such Notes and

should ensure that they fully understand the risks associated with investments of this nature which

are intended to be sold only to sophisticated investors. Purchasers of Notes are solely responsible for

making their own independent appraisal of and investigation into the business, financial condition,

prospects, creditworthiness, status and affairs of any Reference Entity or Reference Asset and the

level or fluctuation of any indices or formulae.

Investment in Dual Currency Notes may be negatively affected by changes in exchange rates and exchange
controls

With respect to an investment in Dual Currency Notes that are denominated and/or payable in

a Specified Currency, there will be significant risks associated with such an investment, including the

possibility of material changes in the exchange controls by the applicable governments. The Issuers

and the Guarantor have no control over the factors that generally affect these risks, such as

economic, financial and political events and the supply and demand for the applicable currencies.
Moreover, if payments on Dual Currency Notes are determined by reference to a formula containing

a multiplier or leverage factor, the effect of any change in the exchange rates between the applicable

currencies will be magnified. In recent years, exchange rates between certain currencies have been

highly volatile and volatility between such currencies or with other currencies may be expected in the

future. Fluctuations between currencies in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of

fluctuations that may occur in the future. Depreciation of the payment currency would result in a

decrease in the equivalent yield of the Dual Currency Notes, in the equivalent value of the principal

and any premium payable at maturity or earlier redemption of the Dual Currency Notes and
generally, in the equivalent market value of the Dual Currency Notes. Governmental exchange

controls could affect exchange rates and the availability of the payment currency on a required

payment date. Even if there are no exchange controls, it is possible that the payment currency will

not be available on a required payment date due to circumstances beyond an Issuer’s or the

Guarantor’s control.

Subordinated Notes

The Subordinated Issuer may issue Subordinated Notes. The obligations of the Subordinated

Issuer in case of the Subordinated Notes constitute unsecured and subordinated obligations. In the
event of the dissolution, liquidation, insolvency, composition or other proceedings for the avoidance

of insolvency of, or against, the Subordinated Issuer, such obligations will be subordinated to the

claims of all unsubordinated creditors of the Issuers so that in any event no amounts will be payable

under such obligations until the claims of all unsubordinated creditors of the Issuers will have been

satisfied in full. No holder may set off his claims arising under the Subordinated Notes against any

claims of the Issuers. No security of whatever kind is, or will at any time be, provided by the Issuers

or any other person securing rights of the holders of such Subordinated Notes. No subsequent

agreement may limit the subordination or amend the maturity date in respect of the Subordinated
Notes to any earlier date or shorten any applicable notice period. Although Subordinated Notes may

pay a higher rate of interest than comparable Notes which are not subordinated, there is a real risk

that an investor in Subordinated Notes will lose all or some of his investment should the

Subordinated Issuer become insolvent.
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FORM OF THE NOTES

The Notes of each Series will be in either bearer form or registered (or inscribed) form. Bearer

Notes will be issued outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act

(‘‘Regulation S’’) and Registered Notes will be issued both outside the United States in reliance on

the exemption from registration provided by Regulation S and within the United States in reliance on
Rule 144A.

Bearer Notes

Each Tranche of Bearer Notes will be initially represented by either a temporary bearer global

note (a ‘‘Temporary Bearer Global Note’’) or a permanent bearer global note (a ‘‘Permanent Bearer

Global Note’’ and, together with the Temporary Bearer Global Note, the ‘‘Bearer Global Notes’’) as

indicated in the applicable Final Terms, which, in either case, will:

(i) if the Global Notes are intended to be issued in new global note (NGN) form, as stated in

the applicable Final Terms, be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the

Tranche to a common safekeeper for Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (Euroclear) and

Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (Clearstream, Luxembourg); and

(ii) if the Global Notes are not intended to be issued in NGN form, be delivered on or prior

to the original issue date of the Tranche to a common depositary for Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Whilst any Bearer Note is represented by a Temporary Bearer Global Note, payments of

principal, interest (if any) and any other amount payable in respect of the Notes due prior to the

Exchange Date (as defined below) will be made against presentation of the Temporary Bearer Global

Note (if the Temporary Global Note is not intended to be issued in NGN form) only to the extent

that certification (in a form to be provided) to the effect that the beneficial owners of interests in

such Bearer Note are not U.S. persons or persons who have purchased for resale to any U.S. person,

as required by U.S. Treasury regulations, has been received by Euroclear and/or Clearstream,

Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a like
certification (based on the certifications it has received) to the Principal Paying Agent.

In respect of each Tranche of Notes in respect of which a Temporary Bearer Global Note is

issued, on and after the date (the ‘‘Exchange Date’’) which is 40 days after the Temporary Bearer

Global Note is issued, interests in such Temporary Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable (free of

charge) upon a request as described therein for either:

(i) interests in a Permanent Bearer Global Note of the same Series, or

(ii) definitive Bearer Notes of the same Series with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons

and talons attached (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms and subject, in the case of

definitive Bearer Notes, to such notice period as is specified in the applicable Final Terms).

In each case such exchange shall be made against certification of beneficial ownership as

described above, unless such certification has already been given. Purchasers in the United States and
certain U.S. persons will not be able to receive definitive Bearer Notes. The holder of a Temporary

Bearer Global Note will not be entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount

due on or after the Exchange Date unless, upon due presentation and certification, exchange of the

Temporary Bearer Global Note for an interest in a Permanent Bearer Global Note or for definitive

Bearer Notes is improperly withheld or refused.

Payments of principal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Bearer Global

Note will be made through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg against presentation or

surrender (as the case may be) of the Permanent Bearer Global Note (if the Permanent Global Note

is not intended to be issued in NGN form) without any requirement for certification.

The applicable Final Terms will specify that a Permanent Bearer Global Note will be
exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for definitive Bearer Notes with, where

applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached upon either:

(1) not less than 60 days’ written notice from Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg

(acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Bearer Global

Note) to the Principal Paying Agent, or

(2) only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event (as defined below).
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No definitive Bearer Notes will be sent by post or otherwise delivered to any location in the

United States or its possessions in connection with such exchange.

For these purposes, ‘‘Exchange Event’’ means that:

(1) an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 10a and 10b) has occurred and is continuing,

(2) the relevant Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg

have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of

holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease

business or have in fact done so and, in any such case, no alternative clearing system
satisfactory to the relevant Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent and the Trustee is available,

or

(3) the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor has or will become subject to adverse tax

consequences which would not be suffered were the Notes represented by the Permanent

Bearer Global Note in definitive form.

The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition

14 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear and/

or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such

Permanent Bearer Global Note) or the Trustee may give notice to the Principal Paying Agent

requesting exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (3)

above, the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor may also give notice to the Principal Paying Agent
requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 45 days after the date of receipt of

the first relevant notice by the Principal Paying Agent.

The following legend will appear on all Bearer Notes which have an original maturity of more

than 365 days and on all Receipts, Talons and Coupons relating to such Notes:

‘‘ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE

SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS,

INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.’’

The sections referred to provide that United States persons, with certain exceptions, will not be

entitled to deduct any loss on Bearer Notes, Receipts, Talons and Coupons and will not be entitled

to capital gains treatment of any gain on any sale, disposition, redemption or payment of principal in

respect of such Notes, Receipts, Talons and Coupons.

The term ‘‘United States person’’, as used in this paragraph and in the preceding paragraph, has
the meaning set forth in the Internal Revenue Code and the U.S. Treasury regulations thereunder.

Notes which are represented by a Bearer Global Note will only be transferable in accordance
with the rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the

case may be.

Bearer Notes will not be issued in the Australian domestic capital markets.

Registered Notes

The following section does not apply to Australian Domestic Notes.

Registered Notes may be offered and sold in reliance on Regulation S or in reliance on

Rule 144A.

Registered Notes offered and sold in reliance on Regulation S may only be offered and sold to

non-U.S. persons outside the United States and will initially be represented by a global note in

registered form, without receipts, interest coupons or talons (a ‘‘Regulation S Global Note’’) which

will be deposited with a common depositary, common safekeeper or depositary, as the case may be,

for, and registered in the name of a common nominee or nominee of, Euroclear and Clearstream,

Luxembourg or such other clearing system as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the

relevant Dealer and specified in the Final Terms, or in the name of a nominee of the common
safekeeper. Prior to expiry of the Distribution Compliance Period (as defined in ‘‘Terms and

Conditions of the Notes’’) applicable to each Tranche of Notes, beneficial interests in a Regulation S

Global Note may not be offered or sold to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person save as

otherwise provided in Condition 2 and may not be held otherwise than through Euroclear or

Clearstream, Luxembourg (or such other clearing system as may be agreed between the relevant
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Issuer and the relvant Dealer and specified in the Final Terms) and such Regulation S Global Note

will bear a legend regarding such restrictions on transfer.

Registered Notes offered and sold in reliance on Rule 144A may only be offered and sold in the

United States or to U.S. persons in private transactions to ‘‘qualified institutional buyers’’ within the

meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act (‘‘QIBs’’) and will be represented by a global note in

registered form, without receipts, interest coupons or talons (a ‘‘Rule 144A Global Note’’ and,

together with a Regulation S Global Note, the ‘‘Registered Global Notes’’) which will be deposited

with a custodian for, and registered in the name of a nominee of, The Depository Trust Company

(‘‘DTC’’).

Canadian Notes will be represented by a global note in registered form, without receipts, interest

coupons or talons, which will be deposited with a custodian for, and registered in the name of a

nominee of, CDS.

Persons holding beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be entitled or required, as

the case may be, under the circumstances described below, to receive physical delivery of definitive

Notes in registered form.

The Rule 144A Global Note will be subject to certain restrictions on transfer set forth therein
and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions.

Payments of principal, interest and any other amount in respect of the Registered Global Notes

will, in the absence of provision to the contrary, be made to the person(s) shown on the Register on

the relevant Record Date (each as defined in Condition 6(d)) as the registered holder(s) of the

Registered Global Notes. None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee, any Paying Agent,
the Canadian Agent and the Registrar will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the

records relating to or payments or deliveries made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the

Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such

beneficial ownership interests.

Payments of principal, interest or any other amount in respect of the Registered Notes in
definitive form will, in the absence of provision to the contrary, be made to the persons shown on the

Register on the relevant Record Date (as defined in Condition 6(d)) immediately preceding the due

date for payment in the manner provided in that Condition.

Interests in a Registered Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in

part, for definitive Registered Notes without receipts, interest coupons or talons attached only upon
the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, ‘‘Exchange Event’’ means that:

(1) an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 10(a) and 10(b)) has occurred and is

continuing;

(2) in the case of Notes represented by a Rule 144A Global Note only, DTC has notified the

relevant Issuer that it is unwilling or unable to continue to act as depository for the Notes

and no alternative clearing system satisfactory to the relevant Issuer, the Principal Paying

Agent, the Registrar and the Trustee is available;

(3) in the case of Notes represented by a Rule 144A Global Note only, DTC has ceased to

constitute a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act or in the case of Notes

represented by a Regulation S Global Note only, the relevant Issuer has been notified that

both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a

continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or

have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and, in

any such case, no alternative clearing system satisfactory to the relevant Issuer, the

Principal Paying Agent, the Registrar and the Trustee is available;

(4) in the case of Canadian Notes, (A) CDS has notified the relevant Issuer that it is unwilling

or unable to continue to act as depository for the Canadian Notes; (B) CDS ceases to be

a recognised clearing agency under the Securities Act (Ontario) or a self-regulatory

organisation under the Securities Act (Québec) or other applicable Canadian securities

legislation; or (C) CDS ceases to be eligible to be a depository and a successor clearing
system or depository for the Canadian Notes, as the case may be, satisfactory to the

relevant Issuer, the Registrar, the Canadian Agent and the Trustee is not appointed by the

relevant Issuer within 90 days after the relevant Issuer receives such notice or becomes

aware of such unwillingness, inability, cessation or ineligibility; or
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(5) the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor has or will become subject to adverse tax

consequences which would not be suffered were the Notes represented by the Registered

Global Note in definitive form.

The relevant Issuer will promptly give notice to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition
14 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, DTC,

Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, CDS (each acting on the instructions of any holder of an

interest in such Registered Global Note) or the Trustee may give notice to the Registrar requesting

exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (4) above, the

relevant Issuer or the Guarantor may also give notice to the Registrar requesting exchange. Any such

exchange shall occur not later than 10 days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the

Registrar.

Australian Domestic Notes

Australian Domestic Notes will be issued in registered, uncertificated (or inscribed) form. Such

Notes will be constituted by the Deed Poll and will take the form of entries on a register to be

maintained by the Australian Registrar, all as more fully described in the applicable Final Terms.

Transfer of Interests

Interests in a Registered Global Note may, subject to compliance with all applicable restrictions,

be transferred to a person who wishes to hold such interest in another Registered Global Note. No

beneficial owner of an interest in a Registered Global Note will be able to transfer such interest,

except in accordance with the applicable procedures of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg

and CDS, in each case to the extent applicable. Registered Notes are also subject to the restrictions on
transfer set forth therein and will bear a legend regarding such restrictions, see ‘‘Subscription and Sale

and Transfer and Selling Restrictions’’.

General

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under ‘‘Terms and Conditions of the Notes’’),
the Principal Paying Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Notes is issued which is

intended to form a single Series with an existing Tranche of Notes, the Notes of such further Tranche

shall be assigned a common code and ISIN and, where applicable, a CUSIP and CINS number which

are different from the common code, ISIN, CUSIP and CINS assigned to Notes of any other

Tranche of the same Series until at least the expiry of the Distribution Compliance Period (as defined

in ‘‘Terms and Conditions of the Notes’’) applicable to the Notes of such Tranche.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Bearer Global Note or a Regulation S

Global Note held on behalf of or, as the case may be, registered in the name of a common nominee

for, Euroclear, and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (or, as the case may be, a nominee for the common
safekeeper), each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the time

being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular

nominal amount of such Notes (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by

Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the

account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest

error) shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee, the Paying Agents, the

Transfer Agents and the Registrar as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all

purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of
such Notes, for which purpose the bearer of the relevant Bearer Global Note or the registered holder

of the relevant Regulation S Global Note shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the

Trustee, the Paying Agents, the Transfer Agents and the Registrar as the holder of such nominal

amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global Note and

the expressions ‘‘Noteholder’’ and ‘‘holder of Notes’’ and related expressions shall be construed

accordingly.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Regulation S Global Note registered in the

name of CDS or its nominee, each person who is for the time being shown in the records of CDS or
such nominee as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes shall be treated by the

relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of

such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on, or

voting, giving consents or making requests in respect of, such nominal amount of such Notes, for

which purpose the registered holder of the relevant Regulation S Global Note shall be treated by the
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relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of

such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of such Regulation S Global Note; and the

expressions ‘‘Noteholder’’ and ‘‘holder of Notes’’ and related expressions shall be construed

accordingly.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Rule 144A Global Note registered in the

name of DTC or its nominee, each person who is for the time being shown in the records of DTC or
such nominee as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes shall be treated by the

relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee, the Paying Agents, the Registrar and the Transfer Agents

as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the

payment of principal or interest on, or voting, giving consents or making requests in respect of, such

nominal amount of such Notes, for which purpose DTC or, in the case of payments only, its

nominee shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee, the Principal Paying

Agent, the Paying Agents, the Registrar and the Transfer Agents as the holder of such nominal

amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of such Rule 144A Global Note;
and the expressions ‘‘Noteholder’’ and ‘‘holder of Notes’’ and related expressions shall be construed

accordingly.

Any reference herein to DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or CDS shall, whenever

the context so permits, except in relation to Notes issued in NGN form or held under the New

Safekeeping Structure for registered global securities, be deemed to include a reference to any

successor operator and/or successor clearing system and/or any additional or alternative clearing

system specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Any reference herein to the common depositary, depositary or, as applicable, common

safekeeper shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include references to any successor

common depositary, depositary or, as applicable, common safekeeper or any additional or alternative

common depositary, depositary or, as applicable, common safekeeper as is approved by the relevant

Issuer, the Guarantor, the Principal Paying Agent (and, in the case of Canadian Notes, the Canadian
Agent), the Registrar and the Trustee.

Any reference herein to the nominee or, as applicable, common nominee shall, whenever the

context so permits, be deemed to include references to any successor nominee or, as applicable,
common nominee or any additional or alternative nominee or, as applicable, common nominee as is

approved by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Principal Paying Agent (and, in the case of

Canadian Notes, the Canadian Agent), the Registrar and the Trustee.
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Form of Final Terms

Set out below is the form of Final Terms which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes

issued under the Programme with a denomination of at least EUR 50,000 (or its equivalent in another

currency) pursuant to this Prospectus.

[Date]

PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE PROSPECTUS AND THE RISK FACTORS IN THE

PROSPECTUS. EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN FINANCIAL AND LEGAL

ADVISORS ABOUT THE RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH AN INVESTMENT IN THE NOTES

AND THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE NOTES IN LIGHT OF THEIR

PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES.

[ABBEY NATIONAL TREASURY SERVICES plc

/SANTANDER UK plc]

Issue of [Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]

[Guaranteed by Santander UK plc]

under the U.S.$20,000,000,000

Euro Medium Term Note Programme

PART A – CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and
Conditions (the ‘‘Conditions’’) set forth in the Prospectus dated [date] [and the supplement[s] to it

dated [date(s)]] which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus

Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the ‘‘Prospectus Directive’’). This document constitutes the Final

Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and

must be read in conjunction with the Prospectus[, as supplemented]. Full information on the Issuer[,

the Guarantor] and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these

Final Terms and the Prospectus[, as supplemented]. The Prospectus [and the supplement[s] to it] is

[are] available for viewing at, and copies may be obtained from, the registered office of the Issuer
[and the Guarantor].

The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased

was issued under a Prospectus (or, if relevant, an Information Memorandum) with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and

Conditions (the ‘‘Conditions’’) set forth in the Prospectus/[Information Memorandum] dated [original

date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date(s)]]. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the

Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/
EC) (the ‘‘Prospectus Directive’’) and must be read in conjunction with the Prospectus dated [current

date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date(s)]] which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for

the purposes of the Prospectus Directive, save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from

the Prospectus/[Information Memorandum] dated [original date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated

[date(s)]] and are attached hereto. Full information on the Issuer[, the Guarantor] and the offer of

the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms, the Prospectus

dated [current date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date(s)]] and the Prospectus/[Information

Memorandum] dated [original date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date(s)]]. Copies of such
Information Memoranda and Prospectus [and the supplement[s] to [it] [them] are available for

viewing, and copies may be obtained from, the registered office of the Issuer [and the Guarantor].

[Include the following where the issue is Australian Domestic Notes:

The Issuer is not a bank which is authorised under the Banking Act 1959 of the Commonwealth

of Australia. The Notes are not the obligations of any government and in particular, are not

guaranteed by the Commonwealth of Australia.]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as ‘‘Not Applicable’’ (N/A). Note that the

numbering should remain as set out below, even if ‘‘Not Applicable’’ is indicated for individual

paragraphs or sub-paragraphs. Italics denote guidance for completing the Final Terms.]

[When completing any Final Terms or adding any other final terms or information consideration

should be given as to whether such terms or information constitute ‘‘significant new factors’’ and
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consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus

Directive.]

1. (i) Issuer: [ ]

(ii) Designated Branch (if Abbey
National Treasury Services plc is
the Issuer):

[Insert branch/Not Applicable]

(iii) Guarantor: [Santander UK plc/Not Applicable]

2. (i) Series Number: [ ]

(ii) Tranche Number: [ ]

(If fungible with an existing Series, insert details of
that Series, including the date on which the Notes
become fungible)

3. Specified Currency or Currencies: [ ]

4. Nominal Amount:

(i) Tranche: [ ]

(ii) Series: [ ]

5. Issue Price of Tranche: [ ] per cent. of the Nominal Amount [plus accrued
interest from [insert date] (if applicable)]

6. (i) Specified Denominations:
(in the case of Registered Notes,
this means the minimum integral
amount in which transfers can be
made)

[ ]
[ ]
(Note – where multiple denominations above A50,000
or equivalent are being used the following sample
wording should be followed:
‘‘A50,000 and integral multiples of A1,000 in excess
thereof up to and including A99,000. No Notes in
definitive form will be issued with a denomination above
A99,000.’’1)
[In respect of issues of Australian Domestic Notes, the
following wording should be used:

‘‘A$[ ] and multiples thereof, subject to a minimum
aggregate consideration of A$500,000 per offeree or
the offer not otherwise requiring disclosure to investors
under Parts 6D.2 or 7.9 of the Corporations Act of
Australia and the issue complying with the Bank
Exemption Order No. 82 promulgated under the
Banking Act 1959 of the Commonwealth of Australia
(which requires all offers and any transfers which occur
in Australia to be for a consideration of at least
A$500,000)’’]

(ii) Calculation Amount
(Applicable to Notes in definitive
form)

[ ]
(If only one Specified Denomination, insert the
Specified Denomination.
If more than one Specified Denomination, insert the
highest common factor. Note: There must be a common
factor in the case of two or more Specified
Denominations.)

7. (i) Issue Date: [ ]

(ii) Interest Commencement Date (if
different from the Issue Date):

[Specify date/Not Applicable]

8. Maturity Date: [Fixed Rate/any other note other than a Floating Rate
Note — specify date
Floating Rate — Interest Payment Date falling in or
nearest to [specify month and year/specify other]]

9. Interest Basis: [Fixed Rate]
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[Floating Rate]
[Zero Coupon/Discount]
[Non-Interest Bearing]
[Index Linked Interest]
[Credit Linked Interest]
[Equity Linked Interest]
[Variable Interest]
[specify other]
(further particulars specified below)

10. Redemption/Payment Basis: [Redemption at par]
[Index Linked Redemption]
[Credit Linked Redemption]
[Equity Linked Redemption]
[Variable Redemption]
[Dual Currency]
[Partly-Paid]
[Instalment]
[specify other]

11. Change of Interest Basis or Redemption/
Payment Basis:

[Specify details of any provision for change of Notes
into another Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment
Basis]

12. Put/Call Options: [Investor Put]
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below)]

13. Date of [Board] approval for issuance of
Notes [and Guarantee] obtained:

[ ] [and [ ], respectively]

(N.B.: Only relevant where Board (or similar)
authorisation is required for the particular tranche of
Notes or related Guarantee)

14. Status of the Notes: [Senior/Subordinated]

15. Method of distribution: [Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

16. Fixed Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Rate(s) of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/ semi-
annually/quarterly] in arrear]

(If payable other than annually consider amending
Condition 5)

(ii) Interest Payment Date(s): [ ] in each year

(iii) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other]

(iv) Business Day(s): [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

(v) Fixed Coupon Amount(s):
(Applicable to Notes in definitive
form)

[ ] per Calculation Amount

(vi) Broken Amount(s):
(Applicable to Notes in definitive
form)

[Insert particulars of any initial or final broken interest
amounts per Calculation Amount which do not
correspond with the Fixed Coupon Amount[(s)]]
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(vii) Day Count Fraction: [30/360 [adjusted/unadjusted] or Actual/Actual
(ICMA) [adjusted/unadjusted] or RBA Bond Basis or
specify other]

(N.B.: if interest is not payable on a regular basis (for
example, if there are Broken Amounts specified)
Actual/Actual (ICMA) may not be a suitable Day
Count Fraction)

(viii) Determination Date(s): [ ] in each year

[insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring issue
date or maturity date in the case of a long or short first
or last coupon] (This will need to be amended in the
case of regular interest payment dates which are not of
equal durations)

(N.B.: Only relevant to Notes where Day Count
Fraction is Actual/Actual (ICMA))

(ix) Other terms relating to the
method of calculating interest for
Fixed Rate Notes:

[Not Applicable/Give details]

17. Floating Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Interest Period(s)/
Interest Payment Dates:

[ ]

(ii) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/Floating Rate Convention/
specify other]

(iii) Business Day(s): [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

(iv) Manner in which the Rate of
Interest and Interest Amount is
to be determined:

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/
Bank Bill Rate Determination/specify other]

(v) Screen Rate Determination:

(A) Reference Rate: [ ]

(Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although
additional information is required if other, including
fallback provisions in the Agency Agreement)

(B) Interest Determination
Date(s):

[ ]

(Second London business day prior to the start of each
Interest Period if LIBOR other than sterling, euro
LIBOR or EURIBOR), first day of each Interest
Period if sterling LIBOR and the second TARGET2
Settlement Day prior to the start of each Interest
Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)

(C) Relevant Screen Page: [ ]

(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBOR01
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or
amend the fallback provisions appropriately)

(vi) ISDA Determination:

(A) Floating Rate Option: [ ]

(B) Designated Maturity: [ ]
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(C) Reset Date: [ ]

(vii) Margin(s): [plus/minus] [ ] per cent. per annum

(viii) Minimum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum

(ix) Maximum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum

(x) Day Count Fraction: [Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/Actual (ICMA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)
Actual/360
30/360
30E/360
30E/360 (ISDA)
Specify other]
(See Condition 5 for options)
[adjusted/unadjusted]

(xi) Determination Date(s): [ ]

(xii) Fall back provisions, rounding
provisions and any other terms
relating to the method of
calculating interest on Floating
Rate Notes, if different from
those set out in the Conditions:

[ ]

18. Zero Coupon/Discount Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Stated Yield: [ ] per cent. per annum

(ii) Issue Price: [ ]

(iii) Any other formula/basis of
determining amount payable: [ ]

(Consider applicable Day Count Fraction if non U.S.
dollar denominated)

(iv) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other]

(v) Business Day(s): [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

(vi) Day Count Fraction in relation
to Early Redemption Amounts
and late payment:

[Conditions 7(e)(ii) and 7(j)(ii) apply/specify other]

19. Non-Interest Bearing Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other]

(ii) Business Day(s): [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

20. Variable Interest Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]
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(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Index/Formula/Variable: [give or annex details]

(ii) Provisions for determining
coupon where calculated by
reference to Index and/or
Formula and/or other variable:

[ ]

(iii) Provisions for determining
coupon where calculation by
reference to Index and/or
Formula and/or other variable is
impossible or impracticable:

[need to include a description of market disruption or
settlement disruption events and adjustment provisions]

(iv) Interest Period(s)/
Interest Payment Dates:

[ ]

(v) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/Floating Rate Convention/
specify other]

(vi) Business Day: [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

(vii) Minimum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum

(viii) Maximum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum

(ix) Day Count Fraction: [ ] [adjusted/unadjusted]

(x) Determination Date(s): [ ]

21. Dual Currency Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Rate of Exchange/method of
calculating Rate of Exchange:

[give or annex details]

(ii) Provisions applicable where
calculation by reference to Rate
of Exchange is impossible or
impracticable:

[need to include a description of market disruption or
settlement disruption events and adjustment provisions]

(iii) Person at whose option Specified
Currency(ies) is/are payable:

[ ]

(iv) Business Day: [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22. Issuer Call [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s): [ ]

(ii) Optional Redemption Amount(s)
and method, if any, of calculation
of such amount(s):

[[The outstanding aggregate nominal amount of
Notes in [insert a currency i.e. HKD]] (if Notes are
represented by a Global Note), [ ] per Calculation
Amount (if Notes are in definitive form)/specify other/
See Appendix]
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(iii) If redeemable in part:

(1) Minimum Redemption
Amount:

[[ ] (if Notes are represented by a Global Note),
[ ] per Calculation Amount (if Notes are in
definitive form)/specify other/See Appendix]

(2) Maximum Redemption
Amount:

[[ ] (if Notes are represented by a Global Note),
[ ] per Calculation Amount (if Notes are in
definitive form)/specify other/See Appendix]

(iv) Notice period (if other than as set
out in the Conditions):

[ ]

(N.B.: If setting notice periods which are different to
those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised
to consider the practicalities of distribution of
information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other
notice requirements which may apply, for example, as
between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)

23. Investor Put [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s): [ ]

(ii) Optional Redemption Amount(s)
and method, if any, of calculation
of such amount(s):

[[The outstanding aggregate nominal amount of
Notes in [insert a currency i.e. HKD]] (if Notes are
represented by a Global Note), [ ] per Calculation
Amount (if Notes are in definitive form)/specify other/
See Appendix]

(iii) Notice period (if other than as set
out in the Conditions):

[ ]

(N.B.: If setting notice periods which are different to
those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised
to consider the practicalities of distribution of
information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other
notice requirements which may apply, for example, as
between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)

24. Final Redemption Amount: [[The outstanding aggregate nominal amount of
Notes in [insert a currency i.e. HKD]] (if Notes are
represented by a Global Note), [ ] per Calculation
Amount (if Notes are in definitive form)/specify other/
See Appendix]

In the case of a Variable Redemption
Note:

(i) Index/Formula/Variable: [give or annex details]

(ii) Provisions for determining Final
Redemption Amount where
calculated by reference to Index
and/or Formula and/or other
variable:

[ ]

(iii) Determination Date: [ ]

(iv) Provisions for determining Final
Redemption Amount where
calculation by reference to Index
and/or Formula and/or other
variable is impossible or

[ ]
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impracticable or otherwise
disrupted:

(v) Minimum Final Redemption
Amount:

[[ ] (if Notes are represented by a Global Note),
[ ] per Calculation Amount (if Notes are in
definitive form)/specify other/See Appendix]

(vi) Maximum Final Redemption
Amount:

[[ ] (if Notes are represented by a Global Note),
[ ] per Calculation Amount (if Notes are in
definitive form)/specify other/See Appendix]

25. Early Redemption Amount payable on
redemption for taxation reasons or on
event of default and/or the method of
calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in Condition
7(f)):

[ ]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

26. Form of Notes: [Bearer Notes:

Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for a
Permanent Bearer Global Note which is
exchangeable for definitive Bearer Notes [on 60 days’
notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange
Event at the expense of the Issuer]].

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Bearer Notes on and after the Exchange
Date.]

[Permanent Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Bearer Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at
any time/only upon an Exchange Event at the
expense of the Issuer]].

(Ensure that this is consistent with the wording in the
‘‘Form of the Notes’’ section in the Prospectus and the
Notes themselves. N.B.: The exchange upon notice
option should not be expressed to be applicable if the
Specified Denomination of the Notes in paragraph 6
includes language substantially to the following effect:
‘‘A50,000 and integral multiples of A1,000 in excess
thereof up to and including A99,000.’’ Furthermore,
such Specified Denomination construction is not
permitted in relation to any issue of Notes which is to
be represented on issue by Temporary Global Note
exchangeable for Definitive Notes.)

[Registered Notes:

Regulation S Global Note ([ ] of the Nominal
Amount registered in the name of a nominee for [a
common despositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg/a common safekeeper for Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg/CDS])/Rule 144A Global
Note ([ ] of the Nominal Amount) registered in the
name of a nominee for DTC]

[Australian Domestic Notes]

27. New Global Note: [Yes/No]

28. Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Bearer Notes
(and dates on which such Talons mature):

[Yes/No If yes, give details]

29. Details relating to Partly-Paid Notes: [Not Applicable/give details]
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amount of each payment comprising the
Issue Price and date on which each
payment is to be made and consequences
of failure to pay, including any right of
the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and interest
due on late payment:

(N.B.: new forms of Global Note may be required for
Partly-Paid issues)

30. Details relating to Instalment Notes:

Instalment Amount: [Not Applicable/give details]

Instalment Date(s): [Not Applicable/give details]

31. Redenomination: Redenomination [not] applicable

(if Redenomination is applicable, specify the terms of
Redenomination in an Annex to the Final Terms)

32. Other terms or special conditions: [Not Applicable/give details]

(When adding any other final terms consideration
should be given as to whether such terms constitute
‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the
need for a supplement to the Prospectus under Article
16 of the Prospectus Directive)

(consider including a term providing for tax
certification if required to enable interest to be paid
gross by issuers.)

33. Calculation Agent: [insert name and address]

34. Determination Agent: [Not Applicable/give details]

DISTRIBUTION

35. (i) If syndicated, names of
Managers:

[Not Applicable/give names]
(If the Notes are derivative securities to which Annex
XII of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies,
include names of entities agreeing to underwrite the
issue on a firm commitment basis and names of the
entities agreeing to place the issue without a firm
commitment or on a ‘‘best efforts’’ basis if such entities
are not the same as the Managers.)

(ii) Date of Subscription Agreement: [ ]
(The above is only relevant if the Notes are derivative
securities to which Annex XII of the Prospectus
Directive Regulation applies.)

(iii) Stabilising Manager (if any): [Not Applicable/give name]

36. If non-syndicated, name of relevant
Dealer:

[N.B.: Specify ‘‘Not Applicable’’ if the Notes are
Australian Domestic Notes.] [ ]

37. U.S. Selling Restrictions: [Reg. S. Compliance Category 2; TEFRA D/TEFRA
C/TEFRA not applicable]

38. Additional selling restrictions: [Not Applicable/give details]

PURPOSE OF FINAL TERMS

These Final Terms comprise the final terms for issue [and] [public offer in the Public Offer

Jurisdictions] [and] [admission to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Regulated Market and
listing on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority] of the Notes described herein pursuant to the

U.S.$20,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme of Abbey National Treasury Services plc

and Santander UK plc.
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RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer [and the Guarantor] accept[s] responsibility for the information contained in these

Final Terms. [[ ] has been extracted from [ ]. The Issuer [and the Guarantor each] confirm[s] that
such information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as [they are / it is] aware and is/are

able to ascertain from information published by [ ], no facts have been omitted which would render

the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading].

Signed on behalf of the Issuer [and the Guarantor]:

By: ..........................................

Duly authorised
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PART B – OTHER INFORMATION

1. LISTING

(i) Listing and Admission to trading: [Application has been made by the Issuer (or on its

behalf) for the Notes to be admitted to trading on the

London Stock Exchange’s Regulated Market and

listing on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority

with effect from [on or about [the Issue Date]].] [Not

Applicable.]

[Where documenting a fungible issue, need to include that

original Notes are aleady admitted to trading.]

(ii) Estimate of total expenses related

to admission to trading:

[ ]

2. RATINGS

Ratings: The Notes are expected to have the following ratings:

[S & P: [ ]]

[Moody’s: [ ]]

[[Other]: [ ]]

(The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated

to Notes of the type being issued under the Programme

generally or, where the issue has been specifically rated,

that rating.)

3. INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

[Save for any fees payable to the Dealer[s], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in
the issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer. (Amend as appropriate if there are

other interests)]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters

described constitute ‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to

the Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

4. REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

(i) Reasons for the offer [ ]

(ii) Estimated net proceeds: [ ]

(iii) Estimated total expenses: [ ]

(If the Notes are derivative securities to which Annex XII
of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies it is only
necessary to include disclosure of net proceeds and total
expenses at (ii) and (iii) above where disclosure is
included at (i) above.)

5. YIELD (Fixed Rate Notes only)

Indication of yield: [ ]

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of

the Issue Price. It is not an indication of future yield.

6. PERFORMANCE OF INDEX/FORMULA/OTHER VARIABLE, EXPLANATION OF

EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE UNDERLYING (Variable Notes only)

[Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula/

other variable can be obtained.]

[Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and a description if

composed by the Issuer and if the index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of

where the information about the index can be obtained.
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[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XII of

the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]

[N.B. Where an issue of Equity Linked Notes is to be redeemed by physical delivery of all or part

of a Reference Asset and such Reference Asset is not listed on a regulated market, the Issuer will

supplement the Prospectus to include any additional information about the Reference Asset that is

required to enable the Issuer to comply with its disclosure obligations.]

[(When completing the above paragraphs, consideration should be given as to whether such matters

described constitute ‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to

the Offering Circular under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

The Issuer [intends to provide post-issuance information [specify what information will be

reported and where it can be obtained]] [does not intend to provide post-issuance information].

(N.B. This paragraph 6 only applies if the Notes are derivative securities to which Annex XII of

the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies.)

7. PERFORMANCE OF RATE[S] OF EXCHANGE (Dual Currency Notes only)

[Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the relevant rates

can be obtained.]

[(When completing this paragraph, consideration should be given as to whether such matters

described constitute ‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to

the Offering Circular under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

(N.B. This paragraph 7 only applies if the Notes are derivative securities to which Annex XII of

the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies.)

8. OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

(i) Intended to be held in a manner

which would allow Eurosystem
eligibility:

[Yes/No]

[Note that the designation ‘‘yes’’ simply means that the

Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited with one

of the ICSDs as common safekeeper [and registered in

the name of a nominee of one of the ICSDs acting as

common safekeeper, that is held under the New

Safekeeping Structure for registered global securities]

[include this text for Registered Notes which are to be

held under the NSS.] and does not necessarily mean that
the Notes will be recognised as eligible collateral for

Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit

operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue or at

any or all times during their life. Such recognition will

depend upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility

criteria.]

(include this text if ‘‘yes’’ selected in which case Bearer

Notes must be issued in NGN form.)

(ii) ISIN Code: [ ]

(iii) Common Code: [ ]

(insert here any other relevant codes

such as CUSIP and CINS numbers)

(iv) Any clearing system(s) other than

Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. and

Clearstream Banking, société

anonyme and the relevant

identification number(s):

[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]

(v) Delivery: Delivery [against/free of] payment

(vi) Names and addresses of additional

Paying Agent(s) (if any):

[ ]
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Form of Final Terms

Set out below is the form of Final Terms which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes

issued under the Programme pursuant to this Prospectus with a denomination of less than EUR 50,000

(or its equivalent in another currency).

[Date]

PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE PROSPECTUS AND THE RISK FACTORS IN THE

PROSPECTUS. EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN FINANCIAL

AND LEGAL ADVISORS ABOUT THE RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH AN INVESTMENT IN

THE NOTES AND THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE NOTES IN LIGHT OF

THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES.

[ABBEY NATIONAL TREASURY SERVICES

/SANTANDER UK plc]

Issue of [Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]

[Guaranteed by Santander UK plc]

under the U.S.$20,000,000,000

Euro Medium Term Note Programme

[The Prospectus referred to below (as completed by these Final Terms) has been prepared on the
basis that, except as provided in sub-paragraph (ii) below, any offer of Notes in any Member State of

the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (2003/71/EC) (each, a

Relevant Member State) will be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as

implemented in that Relevant Member State, from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers

of the Notes. Accordingly any person making or intending to make an offer of the Notes may only

do so:

(i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a

prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus

pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer; or

(ii) in those Public Offer Jurisdictions mentioned in Paragraph 35 of Part A below, provided such

person is one of the persons mentioned in Paragraph 35 of Part A below and that such offer is

made during the Offer Period specified for such purpose therein.

Neither the Issuer nor any Dealer has authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of

Notes in any other circumstances].1

[The Prospectus referred to below (as completed by these Final Terms) has been prepared on the

basis that any offer of Notes in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has

implemented the Prospectus Directive (2003/71/EC) (each, a Relevant Member State) will be made

pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member

State, from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of the Notes. Accordingly any person

making or intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of the Notes may only do so

in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus

pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16
of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer. Neither the Issuer nor any Dealer

has authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in any other circumstances].2

PART A – CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and

Conditions (the ‘‘Conditions’’) set forth in the Prospectus dated [date] [and the supplement[s] to it

dated [date(s)]] which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus
Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the ‘‘Prospectus Directive’’). This document constitutes the Final

Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and

must be read in conjunction with the Prospectus[, as supplemented]. Full information on the Issuer[,

the Guarantor] and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these

Final Terms and the Prospectus[, as supplemented]. The Prospectus [and the supplement[s] to it] is
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[are] available for viewing at, and copies may be obtained from, the registered office of the Issuer

[and the Guarantor].

The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased

was issued under a Prospectus (or, if relevant, an Information Memorandum) with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and

Conditions (the ‘‘Conditions’’) set forth in the Prospectus/[Information Memorandum] dated [original

date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date(s)]]. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the

Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/

EC) (the ‘‘Prospectus Directive’’) and must be read in conjunction with the Prospectus dated [current

date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date(s)]] which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for

the purposes of the Prospectus Directive, save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from

the Prospectus/[Information Memorandum] dated [original date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated
[date(s)]] and are attached hereto. Full information on the Issuer[, the Guarantor] and the offer of

the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms, the Prospectus

dated [current date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date(s)]] and the Prospectus/[Information

Memorandum] dated [original date] [and the supplement[s] to it dated [date(s)]]. Copies of such

Information Memoranda and Prospectus [and the supplement[s] to [it] [them] are available for

viewing, and copies may be obtained from, the registered office of the Issuer [and the Guarantor].

[Include the following where the issue is Australian Domestic Notes:

The Issuer is not a bank which is authorised under the Banking Act 1959 of the Commonwealth

of Australia. The Notes are not the obligations of any government and in particular, are not
guaranteed by the Commonwealth of Australia.]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as ‘‘Not Applicable’’ (N/A). Note that the

numbering should remain as set out below, even if ‘‘Not Applicable’’ is indicated for individual

paragraphs or sub-paragraphs. Italics denote guidance for completing the Final Terms.]

[When completing any Final Terms or adding any other final terms or information consideration

should be given as to whether such terms or information constitute ‘‘significant new factors’’ and

consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus

Directive.]

1. (i) Issuer: [ ]

(ii) Designated Branch (if Abbey
National Treasury Services plc is

the Issuer):

[Insert branch/Not Applicable]

(iii) Guarantor: [Santander UK plc/Not Applicable]

2. (i) Series Number: [ ]

(ii) Tranche Number: [ ]

(If fungible with an existing Series, insert details of
that Series, including the date on which the Notes
become fungible)

3. Specified Currency or Currencies: [ ]

4. Nominal Amount:

(i) Tranche: [ ]

(ii) Series: [ ]

5. Issue Price of Tranche: [ ] per cent. of the Nominal Amount [plus accrued
interest from [insert date] (if applicable)]

6. (i) Specified Denominations:
(in the case of Registered Notes,
this means the minimum integral
amount in which transfers can be
made)

[ ]
[In respect of issues of Australian Domestic Notes, the
following wording should be used:
‘‘A$[ ] and multiples thereof, subject to a minimum
aggregate consideration of A$500,000 per offeree or
the offer not otherwise requiring disclosure to investors
under Parts 6D.2 or 7.9 of the Corporations Act of
Australia and the issue complying with the Bank
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Exemption Order No. 82 promulgated under the
Banking Act 1959 of the Commonwealth of Australia
(which requires all offers and any transfers which occur
in Australia to be for a consideration of at least
A$500,000)’’]

(ii) Calculation Amount
(Applicable to Notes in definitive
form)

[ ]
(If only one Specified Denomination, insert the
Specified Denomination.
If more than one Specified Denomination, insert the
highest common factor. Note: There must be a common
factor in the case of two or more Specified
Denominations.)

7. (i) Issue Date: [ ]

(ii) Interest Commencement Date (if
different from the Issue Date):

[Specify date/Not Applicable]

8. Maturity Date: [Fixed Rate/any other note other than a Floating Rate
Note — specify date
Floating Rate — Interest Payment Date falling in or
nearest to [specify month and year/specify other]]

9. Interest Basis: [Fixed Rate]
[Floating Rate]
[Zero Coupon/Discount]
[Non-Interest Bearing]
[Index Linked Interest]
[Credit Linked Interest]
[Equity Linked Interest]
[Variable Interest]
[specify other]
(further particulars specified below)

10. Redemption/Payment Basis: [Redemption at par]
[Index Linked Redemption]
[Credit Linked Redemption]
[Equity Linked Redemption]
[Variable Redemption]
[Dual Currency]
[Partly-Paid]
[Instalment]
[specify other]

11. Change of Interest Basis or Redemption/
Payment Basis:

[Specify details of any provision for change of Notes
into another Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment
Basis]

12. Put/Call Options: [Investor Put]
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below)]

13. Date of [Board] approval for issuance of
Notes [and Guarantee] obtained:

[ ] [and [ ], respectively]

(N.B.: Only relevant where Board (or similar)
authorisation is required for the particular tranche of
Notes or related Guarantee)

14. Status of the Notes: [Senior/Subordinated]

15. Method of distribution: [Syndicated/Non-syndicated]
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PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

16. Fixed Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Rate(s) of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/ semi-
annually/quarterly] in arrear]

(If payable other than annually consider amending
Condition 5)

(ii) Interest Payment Date(s): [ ] in each year

(iii) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other]

(iv) Business Day(s): [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

(v) Fixed Coupon Amount(s):
(Applicable to Notes in definitive
form)

[ ] per Calculation Amount

(vi) Broken Amount(s):
(Applicable to Notes in definitive
form)

[Insert particulars of any initial or final broken interest
amounts per Calculation Amount which do not
correspond with the Fixed Coupon Amount[(s)]]

(vii) Day Count Fraction: [30/360 [adjusted/unadjusted] or Actual/Actual
(ICMA) [adjusted/unadjusted] or RBA Bond Basis or
specify other]

(N.B.: if interest is not payable on a regular basis (for
example, if there are Broken Amounts specified)
Actual/Actual (ICMA) may not be a suitable Day
Count Fraction)

(viii) Determination Date(s): [ ] in each year

[insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring issue
date or maturity date in the case of a long or short first
or last coupon] (This will need to be amended in the
case of regular interest payment dates which are not of
equal durations)

(N.B.: Only relevant to Notes where Day Count
Fraction is Actual/Actual (ICMA))

(ix) Other terms relating to the
method of calculating interest for
Fixed Rate Notes:

[Not Applicable/Give details]

17. Floating Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Interest Period(s)/
Interest Payment Dates:

[ ]

(ii) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/Floating Rate Convention/
specify other]

(iii) Business Day(s): [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

(iv) Manner in which the Rate of
Interest and Interest Amount is
to be determined:

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/
Bank Bill Rate Determination/specify other]
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(v) Screen Rate Determination:

(A) Reference Rate: [ ]

(Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although
additional information is required if other, including
fallback provisions in the Agency Agreement)

(B) Interest Determination
Date(s):

[ ]

(Second London business day prior to the start of each
Interest Period if LIBOR other than sterling, euro
LIBOR or EURIBOR), first day of each Interest
Period if sterling LIBOR and the second TARGET2
Settlement Day prior to the start of each Interest
Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)

(C) Relevant Screen Page: [ ]

(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBOR01
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or
amend the fallback provisions appropriately)

(vi) ISDA Determination:

(A) Floating Rate Option: [ ]

(B) Designated Maturity: [ ]

(C) Reset Date: [ ]

(vii) Margin(s): [plus/minus] [ ] per cent. per annum

(viii) Minimum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum

(ix) Maximum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum

(x) Day Count Fraction: [Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/Actual (ICMA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)
Actual/360
30/360
30E/360
30E/360 (ISDA)
Specify other]
(See Condition 5 for options)
[adjusted/unadjusted]

(xi) Determination Date(s): [ ]

(xii) Fall back provisions, rounding
provisions and any other terms
relating to the method of
calculating interest on Floating
Rate Notes, if different from
those set out in the Conditions:

[ ]

18. Zero Coupon/Discount Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Stated Yield: [ ] per cent. per annum

(ii) Issue Price: [ ]

(iii) Any other formula/basis of
determining amount payable: [ ]

(Consider applicable Day Count Fraction if non U.S.
dollar denominated)
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(iv) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other]

(v) Business Day(s): [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

(vi) Day Count Fraction in relation
to Early Redemption Amounts
and late payment:

[Conditions 7(e)(ii) and 7(j)(ii) apply/specify other]

19. Non-Interest Bearing Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/specify other]

(ii) Business Day(s): [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

20. Variable Interest Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Index/Formula/Variable: [give or annex details]

(ii) Provisions for determining
coupon where calculated by
reference to Index and/or
Formula and/or other variable:

[ ]

(iii) Provisions for determining
coupon where calculation by
reference to Index and/or
Formula and/or other variable is
impossible or impracticable:

[need to include a description of market disruption or
settlement disruption events and adjustment provisions]

(iv) Interest Period(s)/
Interest Payment Dates:

[ ]

(v) Business Day Convention: [Following Business Day Convention/Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/Floating Rate Convention/
specify other]

(vi) Business Day: [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

(vii) Minimum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum

(viii) Maximum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum

(ix) Day Count Fraction: [ ] [adjusted/unadjusted]

(x) Determination Date(s): [ ]

21. Dual Currency Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Rate of Exchange/method of
calculating Rate of Exchange:

[give or annex details]
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(ii) Provisions applicable where
calculation by reference to Rate
of Exchange is impossible or
impracticable:

[need to include a description of market disruption or
settlement disruption events and adjustment provisions]

(iii) Person at whose option Specified
Currency(ies) is/are payable:

[ ]

(iv) Business Day: [ ]

Additional Business Centre(s): [ ]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22. Issuer Call [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s): [ ]

(ii) Optional Redemption Amount(s)
and method, if any, of calculation
of such amount(s):

[[The outstanding aggregate nominal amount of
Notes in [insert a currency i.e. HKD]] (if Notes are
represented by a Global Note), [ ] per Calculation
Amount (if Notes are in definitive form)/specify other/
See Appendix]

(iii) If redeemable in part:

(1) Minimum Redemption
Amount:

[[ ] (if Notes are represented by a Global Note), [ ]
per Calculation Amount (if Notes are in definitive
form)/specify other/See Appendix]

(2) Maximum Redemption
Amount:

[[ ] (if Notes are represented by a Global Note), [ ]
per Calculation Amount (if Notes are in definitive
form)/specify other/See Appendix]

(iv) Notice period (if other than as set
out in the Conditions):

[ ]
(N.B.: If setting notice periods which are different to
those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised
to consider the practicalities of distribution of
information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other
notice requirements which may apply, for example, as
between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)

23. Investor Put [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s): [ ]

(ii) Optional Redemption Amount(s)
and method, if any, of calculation
of such amount(s):

[[The outstanding aggregate nominal amount of
Notes in [insert a currency i.e. HKD]] (if Notes are
represented by a Global Note), [ ] per Calculation
Amount (if Notes are in definitive form)/specify other/
See Appendix]

(iii) Notice period (if other than as set
out in the Conditions):

[ ]
(N.B.: If setting notice periods which are different to
those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised
to consider the practicalities of distribution of
information through intermediaries, for example,
clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other
notice requirements which may apply, for example, as
between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)
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24. Final Redemption Amount: [[The outstanding aggregate nominal amount of
Notes in [insert a currency i.e. HKD]] (if Notes are
represented by a Global Note), [ ] per Calculation
Amount (if Notes are in definitive form)/specify other/
See Appendix]

In the case of a Variable Redemption
Note:

(i) Index/Formula/Variable: [give or annex details]

(ii) Provisions for determining Final
Redemption Amount where
calculated by reference to Index
and/or Formula and/or other
variable:

[ ]

(iii) Determination Date: [ ]

(iv) Provisions for determining Final
Redemption Amount where
calculation by reference to Index
and/or Formula and/or other
variable is impossible or
impracticable or otherwise
disrupted:

[ ]

(v) Minimum Final Redemption
Amount:

[[ ] (if Notes are represented by a Global Note), [ ]
per Calculation Amount (if Notes are in definitive
form)/specify other/See Appendix]

(vi) Maximum Final Redemption
Amount:

[[ ] (if Notes are represented by a Global Note), [ ]
per Calculation Amount (if Notes are in definitive
form)/specify other/See Appendix]

25. Early Redemption Amount payable on
redemption for taxation reasons or on
event of default and/or the method of
calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in Condition
7(f)):

[ ]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

26. Form of Notes: [Bearer Notes:

Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for a
Permanent Bearer Global Note which is
exchangeable for definitive Bearer Notes [on 60 days’
notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange
Event at the expense of the Issuer]].

[Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Bearer Notes on and after the Exchange
Date.]

[Permanent Bearer Global Note exchangeable for
definitive Bearer Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at
any time/only upon an Exchange Event at the
expense of the Issuer]].

(Ensure that this is consistent with the wording in the
‘‘Form of the Notes’’ section in the Prospectus and the
Notes themselves.)

[Registered Notes:

Regulation S Global Note ([ ] of the Nominal
Amount) registered in the name of a nominee for [a
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common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg/a common safekeeper for Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg/CDS]/Rule 144A Global
Note ([ ] of the Nominal Amount) registered in the
name of a nominee for DTC]

[Australian Domestic Notes]

27. New Global Note: [Yes/No]

28. Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to
be attached to Definitive Bearer Notes
(and dates on which such Talons mature):

[Yes/No If yes, give details]

29. Details relating to Partly-Paid Notes:
amount of each payment comprising the
Issue Price and date on which each
payment is to be made and consequences
of failure to pay, including any right of
the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and interest
due on late payment:

[Not Applicable/give details]

(N.B.: new forms of Global Note may be required for
Partly-Paid issues)

30. Details relating to Instalment Notes:

Instalment Amount: [Not Applicable/give details]

Instalment Date(s): [Not Applicable/give details]

31. Redenomination: Redenomination [not] applicable

(if Redenomination is applicable, specify the terms of
Redenomination in an Annex to the Final Terms)

32. Other terms or special conditions: [Not Applicable/give details]

(When adding any other final terms consideration
should be given as to whether such terms constitute
‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the
need for a supplement to the Prospectus under Article
16 of the Prospectus Directive)

33. Calculation Agent: [insert name and address]

34. Determination Agent: [Not Applicable/give details]

DISTRIBUTION

35. (i) If syndicated, names and
addresses of Managers and
underwriting commitments:

[Not Applicable/give names and addresses of each
entity acting as underwriter and its respective
underwriting commitments]

(Include names and addresses of entities agreeing to
underwrite the issue on a firm commitment basis and
names and addresses of the entities agreeing to place
the issue without a firm commitment or on a ‘‘best
efforts’’ basis if such entities are not the same as the
Managers.)

(ii) Date of Subscription Agreement: [ ]

(iii) Stabilising Manager(s) (if any): [Not Applicable/give name]

(N.B: Specify ‘‘Not Applicable’’ if the Notes are
Australian Domestic Notes.)

36. If non-syndicated, name and address of
relevant Dealer:

[Not Applicable/give name and address]

37. Total commission and concession: [ ] per cent. of the Nominal Amount
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38. U.S. Selling Restrictions: [Reg. S Compliance Category 2; TEFRA D/TEFRA
C/TEFRA not applicable]

39. Non exempt Offer: [Not Applicable] [An offer of the Notes may be made
by the Managers [and [specify names of other
financial intermediaries/placers making non-exempt
offers, to the extent known OR consider a generic
description of other parties involved in non-exempt
offers (e.g. ‘‘other parties authorised by the
Managers’’) OR (if relevant) note that other parties
may make non-exempt offers in the Public Offer
Jurisdictions during the Offer Period, if not known]]
(together with the Managers, the ‘‘Financial
Intermediaries’’) other than pursuant to Article 3(2)
of the Prospectus Directive in [specify relevant
Member State(s) – which must be jurisdictions where
the Prospectus and any supplements have been
passported (in addition to the jurisdiction where
approved and published)] (‘‘Public Offer
Jurisdictions’’) during the period from [specify date]
until [specify date or a formula such as ‘‘the Issue
Date’’ or ‘‘the date which falls [ ] Business Days
thereafter’’] (‘‘Offer Period’’). See further Paragraph
10 of Part B below]

(N.B.: Consider any local regulatory requirements
necessary to be fulfilled so as to be able to make a non-
exempt offer in relevant jurisdictions. No such offer
should be made in any relevant jurisdiction until those
requirements have been met. Non-exempt offers may
only be made into jurisdictions in which the base
prospectus (and any supplement) has been notified/
passported.)

40. Additional selling restrictions: [Not Applicable/give details]

PURPOSE OF FINAL TERMS

These Final Terms comprise the final terms for issue [and] [public offer in the Public Offer

Jurisdictions] [and] [admission to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Regulated Market and
listing on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority] of the Notes described herein] pursuant to

the U.S.$20,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme of Abbey National Treasury Services

plc and Santander UK plc.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer [and the Guarantor] accept[s] responsibility for the information contained in these

Final Terms. [[ ] has been extracted from [ ]. The Issuer [and the Guarantor each] confirm[s] that
such information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as [they are / it is] aware and is/are

able to ascertain from information published by [ ], no facts have been omitted which would render

the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading].

Signed on behalf of the Issuer [and the Guarantor]:

By: ............................................................................

Duly authorised
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PART B – OTHER INFORMATION

1. LISTING

(i) Listing and Admission to trading: [Application has been made by the Issuer (or on its

behalf) for the Notes to be admitted to trading on the

London Stock Exchange’s Regulated Market and

listing on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority

with effect from [on or about [the Issue Date]].] [Not

Applicable.]

[Where documenting a fungible issue, need to include that

original Notes are already admitted to trading.]

(ii) Estimate of total expenses related

to admission to trading:

[ ]

2. RATINGS

Ratings: The Notes are expected to have the following ratings:

[S & P: [ ]]

[Moody’s: [ ]]

[[Other]: [ ]]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the

ratings if this has previously been published by the rating

provider.]

(The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated

to Notes of the type being issued under the Programme

generally or, where the issue has been specifically rated,

that rating.)

3. [PUBLIC OFFERS

Offer Period: [ ] to [ ]

[ ]

Offer Price: [ ]

Conditions to which the offer is subject: [ ]

Description of the application process: [ ]

Details of the minimum and/or maximum

amount of application:

[ ]

Description of possibility to reduce

subscriptions and manner for refunding

excess amount paid by applicants:

[ ]

Details of the method and time limits for

paying up and delivering the Notes:

[ ]

Manner and date in which results of the

offer are to be made public:

[ ]

Procedure for exercise of any right of pre-

emption, negotiability of subscription

rights and treatment of subscription

rights not exercised:

[ ]

Categories of potential investors to which

the Notes are offered:

[ ]

Process for notification to applicants of the

amount allotted and the indication
whether dealing may begin before

notification is made:

[ ]

Amount of any expenses and taxes

specifically charged to the subscriber or

purchaser:

[ ]
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Name(s) and address(es) to the extent

known to the Issuer, of the placers in the

various countries where the offer takes

place:

[ ]]

4. INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

[Save for any fees payable to the Dealer[s], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in

the issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer. (Amend as appropriate if there are

other interests)]

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters

described constitute ‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to

the Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

5. REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

(i) Reasons for the offer [ ]

(See ‘‘Use of Proceeds’’ wording in Prospectus if reasons
for offer different from making profit and/or hedging
certain risks will need to include those reasons here.)

(ii) Estimated net proceeds: [ ]

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need
to split out and present in order of priority. If proceeds
insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and
sources of other funding.)

(iii) Estimated total expenses: [ ]

[Include breakdown of expenses] (If the Notes are
derivative securities to which Annex XII of the
Prospectus Directive Regulation applies it is only
necessary to include disclosure of net proceeds and total
expenses at (ii) and (iii) above where disclosure is
included at (i) above.)

6. YIELD (Fixed Rate Notes only)

Indication of yield: [ ]

[Calculated as [include details of method of calculation in

summary form] on the Issue Date.]

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of
the Issue Price. It is not an indication of future yield.

7. HISTORIC INTEREST RATES (Floating Rate Notes only)

Details of historic [LIBOR/EURIBOR/other] rates can be obtained from [Reuters and/or

Bloomberg].

8. PERFORMANCE OF INDEX/FORMULA/OTHER VARIABLE, EXPLANATION OF

EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE UNDERLYING (Variable Notes only)

[If there is a derivative component in the interest or the Notes are derivative securities to which

Annex XII of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies, need to include a clear and

comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the underlying and the

circumstances when the risks are most evident.]

(N.B. The requirements below only apply if the Notes are derivative securities to which Annex XII

of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies.)

[Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula/

other variable can be obtained.]

[Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and a description if

composed by the Issuer and if the index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of

where the information about the index can be obtained.]
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[Include other information concerning the underlying required by paragraph 4.2 of Annex XII of

the Prospectus Directive Regulation.]

[N.B. Where an issue of Equity Linked Notes is to be redeemed by physical delivery of all or part

of a Reference Asset and such Reference Asset is not listed on a regulated market, the Issuer will

supplement the Prospectus to include any additional information about the Reference Asset that is

required to enable the Issuer to comply with its disclosure obligations.]

[(When completing the above paragraphs, consideration should be given as to whether such matters

described constitute ‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to

the Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

The Issuer [intends to provide post-issuance information [specify what information will be

reported and where it can be obtained]] [does not intend to provide post-issuance information]

9. PERFORMANCE OF RATE[S] OF EXCHANGE AND EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON

VALUE OF INVESTMENT (Dual Currency Notes only)

[If there is a derivative component in the interest or the Notes are derivative securities to which

Annex XII of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies, need to include a clear and

comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the underlying and the

circumstances when the risks are most evident.]

(N.B. The requirement below only applies if the Notes are derivative securities to which Annex XII

of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies.)

[Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the relevant rates

can be obtained.]

[(When completing this paragraph, consideration should be given as to whether such matters

described constitute ‘‘significant new factors’’ and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to

the Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.)]

10. OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

(i) Intended to be held in a manner

which would allow Eurosystem

eligibility:

[Yes/No]

[Note that the designation ‘‘yes’’ simply means that the

Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited with one

of the ICSDs as common safekeeper [and registered in
the name of a nominee of one of the ICSDs acting as

common safekeeper, that is, held under the New

Safekeeping Structure for registered global securities]

[include this text for Registered Notes which are to be

held under the NSS] and does not necessarily mean that

the Notes will be recognised as eligible collateral for

Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit

operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue or at
any or all times during their life. Such recognition will

depend upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility

criteria.]

(include this text if ‘‘yes’’ selected in which case Bearer

Notes must be issued in NGN form.)

(ii) ISIN Code: [ ]

(iii) Common Code: [ ]

(insert here any other relevant codes

such as CUSIP and CINS numbers)

(iv) Any clearing system(s) other than

Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. and

Clearstream Banking, société

anonyme and the relevant

identification number(s):

[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]
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(v) Delivery: Delivery [against/free of] payment

(vi) Names and addresses of additional

Paying Agent(s) (if any):

[ ]
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following are the Terms and Conditions of the Notes which will be incorporated by reference

into each Global Note (as defined below) and each definitive Note, in the latter case only if permitted

by the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority (if any) and agreed by the relevant Issuer

and the relevant Dealer at the time of issue but, if not so permitted and agreed, such definitive Note will

have endorsed thereon or attached thereto such Terms and Conditions. The applicable Final Terms in

relation to any Tranche of Notes may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so

specified or to the extent inconsistent with the following Terms and Conditions, replace or modify the

following Terms and Conditions for the purpose of such Notes. The applicable Final Terms (or the

relevant provisions thereof) will be endorsed upon, or attached to, each Global Note and definitive Note.

Reference should be made to ‘‘Form of the Notes’’ for a description of the content of the applicable

Final Terms which will specify which of such terms are to apply in relation to the relevant Notes.

References in these Terms and Conditions to ‘‘Final Terms’’ mean a tranche of Notes issued pursuant to

this Prospectus.

This Note is one of a Series (as defined below) of Notes issued by Abbey National Treasury

Services plc (‘‘ANTS’’) (which may act through a Designated Branch) or Santander UK plc (each an

‘‘Issuer’’ and together the ‘‘Issuers’’) constituted by (a) in the case of Notes other than Notes
denominated in Australian dollars and issued by Abbey National Treasury Services plc in the

domestic Australian capital markets (‘‘Australian Domestic Notes’’), a Trust Deed dated 12

November, 1999 (the ‘‘Principal Trust Deed’’) as modified and restated by a First Supplemental Trust

Deed dated 8 November, 2000 (the ‘‘First Supplemental Trust Deed’’), as further modified by a

Second Supplemental Trust Deed dated 28 March, 2001, as further modified and restated by a Third

Supplemental Trust Deed dated 2 November, 2001, as further modified by a Fourth Supplemental

Trust Deed dated 5 December, 2002, as further modified by a Fifth Supplemental Trust Deed dated

19 March, 2003, as further modified by a Sixth Supplemental Trust Deed dated 29 March, 2004, as
further modified and restated by a Seventh Supplemental Trust Deed dated 11 April, 2005, as further

modified and restated by an Eighth Supplemental Trust Deed dated 5 August, 2005, as further

modified and restated by a Ninth Supplemental Trust Deed dated 22 June, 2006, as further modified

and restated by a Tenth Supplemental Trust Deed dated 18 May, 2007, as further modified and

restated by an Eleventh Supplemental Trust Deed dated 26 March, 2008, as further modified and

restated by a Twelfth Supplemental Trust Deed dated 14 April, 2009 and as further modified and

restated by a Thirteenth Supplemental Trust Deed dated 5 May, 2010 (the Principal Trust Deed as

modified and/or restated by such Supplemental Trust Deeds and as further modified and/or restated
from time to time, the ‘‘Trust Deed’’) and made between inter alios Abbey National Treasury Services

plc, and Santander UK plc as Issuers, Santander UK plc as guarantor (the ‘‘Guarantor’’) and The

Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c. (the ‘‘Trustee’’, which expression shall include any successor

as trustee) as trustee for the holders of the Notes (the ‘‘Noteholders’’ or ‘‘holders’’, which expressions

shall mean, in relation to Notes in definitive bearer form, the bearers thereof and, in relation to

Notes in definitive registered (or inscribed) form, the persons in whose names such Notes are

registered and shall, in relation to Notes represented by a Global Note, be construed as provided

below) or (b) in the case of Australian Domestic Notes, the Deed Poll (as defined in Condition 1).

References in these Terms and Conditions to the ‘‘Issuer’’ shall be to the Issuer of the Notes

specified in the applicable Final Terms (including, in the case of Notes issued by Abbey National

Treasury Services plc, any Designated Branch thereof specified in the applicable Final Terms).

References herein to the ‘‘Notes’’ shall be references to the Notes of this Series and shall mean:

1. any global note (a ‘‘Global Note’’) and in relation to any Notes represented by a Global
Note, units of the lowest Specified Denomination in the Specified Currency;

2. any definitive Notes in bearer form; and

3. any definitive Notes in registered (or inscribed) form.

The Notes, the Receipts (as defined below) and the Coupons (as defined below) also have the

benefit of, in the case of Notes other than Australian Domestic Notes, an Agency Agreement dated
5 May, 2010 which further amends and restates the agency agreements dated 12 November, 1999,

8 November, 2000, 2 November, 2001, 5 December, 2002, 19 March, 2003, 29 March, 2004, 11 April,

2005, 5 August, 2005, 22 June, 2006 and 14 April, 2009 (the ‘‘Agency Agreement’’) whereby the

Issuers and the Guarantor appoint Citibank, N.A., London as issuing and principal paying agent,

agent bank, exchange agent (the ‘‘Exchange Agent’’, which expression shall include any successor
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exchange agent) and as a transfer agent, (the ‘‘Principal Paying Agent’’, which expression shall

include any successor paying agent, agent bank, exchange agent and transfer agent), Citigroup Global

Markets Deutschland AG & Co. KGaA. as registrar (the ‘‘Registrar’’, which expression shall include

any successor registrar), the other paying agents named therein (together with the Principal Paying
Agent, the ‘‘Paying Agents’’, which expression shall include any additional or successor paying

agents), the other transfer agents named therein (together with the Principal Paying Agent in its

capacity as a transfer agent, the ‘‘Transfer Agents’’, which expression shall include any additional or

successor transfer agents) and the Trustee.

Notes denominated in Canadian dollars (‘‘Canadian Notes’’) also have the benefit of a sub-

paying agency agreement dated 5 May, 2010 (the ‘‘Sub-Paying Agency Agreement’’) between ANTS,

the Guarantor, the Principal Paying Agent, the Registrar, BNY Trust Company of Canada (the

‘‘Canadian Agent’’, which expression shall include any successor Canadian agent) and the Trustee.

Payments in respect of Australian Domestic Notes issued by ANTS will be made under a

Registry Services Agreement dated on or around 14 April, 2009 between Computershare Investor

Services Pty Limited (ABN 48 078 279 277) and ANTS (as amended, supplemented or replaced from

time to time or otherwise specified in the Final Terms) (‘‘Registry Services Agreement’’).

References to the ‘‘Calculation Agency Agreement’’ and ‘‘Determination Agency Agreement’’ are

to the calculation agency agreement or determination agency agreement (as the case may be) which

may be entered into between the Issuer, the Guarantor, the calculation agent or, as the case may be,

the determination agent to be appointed thereby (the ‘‘Calculation Agent’’ and the ‘‘Determination

Agent’’, respectively) and the Trustee, the form of which is contained in Schedule 1 to the Agency

Agreement.

In the case of Australian Domestic Notes:

(i) references to the ‘‘Calculation Agency Agreement’’ and ‘‘Determination Agency

Agreement’’ are to the Registry Services Agreement or any other calculation agency

agreement or determination agency agreement entered into by ANTS in relation to

Australian Domestic Notes; and

(ii) references to ‘‘Calculation Agent’’ or ‘‘Determination Agent’’ are to the Australian

Registrar or any other agent appointed under the Calculation Agency Agreement or

Determination Agency Agreement (as applicable) in relation to any Australian Domestic

Notes.

Interest bearing definitive Bearer Notes (as defined below) (unless otherwise indicated in the

applicable Final Terms) have interest coupons (‘‘Coupons’’) and, if indicated in the applicable Final

Terms, talons for further Coupons (‘‘Talons’’) attached on issue. Any reference in these Terms and

Conditions to Coupons or coupons shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed to include

a reference to Talons or talons. Definitive Bearer Notes repayable in instalments have receipts

(‘‘Receipts’’) for the payment of the instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) attached
on issue. Registered Notes (as defined below) and Global Notes do not have Receipts, Coupons or

Talons attached on issue.

The applicable Final Terms for this Note (or the relevant provisions thereof) is attached to or
endorsed on this Note and supplements these Terms and Conditions and may specify other terms and

conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Terms and

Conditions, replace or modify these Terms and Conditions for the purposes of this Note.

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to ‘‘Receiptholders’’ shall mean the holders of the
Receipts and any reference herein to ‘‘Couponholders’’ shall mean the holders of the Coupons and

shall, unless the context otherwise requires, include the holders of the Talons.

As used herein, ‘‘Tranche’’ means Notes which are identical in all respects (including as to

listing) and ‘‘Series’’ means a Tranche of Notes together with any further Tranche or Tranches of
Notes which are (i) expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (ii) identical in all

respects (including as to listing) except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest Commencement Dates

and/or Issue Prices.

Copies of the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the Sub-Paying Agency Agreement are

available for inspection during normal business hours at the registered office for the time being of the

Trustee and at the specified office of each of the Principal Paying Agent, the Registrar, the other

Paying Agents, the Transfer Agents and the Canadian Agent (such agents and the Registrar being

together referred to as the ‘‘Agents’’). Copies of the applicable Final Terms are obtainable during
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normal business hours at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent, and from the registered

office of the Guarantor save that, if this Note is an unlisted Note of any Series, the applicable Final

Terms will only be available for inspection by a Noteholder holding one or more unlisted Notes of

that Series and such Noteholder must produce evidence satisfactory to the Trustee, the Principal
Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Guarantor as to its holding of such Notes and identity. The

Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders are deemed to have notice of, are bound by,

and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of the Trust Deed, the Deed Poll (if applicable),

the Agency Agreement, the Sub-Paying Agency Agreement (if applicable) the applicable Final Terms

and any other documents specified in the applicable Final Terms which are applicable to them. The

statements in these Terms and Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed

provisions of the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and (if applicable) the Sub-Paying Agency

Agreement.

Words and expressions defined in the Trust Deed or the Agency Agreement or used in the
applicable Final Terms shall have the same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions

unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of

inconsistency between the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement or (if applicable) the Sub-Paying

Agency Agreement, the Trust Deed shall prevail and, in the event of inconsistency between the Trust

Deed, the Agency Agreement or (if applicable) the Sub-Paying Agency Agreement and the applicable

Final Terms, the applicable Final Terms shall prevail.

1. Form, Denomination and Title

The Notes are in bearer form (‘‘Bearer Notes’’) or in registered (or inscribed) form (‘‘Registered

Notes’’) as specified in the applicable Final Terms in the Specified Currency and the Specified

Denomination(s) and, in the case of definitive Notes, serially numbered. Notes of one Specified

Denomination may not be exchanged for Notes of another Specified Denomination and Bearer Notes
may not be exchanged for Registered Notes and vice versa.

This Note may be an Index Linked Redemption Note, a Credit Linked Redemption Note, an
Equity Linked Redemption Note, a Dual Currency Note, an Instalment Note, a Partly-Paid Note or

a combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Redemption/Payment Basis shown in the

applicable Final Terms.

This Note may be a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon/Discount Note, a

Non-Interest Bearing Note, an Index Linked Interest Note, a Credit Linked Interest Note, an Equity

Linked Interest Note or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Interest Basis

shown in the applicable Final Terms.

Index Linked Redemption Notes, Credit Linked Redemption Notes, Equity Linked Redemption

Notes, Dual Currency Notes and other Notes where the Redemption Amount is variable are referred

to as ‘‘Variable Redemption Notes’’. Index Linked Interest Notes (together with Index Linked

Redemption Notes, ‘‘Index Linked Notes’’), Credit Linked Interest Notes (together with Credit

Linked Redemption Notes, ‘‘Credit Linked Notes’’), Equity Linked Interest Notes (together with
Equity Linked Redemption Notes, ‘‘Equity Linked Notes’’) and other Notes (excluding Floating Rate

Notes) where the rate of interest is variable are referred to as ‘‘Variable Interest Notes’’. Variable

Redemption Notes and Variable Interest Notes are collectively referred to as ‘‘Variable Notes’’.

Definitive Bearer Notes are issued with Coupons attached, unless they are Zero Coupon/

Discount Notes or Non-Interest Bearing Notes in which case references to Coupons and

Couponholders in these Terms and Conditions are not applicable.

Subject as set out below, title to the Bearer Notes, Receipts and Coupons will pass by delivery

and title to the Registered Notes will pass upon registration of transfers in accordance with the

provisions of the Agency Agreement and, in the case of Canadian Notes, the Sub-Paying Agency

Agreement or, in the case of Australian Domestic Notes, in accordance with the provisions of the

Deed Poll (as defined below) and the Registry Services Agreement. The Issuer, the Guarantor, the
Trustee and any Agent will (except as otherwise required by law) deem and treat the bearer of any

Bearer Note, Receipt or Coupon and the registered holder of any Registered Note as the absolute

owner thereof (whether or not overdue and notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing

thereon or notice of any previous loss or theft thereof) for all purposes but, in the case of any

Global Note, without prejudice to the provisions set out in the next succeeding paragraph.

For so long as any of the Notes are represented by a Bearer Global Note or a Regulation S

Global Note held by or on behalf of or, as the case may be, registered in the name of a common
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nominee for, Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (‘‘Euroclear’’) and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme

(‘‘Clearstream, Luxembourg’’) (or, as the case may be, a nominee for the common safekeeper), each

person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the

records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular nominal amount of
such Notes (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream,

Luxembourg as to the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person shall be

conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the

Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such

Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on such

nominal amount of such Notes, for which purpose the bearer of the relevant Bearer Global Note or,

as the case may be, the registered holder of the relevant Regulation S Global Note shall be treated

by the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of
such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global Note and the

expressions ‘‘Noteholder’’ and ‘‘holder of Notes’’ and related expressions shall be construed

accordingly.

For so long as any of the Notes are represented by a Rule 144A Global Note registered in the
name of The Depository Trust Company of New York (‘‘DTC’’) or its nominee, each person who is

for the time being shown in the records of DTC or such nominee as the holder of a particular

nominal amount of such Notes shall be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the

Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect

to the payment of principal or interest on, or voting, giving consents or making requests in respect

of, such nominal amount of such Notes, for which purpose DTC or, in the case of payments only, its

nominee shall be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the Agents as the holder of

such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of such Registered
Global Note, and the expressions ‘‘Noteholder’’ and ‘‘holder of Notes’’ and related expressions shall

be construed accordingly.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Regulation S Global Note registered in the

name of the clearing system operated in Canada by CDS Clearing and Depositary Services Inc.
(‘‘CDS’’) or its nominee, each person who is for the time being shown in the records of CDS or such

nominee as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes shall be treated by the relevant

Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such

Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on, or voting,

giving consents or making requests in respect of, such nominal amount of such Notes, for which

purpose the registered holder of the relevant Regulation S Global Note shall be treated by the

relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of

such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of such Regulation S Global Note; and the
expressions ‘‘Noteholder’’ and ‘‘holder of Notes’’ and related expressions shall be construed

accordingly.

Interests in a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and procedures

for the time being of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and CDS, as the case may be.
References to DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or CDS shall, whenever the context so

permits, be deemed to include a reference to any successor operator and/or successor clearing system

and/or any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the applicable Final Terms or

otherwise approved by the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Principal Paying Agent (and, in the case of

Canadian Notes, the Canadian Agent), the Registrar and the Trustee.

In the case of Australian Domestic Notes, the following provisions of this Condition 1 shall

apply in lieu of the foregoing provisions of this Condition 1 in the event of any inconsistency.

Australian Domestic Notes are debt obligations of the Issuer owing under the Deed Poll dated on or

around 14 April, 2009 executed by Abbey National Treasury Services plc as Issuer in favour of the

relevant Noteholders and the Trustee, as amended, supplemented or replaced from time to time (the

‘‘Deed Poll’’) and take the form of entries in a register (the ‘‘Australian Register’’) to be maintained

by Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited (ABN 48 078 279 277) or such other Australian
registrar appointed by the Issuer and specified in the applicable Final Terms (the ‘‘Australian

Registrar’’). Although Australian Domestic Notes will not be constituted by the Trust Deed,

Australian Domestic Notes will have the benefit of the guarantee from the Guarantor and the other

provisions of the Trust Deed. The Agency Agreement is not applicable to Australian Domestic Notes.

The Registry Services Agreement applies to Australian Domestic Notes.
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Australian Domestic Notes will not be serially numbered. Each entry in the Australian Register

constitutes a separate and individual acknowledgement to the relevant Noteholder of the indebtedness

of the Issuer to the relevant Noteholder. No certificate or other evidence of title will be issued by or

on behalf of the Issuer to evidence title to an Australian Domestic Note unless the Issuer determines
that certificates should be made available or it is required to do so pursuant to any applicable law or

regulation.

No Australian Domestic Note will be registered in the name of more than four persons. Such

Note registered in the name of more than one person is held by those persons as joint holders.

Australian Domestic Notes will be registered by name only without reference to any trusteeship. The

person registered in the Australian Register as a holder of an Australian Domestic Note will be

treated by the Issuer, the Trustee and the Australian Registrar as the absolute owner of that

Australian Domestic Note and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee or the Australian

Registrar will, except as ordered by a court or as required by statute, be obliged to take notice of

any other claim to an Australian Domestic Note.

Australian Domestic Notes will be eligible for lodgement into the Austraclear System operated

by Austraclear Limited (ABN 94 002 060 773) (‘‘Austraclear’’). Australian Domestic Notes held in the
Austraclear System will be held in the name of Austraclear. Title to Australian Domestic Notes held

in the Australian System will be determined in accordance with its rules and regulations. In the case

of an Australian Domestic Note held in the Austraclear System, ‘‘Noteholder’’ shall mean

Austraclear.

2. Transfers of Registered Notes

(a) Transfers of interests in Registered Global Notes

Transfers of beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be effected by DTC, Euroclear,

Clearstream, Luxembourg or CDS, as the case may be, and, in turn, by other participants and, if

appropriate, indirect participants in such clearing systems acting on behalf of beneficial transferors

and transferees of such interests. A beneficial interest in a Registered Global Note will, subject to
compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory restrictions, be transferable for Registered Notes

in definitive form or for a beneficial interest in another Registered Global Note only in the authorised

denominations set out in the applicable Final Terms and only in accordance with the rules and

operating procedures for the time being of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or CDS, as the

case may be and in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Agency Agreement.

Transfers of a Rule 144A Global Note shall be limited to transfers of such Rule 144A Global Note,

in whole but not in part, to a nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or such successor’s

nominee.

(b) Transfers of Registered Notes in definitive form

Subject as provided in Condition 2 (e), (f) and (g) below, upon the terms and subject to the

conditions set forth in the Agency Agreement, a Registered Note in definitive form may be

transferred in whole or in part in the authorised denominations set out in the applicable Final Terms.

In order to effect any such transfer:

(i) the holder or holders must:

(a) surrender the Registered Note for registration of the transfer of the Registered Note

(or the relevant part of the Registered Note) at the specified office of the Registrar or

any Transfer Agent, with the form of transfer thereon duly executed by the holder or

holders thereof or his or their attorney or attorneys duly authorised in writing, and

(b) complete and deposit such other certifications as may be required by the Registrar or,

as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent, and

(ii) the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent must, after due and

careful enquiry, be satisfied with the documents of title and the identity of the person
making the request.

Any such transfer will be subject to such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and the Registrar
may from time to time prescribe (the initial such regulations being set out in Schedule 4 to the

Agency Agreement). Subject as provided above, the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant

Transfer Agent will, within three business days (being for this purpose a day on which banks are

open for business in the city where the specified office of the Registrar or, as the case may be, the

relevant Transfer Agent is located) of the request (or such longer period as may be required to
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comply with any applicable fiscal or other laws or regulations) authenticate and deliver, or procure

the authentication and delivery of, at its specified office to the transferee or (at the risk of the

transferee) send by uninsured mail to such address as the transferee may request, a new Registered

Note in definitive form for the same aggregate nominal amount as the Registered Note (or the
relevant part of the Registered Note) transferred. In the case of a transfer of part only of a

Registered Note in definitive form, a new Registered Note in definitive form in respect of the balance

of the Registered Note not transferred will be so authenticated and delivered or (at the risk of the

transferor) sent by uninsured mail to such address as the transferor may request.

(c) Transfers of Australian Domestic Notes

Conditions 2(a) and (b) do not apply to Australian Domestic Notes. Australian Domestic Notes

may be transferred in whole but not in part. Australian Domestic Notes will be transferred by duly

completed and (if applicable) stamped transfer and acceptance forms in the form specified by, and
obtainable from, the Australian Registrar or by any other manner approved by the Issuer and the

Australian Registrar. Notes entered in the Austraclear System (as defined below) will be transferable

only in accordance with the Austraclear Regulations (as defined below).

Unless the Australian Domestic Notes are lodged in the Austraclear System, application for the

transfer of Australian Domestic Notes must be made by the lodgement of a transfer and acceptance

form with the Australian Registrar. Each transfer and acceptance form must be accompanied by such
evidence (if any) as the Australian Registrar may require to prove the title of the transferor or the

transferor’s right to transfer the Australian Domestic Notes and must be signed by both the

transferor and the transferee.

Australian Domestic Notes will be eligible for lodgment into the Austraclear System. Australian

Domestic Notes held in the Austraclear System will be held in the name of Austraclear. Title to

Australian Domestic Notes held in the Austraclear System will be determined in accordance with the

Austraclear Regulations.

The transferor of an Australian Domestic Note remains the Noteholder of that Australian

Domestic Note until the name of the transferee is entered in the Australian Register in respect of that

Australian Domestic Note. Transfers will not be registered later than eight days prior to the Maturity

Date of any Australian Domestic Note.

Notes may only be transferred within Australia if (a) the aggregate consideration payable by the
transferee at the time of transfer is at least A$500,000 (disregarding moneys lent by the transferor or

its associates) or the offer or invitation giving rise to the transfer otherwise does not require

disclosure to investors in accordance with Parts 6D.2 or 7.9 of the Corporations Act 2001 of the

Commonwealth of Australia, and (b) the transfer is in compliance with the Banking (Exemption)

Order No. 82 promulgated under the Banking Act 1959 of the Commonwealth of Australia (‘‘Order

No. 82’’) and any other applicable laws, regulations or directives. Australian Domestic Notes may

only be transferred to or from Australia if (a) the aggregate consideration payable by the transferee

at the time of transfer is at least A$500,000 (disregarding moneys lent by the transferor or its
associates) or the offer or invitation giving rise to the transfer otherwise does not require disclosure

to investors in accordance with Parts 6D.2 or 7.9 of the Corporations Act 2001 of the

Commonwealth of Australia, (b) the transfer is in compliance with Order No. 82 and any other

applicable laws, regulations or directives, and (c) the transfer is in compliance with the laws of the

jurisdiction in which the transfer takes place. Australian Domestic Notes may only be transferred

between persons in a jurisdiction or jurisdictions other than Australia if (i) a transfer and acceptance

form is signed outside Australia, and (ii) the transfer is in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction

in which the transfer takes place. A transfer to an unincorporated association is not permitted.

In this Condition 2(c):

‘‘Austraclear’’ means Austraclear Limited (ABN 94 002 060 773).

‘‘Austraclear Regulations’’ means the regulations known as the ‘‘Austraclear System

Regulations’’ established by Austraclear (as amended or replaced from time to time) to govern the
use of the Austraclear System.

‘‘Austraclear System’’ means the system operated by Austraclear for holding securities and the

electronic recording and settling of transactions in those securities between members of that system.
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(d) Registration of transfer upon partial redemption

In the event of a partial redemption of Notes under Condition 7, the Issuer shall not be

required to register the transfer of any Registered Note, or part of a Registered Note, called for
partial redemption.

(e) Costs of registration

Noteholders will not be required to bear the costs and expenses of effecting any registration of

transfer as provided above, except for any costs or expenses of delivery other than by normal

uninsured mail and except that the Issuer may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any

stamp duty, tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation to the registration.

(f) Transfers of interests in Regulation S Global Notes

Prior to expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period (as defined below), transfers by

the holder of, or of a beneficial interest in, a Regulation S Global Note to a transferee in the United

States or who is a U.S. person will only be made:

(i) upon receipt by the Registrar of a written certification substantially in the form set out in
the Agency Agreement, amended as appropriate with the consent of the Issuer (a ‘‘Transfer

Certificate’’), copies of which are available from the specified office of the Registrar or any

Transfer Agent, from the transferor of the Note or beneficial interest therein to the effect

that such transfer is being made to a person whom the transferor reasonably believes is a

QIB in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A; or

(ii) otherwise pursuant to the Securities Act or an exemption therefrom, subject to receipt by
the Issuer of such satisfactory evidence as the Issuer may reasonably require, which may

include an opinion of U.S. counsel, that such transfer is in compliance with any applicable

securities laws of any State of the United States,

and, in each case, in accordance with any applicable securities laws of any State of the United States

or any other jurisdiction.

In the case of paragraph (i) above, such transferee may take delivery through a Restricted Note

in global or definitive form. After expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period (i)

beneficial interests in Regulation S Global Notes may be held through DTC directly, by a participant

in DTC, or indirectly through a participant in DTC and (ii) such certification requirements will no

longer apply to such transfers.

(g) Transfers of interests in Restricted Notes

Transfers of Restricted Notes or beneficial interests therein may be made:

(i) to a transferee who takes delivery of such interest through a Regulation S Global Note,

upon receipt by the Registrar of a duly completed Transfer Certificate from the transferor

to the effect that such transfer is being made in accordance with Regulation S and that, if

such transfer is being made prior to expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance

Period, the interests in the Notes being transferred will be held immediately thereafter

through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg; or

(ii) to a transferee who takes delivery of such interest through a Restricted Note where the

transferee is a person whom the transferor reasonably believes is a QIB in a transaction

meeting the requirements of Rule 144A, without certification; or

(iii) otherwise pursuant to the Securities Act or an exemption therefrom, subject to receipt by

the Issuer of such satisfactory evidence as the Issuer may reasonably require, which may

include an opinion of U.S. counsel, that such transfer is in compliance with any applicable
securities laws of any State of the United States,

and, in each case, in accordance with any applicable securities laws of any State of the United States

or any other jurisdiction.

Upon the transfer, exchange or replacement of Restricted Notes, or upon specific request for
removal of any United States securities law legend enfaced on Restricted Notes, the Registrar shall

deliver only Restricted Notes or refuse to remove such legend, as the case may be, unless there is

delivered to the Issuer such satisfactory evidence as may reasonably be required by the Issuer, which

may include an opinion of U.S. counsel, that neither such legend nor the restrictions on transfer set

forth therein are required to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Securities Act.
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(h) Exchanges and transfers of Registered Notes generally

Holders of Registered Notes in definitive form (other than Australian Domestic Notes) may

exchange such Notes for interests in a Registered Global Note of the same type at any time.

(i) Definitions

In this Condition, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

‘‘Distribution Compliance Period’’ means the period that ends 40 days after the completion of

the distribution of each Tranche of Notes, as certified by the relevant Dealer (in the case of a non-
syndicated issue) or the relevant Lead Manager (in the case of a syndicated issue);

‘‘QIB’’ means a ‘‘qualified institutional buyer’’ within the meaning of Rule 144A;

‘‘Regulation S’’ means Regulation S under the Securities Act;

‘‘Regulation S Global Note’’ means a Registered Global Note representing Notes sold outside

the United States in reliance on Regulation S;

‘‘Restricted Note’’ means a Note represented by a Rule 144A Global Note or a Note issued in

registered form in exchange or substitution therefor;

‘‘Rule 144A’’ means Rule 144A under the Securities Act;

‘‘Rule 144A Global Note’’ means a Registered Global Note representing Notes sold in the

United States to QIBs pursuant to Rule 144A;

‘‘Securities Act’’ means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended; and

‘‘U.S. person’’ has the meaning ascribed to it in Regulation S.

3. Status of the Notes and the Guarantee

(a) Status of the Senior Notes

If the Notes are specified as Senior Notes in the applicable Final Terms, the Notes and the

relative Receipts and Coupons (if any) are direct, unconditional and (subject to the provisions of

Condition 4) unsecured obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu and without any preference

among themselves and (subject as aforesaid and to any applicable statutory provisions) at least

equally with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer.

(b) Status of the Subordinated Notes

(i) If the Notes are specified as Subordinated Notes in the applicable Final Terms, the Notes

and the related Receipts and Coupons (if any) constitute direct, unsecured and

subordinated obligations of the Issuer and the rights and claims of the Noteholders, the

Receiptholders and Couponholders against the Issuer rank and will rank, without

preference among themselves, at least pari passu with all other Subordinated Liabilities of
the Issuer from time to time outstanding but will rank ahead of the holders of any

Subordinated Liabilities of the Issuer whose claims rank or are expressed to rank junior to

the Notes, the Receipts and Coupons. The rights and claims of the Noteholders, the

Receiptholders and Couponholders will, in the event of the winding up of the Issuer or the

appointment of an administrator of the Issuer where the administrator has given notice

that the administrator intends to declare and distribute a dividend, be subordinated in

right of payment in the manner provided in the Trust Deed to all Senior Liabilities of the

Issuer. Accordingly, payment of any amount (whether principal, interest, damages or
otherwise) in respect of the Notes, the Receipts and Coupons in such winding up or after

such notice has been given by an administrator, as the case may be, is conditional upon,

at the time of payment by the Issuer and immediately thereafter, the Issuer being solvent

and, accordingly, no such amount which would otherwise fall due for payment shall be

payable except to the extent that the Issuer could make such payment and still be solvent

immediately thereafter.

(ii) For the purposes of Condition 3(b)(i), the Issuer shall be solvent if it is able to pay its

Senior Liabilities in full, and in determining whether the Issuer is solvent for the purpose

of this paragraph, there shall be disregarded obligations which are not payable or capable

of being established or determined in the Insolvency of the Issuer.
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For the purposes of Condition 3(b)(i), a report given at any relevant time by the Issuer’s

Insolvency Officer, in form and substance acceptable to the FSA, shall, in the absence of

manifest error, be treated and accepted by the FSA, the Issuer, the Trustee and the

Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders as correct and sufficient evidence of the
Issuer’s solvency or insolvency.

(iii) To the extent permitted by English law no Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder

shall retain or set off or purport to retain or set off at any time or exercise any right of

counterclaim in respect of any amount payable by it to the Issuer against any amount due

in respect of the Notes, the Receipts or Coupons and each Noteholder, Receiptholder and

Couponholder shall, by virtue of being the holder of any Notes or, as the case may be,
Receipts or Coupons, be deemed to have waived all such rights of retention, set-off or

counterclaim, and each Bondholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder shall immediately pay

an amount equal to any retention or set-off in breach of this Condition 3(b)(iii) to the

Issuer and such retention or set-off shall be deemed not to have occurred.

(iv) For the purpose of this Condition:

‘‘Insolvency’’ means the winding-up or administration (in England but not elsewhere) of the

Issuer;

‘‘Insolvency Officer’’ means and includes any person duly appointed to administer and

distribute assets of the Issuer in the cause of the Issuer’s insolvency;

‘‘Liabilities’’ means, in respect of any person, all present and future sums, liabilities and

obligations payable or owing by it in respect of indebtedness (whether actual or contingent,

jointly or severally, or otherwise howsoever);

‘‘Senior Liabilities’’ means all liabilities of the Issuer except subordinated liabilities; and

‘‘Subordinated Liabilities’’ means the Notes and any relative Coupons and all other

Liabilities of the Issuer in respect of indebtedness which is both unsecured and

subordinated by its terms in right of payment to unsubordinated Liabilities of the Issuer in

any Insolvency of the Issuer.

(c) Status of the Guarantee

This Condition 3(c) applies only to Senior Notes issued by Abbey National Treasury Services plc

The payment of the principal, and interest (if any) in respect of the Notes and all other moneys

payable by the Issuer under or pursuant to the Trust Deed and, in the case of Australian Domestic

Notes, the Deed Poll has been unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Guarantor in the

Trust Deed. The obligations of the Guarantor under such guarantee constitute direct, unconditional
and, subject to the provisions of Condition 4, unsecured obligations of the Guarantor and rank

without any preference among themselves and, subject as aforesaid, pari passu with all other

outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Guarantor, present and future, but, in

the event of insolvency, only to the extent permitted by laws relating to creditors’ rights.

4. Negative Pledge

This Condition 4 applies to Senior Notes only

So long as any of the Notes remains outstanding (as defined in the Trust Deed), neither the

Issuer nor the Guarantor will create or have outstanding any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge or other

security interest upon, or with respect to, any of its present or future assets or revenues, to secure

any Relevant Indebtedness (as defined below) or any guarantee of any Relevant Indebtedness, unless
in any such case the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, shall simultaneously with, or prior

to, the creation of such security interest, take any and all action necessary to procure that all

amounts payable by it in respect of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons (if applicable), the Trust

Deed and the Deed Poll (if applicable) are secured equally and rateably with the Relevant

Indebtedness or guarantee secured by such security interest to the satisfaction of the Trustee or such

other security is provided as the Trustee shall in its absolute discretion deem not materially less

beneficial to the interests of the Noteholders or as shall be approved by an Extraordinary Resolution

(as defined in the Trust Deed) of the Noteholders.

For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, ‘‘Relevant Indebtedness’’ means any

indebtedness for borrowed money (as defined in the Trust Deed) in the form of, or represented by,

bonds, notes, debentures or other securities which are or are to be quoted, listed or ordinarily dealt
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in or traded on any stock exchange, over-the-counter or other securities market (whether or not

initially distributed by way of private placing), but excluding any such indebtedness which has a

stated maturity not exceeding one year.

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to an obligation being guaranteed shall include a
reference to an indemnity being given in respect thereof.

5. Interest

(a) Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date

(which unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms shall be the Issue Date) at the rate(s)

per annum equal to the Rate(s) of Interest payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each
year up to (and including) the Maturity Date.

If the Notes are in definitive form, except as provided in the applicable Final Terms, the

amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment Date in respect of the Interest Period ending on

such date will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount. Payments of interest on any Interest Payment

Date will, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms, amount to the Broken Amount so specified.

Except in the case of Notes in definitive form where a Fixed Coupon Amount or Broken

Amount is specified in the applicable Final Terms, interest shall be calculated in respect of any period

by applying the Rate of Interest to:

(A) in the case of Fixed Rate Notes which are represented by a Global Note, the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Fixed Rate Notes represented by such Global Note

(or, if they are Partly Paid Notes, the aggregate amount paid up); or

(B) in the case of Fixed Rate Notes in definitive form, the Calculation Amount;

and, in each case, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the

resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit

being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention. Where the

Specified Denomination of a Fixed Rate Note in definitive form is a multiple of the Calculation

Amount, the amount of interest payable in respect of such Fixed Rate Note shall be the product of

the amount (determined in the manner provided above) for the Calculation Amount and the amount
by which the Calculation Amount is multiplied to reach the Specified Denomination without any

further rounding.

‘‘sub-unit’’ means with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such

currency that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro,

means one cent.

(b) Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Variable Interest Notes

(i) Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note and Variable Interest Note bears interest from (and including) the
Interest Commencement Date (which unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms shall be

the Issue Date) and such interest will be payable in arrear on either:

(A) the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

(B) if no express Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Final Terms, each

date (each such date, together with each Interest Payment Date specified in the applicable

Final Terms an ‘‘Interest Payment Date’’) which falls the number of months or other

period specified as the Interest Period in the applicable Final Terms after the preceding

Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after the Interest

Commencement Date.

(ii) Rate of Interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes and Variable

Interest Notes will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(A) ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the manner in which

the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will be the
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relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any).

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph

‘‘ISDA Rate’’ for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the Floating Rate that would be

determined by the Principal Paying Agent under an interest rate swap transaction if the Principal

Paying Agent were acting as Calculation Agent for that swap transaction under the terms of an

agreement incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions, as published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc. and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche

of the Notes, (the ‘‘ISDA Definitions’’) and under which:

(1) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(2) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

(3) unless otherwise stated in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Reset Date is the first

day of that Interest Period.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), ‘‘Floating Rate’’, ‘‘Calculation Agent’’, ‘‘Floating

Rate Option’’, ‘‘Designated Maturity’’ and ‘‘Reset Date’’ have the meanings given to those terms in

the ISDA Definitions.

(B) Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the manner in

which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will,

subject as provided below, be either:

(1) the offered quotation; or

(2) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being

rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate which appears or appear, as the

case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page as at 11.00 a.m. (London time, in the case of LIBOR, or

Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the Interest Determination Date in question plus or

minus (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any), all as determined by the

Principal Paying Agent. If five or more of such offered quotations are available on the Relevant
Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one only of such

quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only of such

quotations) shall be disregarded by the Principal Paying Agent for the purpose of determining the

arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of such offered quotations.

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for determining the Rate of Interest in the event

that the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of (1) above, no such offered

quotation appears or, in the case of (2) above, fewer than three such offered quotations appear, in

each case as at the time specified in the preceding paragraph.

If the Reference Rate from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes is specified in the

applicable Final Terms as being other than LIBOR or EURIBOR, the Rate of Interest in respect of

such Notes will be determined as provided in the applicable Final Terms.

(C) Bank Bill Rate Determination for Australian Domestic Notes

Where, in relation to an issue of Australian Domestic Notes, Bank Bill Rate Determination is

specified in the applicable Final Terms as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be

determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will be the relevant Bank Bill Rate.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (C):

(1) ‘‘Bank Bill Rate’’, for an Interest Period, means the average mid rate for Bills having a tenor

closest to the Interest Period as displayed on the ‘‘BBSW’’ page of the Reuters Monitor System

on the first day of that Interest Period as determined by the Calculation Agent.

However, if the average mid rate is not displayed on 10.30 am (Sydney time) on that day, or if

it is displayed but the Calculation Agent determines that there is an obvious error in that rate,
‘‘Bank Bill Rate’’ means the rate determined by the Calculation Agent in good faith at

approximately 10.30 am (Sydney time) on that day, having regard, to the extent possible, to the

mid rate of the rates otherwise bid and offered for bank accepted Bills of that tenor at or

around that time (including any displayed on the ‘‘BBSY’’ page of the Reuters Monitor

System); and
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(2) ‘‘Bill’’ has the meaning given to it in the Bills of Exchange Act 1909 of Australia and a

reference to the acceptance of a Bill to be interpreted in accordance with that Act.

(iii) Minimum Rate of Interest and/or Maximum Rate of Interest

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Minimum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then,

in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with

the provisions of paragraph (ii) above is less than such Minimum Rate of Interest, the Rate of

Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Minimum Rate of Interest.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Maximum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period,

then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in

accordance with the provisions of paragraph (ii) above is greater than such Maximum Rate of

Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Maximum Rate of Interest.

(iv) Determination of Rate of Interest and calculation of Interest Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent or, where specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Calculation

Agent, in the case of Floating Rate Notes, and the Calculation Agent or, where specified in the

applicable Final Terms, the Determination Agent, in the case of Variable Interest Notes, will at, or as

soon as practicable after, each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, determine the

Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period. In the case of Variable Interest Notes, the

Calculation Agent or Determination Agent (as applicable) will notify the Principal Paying Agent or,

in the case of Australian Domestic Notes, the Australian Registrar of the Rate of Interest for the
relevant Interest Period as soon as practicable after calculating the same.

The Calculation Agent or Determination Agent (as applicable) will calculate the amount of

interest (the ‘‘Interest Amount’’) payable on the Floating Rate Notes and Variable Interest Notes for

the relevant Interest Period by applying the Rate of Interest to:

(A) in the case of Floating Rate Notes or Variable Interest Notes which are represented by a

Global Note, the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the Notes represented by such

Global Note (or, if they are Partly Paid Notes, the aggregate amount paid up); or

(B) in the case of Floating Rate Notes or Variable Interest Notes in definitive form, the

Calculation Amount;

and, in each case, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the

resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit

being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention. Where the

Specified Denomination of a Floating Rate Note or an Variable Interest Note in definitive form is a

multiple of the Calculation Amount, the Interest Amount payable in respect of such Note shall be the
product of the amount (determined in the manner provided above) for the Calculation Amount, and

the amount by which the Calculation Amount is multiplied to reach the Specified Denomination

without any further rounding.

(v) Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent (or, in the case of Australian Domestic Notes, the relevant

Calculation Agent or Determination Agent) will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount
for each Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the Issuer and any

stock exchange or other relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or Variable

Interest Notes are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to listing and notice

thereof to be published in accordance with Condition 14 as soon as possible after their determination

but in no event later than the fourth London Business Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and

Interest Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative

arrangements made by way of adjustment) without prior notice in the event of an extension or

shortening of the Interest Period. Any such amendment will be promptly notified to each stock
exchange or other relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or Variable Interest

Notes are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to listing and to the

Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14. For the purposes of this paragraph, the expression

‘‘London Business Day’’ means a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks and

foreign exchange markets are open for business in London.
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(vi) Determination or Calculation by Trustee

If for any reason at any relevant time the Principal Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the

Calculation Agent or the Determination Agent (as applicable) defaults in its obligation to determine
the Rate of Interest or the Calculation Agent or the Determination Agent (as applicable) defaults in

its obligation to calculate any Interest Amount in accordance with sub-paragraph (ii)(A) or (B) above

or as otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, as the case may be, and in each case in

accordance with paragraph (iv) above, the Trustee shall determine the Rate of Interest at such rate

as, in its absolute discretion (having such regard as it shall think fit to the foregoing provisions of

this Condition 5, but subject always to any Minimum Rate of Interest or Maximum Rate of Interest

specified in the applicable Final Terms), it shall deem fair and reasonable in all the circumstances or,

as the case may be, the Trustee shall calculate the Interest Amount(s) in such manner as it shall deem
fair and reasonable in all the circumstances. In making any such determination or calculation, the

Trustee may appoint and rely on a determination or calculation by a calculation agent or a

determination agent (which shall be an investment bank or other suitable entity of international

repute). Each such determination or calculation shall be deemed to have been made by the Principal

Paying Agent, the Calculation Agent or the Determination Agent, as applicable.

(vii) Certificates to be final

All certificates, communications, opinions, determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions

given, expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this Condition 5(b), whether

by the Principal Paying Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent or the Determination Agent,

shall (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the

Guarantor, the Trustee, the Principal Paying Agent and (as applicable) the Calculation Agent or the

Determination Agent, the other Agents and all Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders and

(in the absence as aforesaid) no liability to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Noteholders, the
Receiptholders or the Couponholders shall attach to the Principal Paying Agent or (as applicable) the

Calculation Agent or the Determination Agent or the

Trustee in connection with the exercise or non-exercise by it of any of its powers, duties and
discretions pursuant to such provisions.

(c) Interest on Dual Currency Notes

In the case of Dual Currency Notes, if the rate or amount of interest falls to be determined by

reference to an exchange rate, the rate or amount of interest payable shall be determined in the
manner specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(d) Interest on Partly-Paid Notes

In the case of Partly-Paid Notes (other than Partly-Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes),

interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Notes and otherwise as
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(e) Accrual of interest

Each Note (or in the case of the redemption of part only of a Note, that part only of such

Note) will cease to bear interest (if any) from the date fixed for its redemption unless (other than in
the case of Australian Domestic Notes), upon due presentation thereof, payment of principal is

improperly withheld or refused or in the case of Australian Domestic Notes, payment on the due date

is improperly withheld or not made. In such event, interest will continue to accrue as provided in

Condition 7(k).

(f) Business Day, Business Day Conventions, Day Count Fractions and other adjustments

In these Terms and Conditions, ‘‘Business Day’’ means a day which is:

(i) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are
open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency

deposits) in London (or, in respect of Australian Domestic Notes, a day (other than a

Saturday, Sunday or public holiday) on which banks are open for general banking business

in Sydney and Melbourne) and any Additional Business Centre specified in the applicable

Final Terms; and
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(ii) either

(1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on

which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open

for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency

deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified

Currency (if other than London); or

(2) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the Trans-European

Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET2) System (the

‘‘TARGET2 System’’) is operating (a ‘‘TARGET2 Settlement Day’’).

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Final Terms and if any Interest

Payment Date, Maturity Date or any other date (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) would

otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified

is:

(1) the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date, Maturity Date or
any other date (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) shall be postponed to the next

day which is a Business Day; or

(2) the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date, Maturity

Date or any other date (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) shall be postponed to

the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar
month, in which event such Interest Payment Date, Maturity Date or any other date (as

specified in the applicable Final Terms) shall be brought forward to the immediately

preceding Business Day; or

(3) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date, Maturity Date or
any other date (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) shall be brought forward to the

immediately preceding Business Day; or

(4) in any case where Interest Periods are specified in accordance with Condition 5(b)(i)(B)

above, the Floating Rate Convention, the Interest Payment Date:

(i) shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day and (A) each subsequent

Interest Payment Date shall be the day that numerically corresponds with such

Business Day, in the month which falls the Interest Period after the preceding

applicable Interest Payment Date unless (B) such Business Day would thereby fall

into the next calendar month, in which event (C) such Interest Payment Date shall be
brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (D) each subsequent

Interest Payment Date shall be the last Business Day in the month which falls the

Interest Period after the preceding applicable Interest Payment Date; or

(ii) in the case where there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month

on which an Interest Payment Date should occur, shall be the last day that is a
Business Day in the relevant month and the provisions of Condition 5(b)(i)(B) above

of this paragraph shall apply mutatis mutandis.

‘‘Day Count Fraction’’ means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest for any

Interest Period:

(1) if ‘‘Actual/Actual (ICMA)’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms:

(a) in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period from (and
including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest

Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (the ‘‘Accrual

Period’’) is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the

Accrual Period ends, the number of days in such Accrual Period divided by the

product of (1) the number of days in such Determination Period and (2) the number

of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) that would occur

in one calendar year; or

(b) in the case of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination

Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:
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(1) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period

in which the Accrual Period begins divided by the product of (x) the number of

days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates

that would occur in one calendar year; and

(2) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination

Period divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination
Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one

calendar year;

(2) if ‘‘Actual/Actual ISDA’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of

days in the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Interest Period falls

in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest

Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that

portion of the Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);

(3) if ‘‘Actual/365 (Fixed)’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of

days in the Interest Period divided by 365;

(4) if ‘‘Actual/360’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in the

Interest Period divided by 360;

(5) if ‘‘30/360’’, ‘‘360/360’’ or ‘‘Bond Basis’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the

number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as

follows:

[360 6 (Y2 – Y1)] + [30 6 (M2 – M1)] + (D2 – D1)
______________________________________________

Day Count Fraction = 360

where:

‘‘Y1’’ is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

‘‘Y2’’ is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day of the Interest Period falls;

‘‘M1’’ is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

‘‘M2’’ is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Interest Period falls;

‘‘D1’’ is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless such
number is 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

‘‘D2’’ is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31 and D1 is greater than 29,

in which case D2 will be 30;

(6) if ‘‘30E/360’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in the Interest
Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360 6 (Y2 – Y1)] + [30 6 (M2 – M1)] + (D2 – D1)
______________________________________________

Day Count Fraction = 360

where:

‘‘Y1’’ is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

‘‘Y2’’ is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last

day of the Interest Period falls;

‘‘M1’’ is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest

Period falls;

‘‘M2’’ is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately

following the last day of the Interest Period falls;

‘‘D1’’ is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless such

number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and
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‘‘D2’’ is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day

included in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31, in which case D2 will be

30;

(7) if ‘‘30E/360 (ISDA)’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in the

Interest Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360 6 (Y2 – Y1)] + [30 6 (M2 – M1)] + (D2 – D1)
______________________________________________

Day Count Fraction = 360

where:

‘‘Y1’’ is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

‘‘Y2’’ is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day of the Interest Period falls;

‘‘M1’’ is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

‘‘M2’’ is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Interest Period falls;

‘‘D1’’ is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless (i) that

day is the last day of February or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D1 will be
30; and

‘‘D2’’ is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Interest Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February but not the

Maturity Date or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D2 will be 30.

(8) if ‘‘RBA Bond Basis’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms, one divided by the

number of Interest Payment Dates in each twelve-month period (or, where the calculation

period does not constitute an Interest Period, one divided by the number of Interest

Payment Dates in each twelve-month period multiplied by the actual number of days in

the calculation period divided by the number of days in the Interest Period ending on the

next Interest Payment Date).

(9) or such other Day Count Fraction as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

‘‘Determination Period’’ means each period from (and including) a Determination Date to (but

excluding) the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest Commencement Date or

the final Interest Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on the first

Determination Date prior to, and ending on the first Determination Date falling after, such date);

and

‘‘Interest Period’’ means the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the

Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date.

If ‘‘adjusted’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms in the Day Count Fraction item, interest

in respect of the relevant Interest Period shall be payable in arrear on the relevant Interest Payment

Date and calculated from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement
Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date, as such Interest Payment Date

shall, where applicable, be adjusted in accordance with the Business Day Convention.

If ‘‘unadjusted’’ is specified in the applicable Final Terms in the Day Count Fraction item,
interest in respect of the relevant Interest Period shall be payable in arrear on the relevant Interest

Payment Date, as adjusted in accordance with the Business Day Convention, but shall be calculated

in respect of the period from (and including) a Period End Date (or the Interest Commencement

Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Period End Date. For the purpose of this paragraph

‘‘Period End Date’’ means an Interest Payment Date prior to any modification as result of any

Business Day Convention.
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6. Payments

(a) Method of payment

Subject as provided below:

(i) payments in a Specified Currency other than euro will be made by credit or transfer to an

account in the relevant Specified Currency maintained by the payee with, or, at the option

of the payee, by a cheque in such Specified Currency drawn on, a bank in the principal

financial centre of the country of such Specified Currency; and

(ii) payments in euro will be made by credit or transfer to a euro account (or any other

account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the

option of the payee, by a euro cheque.

Payments will be subject in all cases to any fiscal or other laws and regulations applicable

thereto in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 8.

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to payment of any sums in respect of the Notes

(including, in respect of Variable Notes, Physically-Settled Notes) shall be deemed to include, as

applicable, delivery of assets if so provided in the applicable Final Terms and references to paid and

payable shall be construed accordingly.

(b) Presentation of definitive Bearer Notes, Receipts and Coupons

Payments of principal in respect of definitive Bearer Notes will (subject as provided below) be

made in the manner provided in paragraph (a) above only against presentation and surrender (or, in

the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of definitive Bearer Notes, and payments of

interest in respect of definitive Bearer Notes will (subject as provided below) be made as aforesaid

only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due,
endorsement) of Coupons, in each case at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United

States (which expression, as used herein, means the United States of America (including the States

and the District of Columbia, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its

jurisdiction)).

Payments of instalments of principal (if any) in respect of definitive Bearer Notes, other than

the final instalment, will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in paragraph

(a) above against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due,

endorsement) of the relevant Receipt in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Payment of the

final instalment will be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a) above only against

presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the

relevant Bearer Note in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Each Receipt must be presented for
payment of the relevant instalment together with the definitive Bearer Note to which it appertains.

Receipts presented without the definitive Bearer Note to which they appertain do not constitute valid

obligations of the Issuer. Upon the date on which any definitive Bearer Note becomes due and

repayable, unmatured Receipts (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void

and no payment shall be made in respect thereof.

Fixed Rate Notes in definitive bearer form (other than Variable Notes or Long Maturity Notes

(as defined below)) should be presented for payment together with all unmatured Coupons

appertaining thereto (which expression shall for this purpose include Coupons falling to be issued on

exchange of matured Talons), failing which the amount of any missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the

case of payment not being made in full, the same proportion of the amount of such missing

unmatured Coupon as the sum so paid bears to the sum due) will be deducted from the sum due for

payment. Each amount of principal so deducted will be paid in the manner mentioned above against
surrender of the relative missing Coupon at any time before the expiry of 10 years after the Relevant

Date (as defined in Condition 8) in respect of such principal (whether or not such Coupon would

otherwise have become void under Condition 9) or, if later, five years from the date on which such

Coupon would otherwise have become due, but in no event thereafter.

Upon any Fixed Rate Note in definitive bearer form becoming due and repayable prior to its

Maturity Date, all unmatured Talons (if any) appertaining thereto will become void and no further

Coupons will be issued in respect thereof.

Upon the date on which any Floating Rate Note, Variable Note or Long Maturity Note in

definitive bearer form becomes due and repayable, unmatured Coupons and Talons (if any) relating

thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment or, as the case may be,

exchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect thereof. A ‘‘Long Maturity Note’’ is a Fixed
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Rate Note (other than a Fixed Rate Note which on issue had a Talon attached) whose nominal

amount on issue is less than the aggregate interest payable thereon provided that such Note shall

cease to be a Long Maturity Note on the Interest Payment Date on which the aggregate amount of

interest remaining to be paid after that date is less than the nominal amount of such Note.

If the due date for redemption of any definitive Bearer Note is not an Interest Payment Date,

interest (if any) accrued in respect of such Note from (and including) the preceding Interest Payment

Date or, as the case may be, the Interest Commencement Date shall be payable only against

presentation and surrender of the relevant definitive Bearer Note.

(c) Payments in respect of Bearer Global Notes

Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of Notes represented by any Bearer Global

Note will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in relation to definitive

Bearer Notes and otherwise in the manner specified in the relevant Bearer Global Note against
presentation or surrender, as the case may be, of such Bearer Global Note at the specified office of

any Paying Agent outside the United States. A record of each payment made against presentation or

surrender of any Bearer Global Note, distinguishing between any payment of principal and any

payment of interest, will be made on such Bearer Global Note by the Paying Agent to which it was

presented and such record shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question has been made.

No payments of principal, interest or other amounts due in respect of a Bearer Global Note will

be made by mail to an address in the United States or by transfer to an account maintained in the
United States.

(d) Payments in respect of Registered Notes

This Condition 6(d) does not apply to Australian Domestic Notes.

Payments of principal (other than instalments of principal prior to the final instalment) in

respect of each Registered Note (whether or not in global form) will be made against presentation

and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the Registered Note

at the specified office of the Registrar or any of the Paying Agents or (in the case of Canadian

Notes) the Canadian Agent. Such payments will be made by transfer to the Designated Account (as

defined below) of the holder (or the first named of joint holders) of the Registered Note appearing in
the register of holders of the Registered Notes maintained by the Registrar (the ‘‘Register’’) at the

close of business on the fifteenth calendar day before the relevant due date (the ‘‘Record Date’’).

Notwithstanding the previous sentence, if (i) a holder does not have a Designated Account or (ii) the

nominal amount of the Notes held by a holder is less than U.S.$100,000 (or its equivalent), payment

will instead be made by a cheque in the Specified Currency drawn on a Designated Bank (as defined

below). For these purposes, ‘‘Designated Account’’ means the account maintained by a holder with a

Designated Bank and identified as such in the Register and ‘‘Designated Bank’’ means (in the case of

payment in a Specified Currency other than euro) a bank in the principal financial centre of the
country of such Specified Currency and (in the case of a payment in euro) any bank which processes

payments in euro.

Payments of interest and payments of instalments of principal (other than the final instalment)

in respect of each Registered Note (whether or not in global form) will be made by a cheque in the

Specified Currency drawn on a Designated Bank and mailed by uninsured mail on the business day

in the city where the specified office of the Registrar is located immediately preceding the relevant due

date to the holder (or the first named of joint holders) of the Registered Note appearing in the

Register at the close of business on the Record Date at his address shown in the Register on the
Record Date and at his risk. Upon application of the holder to the specified office of the Registrar

not less than three business days in the city where the specified office of the Registrar is located

before the due date for any payment of interest in respect of a Registered Note, the payment may be

made by transfer on the due date in the manner provided in the preceding paragraph. Any such

application for transfer shall be deemed to relate to all future payments of interest (other than

interest due on redemption) and instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) in respect of

the Registered Notes which become payable to the holder who has made the initial application until

such time as the Registrar is notified in writing to the contrary by such holder. Payment of the
interest due in respect of each Registered Note on redemption and the final instalment of principal

will be made in the same manner as payment of the principal amount of such Registered Note.

Holders of Registered Notes will not be entitled to any interest or other payment for any delay

in receiving any amount due in respect of any Registered Note as a result of a cheque posted in
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accordance with this Condition arriving after the due date for payment or being lost in the post. No

commissions or expenses shall be charged to such holders by the Registrar in respect of any payments

of principal or interest in respect of the Registered Notes.

All amounts payable to DTC or its nominee as registered holder of a Rule 144A Global Note

in respect of Notes denominated in a Specified Currency other than U.S. dollars shall be paid by
transfer by the Registrar to an account in the relevant Specified Currency of the Exchange Agent on

behalf of DTC or its nominee for payment in such Specified Currency for conversion into U.S.

dollars in accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement.

None of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the Agents will have any responsibility or

liability for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial

ownership interests in the Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any

records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

(e) Payments in respect of Australian Domestic Notes

The Australian Registrar will act as principal paying agent for Australian Domestic Notes

pursuant to a Registry Services Agreement (such Registry Services Agreement as amended and/or

supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the ‘‘Registry Services Agreement’’) dated on or
around 14 April, 2009 between the Issuer and the Australian Registrar.

Payments of principal and interest will be made in Australia in Australian dollars to the persons
registered at the close of business on the relevant Record Date (as defined below) as the holders of

such Notes, subject in all cases to normal banking practice and all applicable laws and regulations or

if so required by the Trustee by notice in writing following the occurrence of an Event of Default (as

defined in Condition 10) or Potential Event of Default (as defined in the Trust Deed) or following

receipt by the Trustee of any money which it proposes to pay under Clause 10 of the Trust Deed, to

the Trustee in Australia.

Payments to Noteholders in respect of each Australian Domestic Note will be made:

(i) if the Australian Domestic Note is held by Austraclear and entered in the Austraclear

System, by crediting on the relevant Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date or other

date on which payment is due the amount then due to the account or accounts to which

payments should be made in accordance with the Austraclear System Regulations or as
otherwise agreed with Austraclear; and (ii) if the Australian Domestic Note is not held by

Austraclear and entered in the Austraclear System, by cheques drawn on an Australian

bank dispatched by post on the relevant payment date at the risk of the Noteholder or, by

crediting on the relevant payment date, the amount then due to an account in Australia

previously notified by the relevant Noteholder(s) to ANTS and the Australian Registrar, or

in any other manner in Australia which the Australian Registrar and the Noteholder agree.

In the case of payments made by electronic transfer, payments will for all purposes be taken to

be made when the Australian Registrar gives irrevocable instructions in Australia for the making of

the relevant payment by electronic transfer, being instructions which would be reasonably expected to

result, in the ordinary course of banking business, in the funds transferred reaching the account of
the Noteholder and, in the case of accounts maintained in Australia, reaching the account on the

same day as the day on which the instructions are given.

If a cheque posted or an electronic transfer for which irrevocable instructions have been given

by the Australian Registrar is shown, to the satisfaction of the Australian Registrar, not to have

reached the Noteholder and the Australian Registrar is able to recover the relevant funds, the

Australian Registrar may make such other arrangements as it thinks fit for the effecting of the

payment in Australia.

If a payment cannot be made in accordance with the foregoing because appropriate account

details have not been provided, ANTS or the Guarantor, as the case may be, shall have no further

obligation to make the relevant payment until the Australian Registrar has received such details

together with a claim for payment and evidence to its satisfaction of the entitlement of the payee. No
interest or other amount will be payable in respect of any delay in payment as a result of such details

not being provided.

Interest will be calculated in the manner specified in Condition 5 above and will be payable to

the persons who are registered as Noteholders at the close of business on the relevant Record Date

and cheques will be made payable to the Noteholder (or, in the case of joint Noteholders, to the

first-named) and sent to his registered address, unless instructions to the contrary are given by the
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Noteholder (or, in the case of joint Noteholders, by all the Noteholders) in such form as may be

prescribed by the Australian Registrar. Payments of principal will be made to, or to the order of, the

persons who are registered as Noteholders at the close of business on the relevant Record Date,

subject, if so directed by the Australian Registrar, to receipt from them of such instructions as the
Australian Registrar may require.

In this Condition 6(e), Record Date means, in the case of payments or principal or interest, the

close of business in the city where the Register is located on the date which is the eighth calendar

day before the due date of the relevant payment of principal or interest.

(f) General provisions applicable to payments

For so long as the Notes of a Series are listed on the Official List and admitted to trading on

the London Stock Exchange’s market for listed securities and for so long as the rules of the UK

Listing Authority so require, the Issuer shall procure that there is a Paying Agent approved in writing

by the Trustee in the City of London for the payment of principal and interest, if any, on the Notes.

The holder of a Global Note shall be the only person entitled to receive payments in respect of

Notes represented by such Global Note and the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor will be
discharged by payment to, or to the order of, the holder of such Global Note in respect of each

amount so paid. Each of the persons shown in the records of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream,

Luxembourg or CDS as the beneficial holder of a particular nominal amount of Notes represented by

such Global Note must look solely to DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or CDS, as the

case may be, for his share of each payment so made by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the

Guarantor to, or to the order of, the holder of such Global Note.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Condition, if any amount of principal and/or

interest in respect of Bearer Notes is payable in U.S. dollars, such U.S. dollar payments of principal

and/or interest in respect of such Notes will be made at the specified office of a Paying Agent in the

United States if:

(i) the Issuer has appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United States
with the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make payment

in U.S. dollars at such specified offices outside the United States of the full amount of

principal and interest on the Bearer Notes in the manner provided above when due;

(ii) payment of the full amount of such principal and interest at all such specified offices

outside the United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other

similar restrictions on the full payment or receipt of principal and interest in U.S. dollars;
and

(iii) such payment is then permitted under United States law without involving, in the opinion

of the Issuer and the Guarantor, adverse tax consequences to the Issuer or the Guarantor.

(g) Payment Days

If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is not a

Payment Day, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next following Payment
Day and shall not be entitled to any further payment in respect of such delay. ‘‘Payment Day’’ means

any day which (subject to Condition 9):

(i) is a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are

open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency

deposits) in the relevant place of presentation or, in respect of Australian Domestic Notes,
a day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday) on which banks are open for

general banking business in Sydney and Melbourne; or

(ii) in the case of any payment in respect of a Rule 144A Global Note denominated in a

Specified Currency other than U.S. dollars and registered in the name of DTC or its

nominee and in respect of which an accountholder of DTC (with an interest in such Rule

144A Global Note) has elected to receive any part of such payment in U.S. dollars, a day
on which commercial banks are not authorised or required by law or regulation to be

closed in New York City; and

(iii) is a Business Day as defined in Condition 5(f).
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(h) Interpretation of principal and interest

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be

deemed to include, as applicable:

(i) any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to principal under Condition 8;

(ii) the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes;

(iii) the Early Redemption Amount of the Notes;

(iv) the Optional Redemption Amount(s) (if any) of the Notes;

(v) in relation to Notes redeemable in instalments, the Instalment Amounts;

(vi) in relation to Zero Coupon/Discount Notes, the Amortised Face Amount (as defined in
Condition 7(f)); and

(vii) any premium and any other amounts which may be payable by the Issuer under or in

respect of the Notes.

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed

to include, as applicable, any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to interest under
Condition 8.

7. Redemption and Purchase

(a) Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as specified below or in the applicable
Final Terms, each Note will be redeemed by the Issuer at its Final Redemption Amount specified in,

or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Final Terms in the relevant Specified

Currency on the Maturity Date.

(b) Subordinated Notes Redemption Conditions

In the case of Subordinated Notes, any redemption or purchase of the Subordinated Notes

(except in the case of redemption on the Maturity Date) is:

(i) subject to the Issuer giving written notice to the FSA at least one month prior to (i) giving

notice to Noteholders pursuant to Conditions 7(c) or 7(d) or (ii) such purchase, as the case

may be (or such other period of notice as the FSA may from time to time require or
accept and, in any event, provided that any such notice is required to be given) and:

(a) other than in the case of (b) below, with the consent of, or, as applicable, receiving

no objection from, the FSA if required by the FSA; or

(b) in the case of any redemption of the Notes pursuant to Condition 7(c)(i) prior to the

fifth anniversary of the Issue Date of the Notes, receiving a waiver from the FSA;
and

(ii) subject to the Issuer (both at the time of, and immediately following, the redemption or

purchase) being in compliance with the capital resources requirements applicable to it from

time to time (and a certificate from any two directors of the Issuer confirming such

compliance shall be conclusive evidence of such compliance).

(c) Redemption for tax reasons

If the Issuer or the Guarantor satisfies the Trustee immediately prior to the giving of the notices

referred to below that, on the occasion of the next payment due under the Notes, either:

(i) the Issuer would be required to pay additional amounts as provided under Condition 8 or

to account to any taxing authority in the taxing jurisdiction of any territory in which the

Issuer is incorporated or resident for taxation purposes for any amount (other than tax

withheld or deducted from interest payable on the Notes) calculated by reference to any

amount payable in respect of the Notes, and, in the case of the Subordinated Notes which

are to be redeemed (as referred to below) prior to the fifth anniversary of the Issue Date

of the Notes, such requirement has arisen as a result of a Tax Law Change (as defined

below); or

(ii) the Guarantor would be unable for reasons outside its control to procure payment by the

Issuer and in making such payment itself would be required to pay additional amounts or

to account to any taxing authority in the United Kingdom for any amount as aforesaid; or
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(iii) if the Issuer is not incorporated or resident for taxation purposes in the United Kingdom,

the Guarantor would be required to deduct or withhold amounts for or on account of any

taxes of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of the United Kingdom in

making any payment of any sum to the Issuer required to enable the Issuer to make a
payment in respect of the Notes or to account to any taxing authority in the United

Kingdom for any amount calculated by reference to the amount of any such sum to be

paid to the Issuer,

then the Issuer may having given not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the Trustee,

the Principal Paying Agent and, in accordance with Condition 14, the Noteholders (which notice

shall be irrevocable), redeem all, but not some only, of the Notes at any time (if this Note is

neither a Floating Rate Note nor a Variable Interest Note) or on the next Interest Payment

Date (in the case of Floating Rate Notes or Variable Interest Notes). Upon the expiry of such

notice the Issuer shall be bound to redeem the Notes accordingly.

Notes redeemed pursuant to this Condition 7(c) will be redeemed at their Early Redemption

Amount determined pursuant to Condition 7(f) below.

‘‘Tax Law Change’’ means, in relation to any Subordinated Notes:

(a) any introduction or enactment of, or any change or amendment to, the laws of the United

Kingdom or any other jurisdiction or territory in which the Issuer is incorporated or
resident for taxation purposes (or any political subdivision or authority therein or thereof

having the power to tax) including without limitation any legislation of the United

Kingdom or such other jurisdiction or territory, any regulations promulgated by any

authority in or of the United Kingdom or such other jurisdiction or territory having the

power to tax and any treaty to which the United Kingdom or such other jurisdiction or

territory is a party; and

(b) any introduction or pronouncement of, or any change or amendment to, any official

application or interpretation of any of the laws referred to in sub-paragraph (a) above

(including, without limitation, any of the legislation, regulations or treaties referred to in

sub-paragraph (a) above) or any decision of any court or tribunal relating to the same,

including without limitation any pronouncement by any relevant tax authority of a

position with respect to the application or interpretation of the same which differs from
the previously generally accepted position in relation to securities which are capable of

constituting Lower Tier 2 Capital or which differs from any specific written confirmation

given by any relevant tax authority in respect of the Subordinated Notes or any guarantee

thereof,

in each case taking effect, proposed or announced after the date of the issue of the relevant

Subordinated Notes.

‘‘Lower Tier 2 Capital’’ has the meaning given to it from time to time by the FSA.

(d) Redemption at the option of the Issuer (Issuer Call)

If Issuer Call is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may, having given not less

than 15 nor more than 30 days’ notice (or such other period of notice as may be specified in the

applicable Final Terms to the Trustee, the Principal Paying Agent, the Noteholders, and in the case

of a redemption of Registered Notes, the Registrar, (which notice shall be irrevocable and shall

specify the date fixed for redemption), and in the case of Subordinated Notes, the satisfaction of the
Subordinated Notes Redemption Conditions set out in Condition 7(b) redeem all or some only of the

Notes then outstanding on any Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional Redemption

Amount(s) specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Final Terms together,

if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the relevant Optional Redemption Date. Any

such redemption must be of a nominal amount not less than the Minimum Redemption Amount and

not more than the Maximum Redemption Amount (if any). In the case of a partial redemption of

Notes, the Notes to be redeemed (‘‘Redeemed Notes’’) will be selected individually by lot, in the case

of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes, and in accordance with the rules of DTC and/or
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or CDS, (to be reflected in the records of Euroclear

and Clearstream, Luxembourg as either a pool factor or a reduction in nominal amount, at their

discretion) in the case of Redeemed Notes represented by a Global Note, not more than 30 days

prior to the date fixed for redemption (such date of selection being hereinafter called the ‘‘Selection

Date’’). In the case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes, a list of the serial numbers of
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such Redeemed Notes will be published in accordance with Condition 14 not less than 15 days (or

such shorter period as is specified in the applicable Final Terms) prior to the date fixed for

redemption. No exchange of the relevant Global Note will be permitted during the period from (and

including) the Selection Date to (and including) the date fixed for redemption pursuant to this
paragraph (c) and notice to that effect shall be given by the Issuer to the Noteholders in accordance

with Condition 14 at least five days (or such shorter period as is specified in the applicable Final

Terms) prior to the Selection Date.

(e) Redemption at the option of the Noteholders (Investor Put)

This Condition 7(e) applies to Senior Notes only.

If Investor Put is specified in the applicable Final Terms, upon the holder of any Note giving to

the Issuer in accordance with Condition 14 not less than 15 nor more than 30 days’ notice (or such

other period of notice as is specified in the applicable Final Terms) (which notice shall be irrevocable)

the Issuer will, upon the expiry of such notice, redeem, subject to, and in accordance with, the terms

specified, or determined in the manner specified, in the applicable Final Terms, in whole (but not, in

the case of a Bearer Note in definitive form, in part), such Note on the Optional Redemption Date

and at the Optional Redemption Amount together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but
excluding) the Optional Redemption Date. Registered Notes may be redeemed under this Condition

7(e) in any multiple of their lowest Specified Denomination. It may be that before an Investor Put

can be exercised, certain conditions and/or circumstances will need to be satisfied. Where relevant, the

provisions will be set out in the applicable Final Terms.

If this Note is in definitive form, to exercise the right to require redemption of this Note, the

holder of this Note must deliver such Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent (in the case of

Bearer Notes) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes other than Australian Domestic

Notes) at any time during normal business hours of such Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the

Registrar falling within the notice period, accompanied by a duly completed and signed notice of

exercise in the form (for the time being current) obtainable from any specified office of any Paying

Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar (a ‘‘Put Notice’’) and in which the holder must specify a

bank account (or, if payment is required to be made by cheque, an address) to which payment is to
be made under this Condition and, in the case of Registered Notes, the nominal amount thereof to

be redeemed and, if less than the full nominal amount of the Registered Notes so surrendered is to

be redeemed, an address to which a new Registered Note in respect of the balance of such Registered

Notes is to be sent subject to and in accordance with the provisions of Condition 2(b).

The provisions of this Condition 7(e) in relation to Registered Notes apply equally to the

Australian Domestic Notes except that it shall not be necessary to deposit a certificate in connection

with this option in respect of an Australian Domestic Note.

(f) Early Redemption Amounts

For the purpose of Condition 7(c) above and Condition 10, each Note will be redeemed (unless

otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms) at its Early Redemption Amount calculated as

follows:

(i) in the case of a Note other than a Zero Coupon/Discount Note and a Variable Note (but

including any Instalment Note or Partly-Paid Note) at the outstanding nominal amount

together with interest accrued to (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption;

(ii) in the case of a Zero Coupon/Discount Note, at an amount (the ‘‘Amortised Face

Amount’’) equal to the nominal amount of the Note multiplied by the sum of:

(A) the Issue Price; and

(B) the product of the Issue Price and the Stated Yield compounded annually from (and

including) the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes to (but excluding) the date

fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Note becomes

due and payable;

(iii) in the case of a Variable Note, at an amount determined by the Calculation Agent or the

Determination Agent (as applicable) that would on the due date for redemption have the

effect of preserving for the holder of the Note the economic equivalent of the obligation of

the Issuer to make the payment of the:

(A) Final Redemption Amount on the Maturity Date; and
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(B) an amount or amounts representing the interest that is due as at the date of

redemption.

(g) Instalments

Instalment Notes will be redeemed in the Instalment Amounts and on the Instalment Dates
specified in the applicable Final Terms. In the case of early redemption, the Early Redemption

Amount will be determined pursuant to paragraph (f) above.

(h) Partly-Paid Notes

Partly-Paid Notes will be redeemed at maturity in accordance with the provisions of the

applicable Final Terms. In the case of Early Redemption, the Early Redemption Amount will be

determined pursuant to Condition 7(f)(i) above.

(i) Purchases

The Issuer, the Guarantor or any Subsidiary of the Issuer or the Guarantor may at any time

purchase Notes (provided that, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, all unmatured Receipts,

Coupons and Talons appertaining thereto are purchased therewith and in the case of Subordinated
Notes such purchases are carried out in accordance with Condition 7(b)) at any price in the open

market or otherwise. Such Notes may be held, reissued, resold or, at the option of the Issuer or the

Guarantor, surrendered to any Paying Agent and/or the Registrar and/or (in the case of Canadian

Notes) the Canadian Agent for cancellation or, in the case of the Australian Domestic Notes,

cancelled by the Australian Registrar.

(j) Cancellation

All Notes which are redeemed will forthwith be cancelled (together with all unmatured Receipts,

Coupons and Talons attached thereto or surrendered therewith at the time of redemption). All Notes

so cancelled and Notes purchased and cancelled pursuant to paragraph (i) above (together with all
unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons cancelled therewith) shall be forwarded to the Principal

Paying Agent and cannot be reissued or resold. Cancellation of an Australian Domestic Note will be

taken to have occurred, upon redemption of the Note, on an entry being made in the Australian

Register that the Note has been redeemed or cancelled or transferred to ANTS.

(k) Late payment

If any amount payable in respect of any Note is improperly withheld or refused upon its

becoming due and repayable or is paid after its due date or on or after accelerated maturity following

an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 10a and 10b), the amount due and repayable in respect

of such Note (the ‘‘Late Payment’’) shall itself accrue interest (both before and after any judgment or
other order of a court of competent jurisdiction) from (and including) the date on which such

payment was improperly withheld or refused or, as the case may be, became due, to (but excluding)

the Late Payment Date in accordance with the following provisions:

(i) in the case of a Note other than a Zero Coupon/Discount Note, a Non-Interest Bearing

Note or a Variable Note (but including an Instalment Note or Partly-Paid Note) at the

rate determined in accordance with Condition 5(a) or 5(b), as the case may be;

(ii) in the case of a Zero Coupon/Discount Note, at a rate equal to the Stated Yield; and

(iii) in the case of a Non-Interest Bearing Note or a Variable Note, at a rate calculated by the

Calculation Agent so as to reasonably compensate the holder of the Note for the cost of

funding the delay in receiving the Late Payment,

in each case on the basis of the Day Count Fraction specified in the applicable Final Terms or, if

none is specified, on a 30/360 basis.

For the purpose of this paragraph (k) the ‘‘Late Payment Date’’ shall mean the earlier of:

(A) the date which the Trustee determines to be the date on which, upon further
presentation of the relevant Note, payment of the full amount (including interest as

aforesaid) in the relevant currency in respect of such Note is to be made; and

(B) the seventh day after notice is given to the relevant Noteholder(s) (whether

individually or in accordance with Condition 14) that the full amount (including

interest as aforesaid) in the relevant currency in respect of such Note is available for

payment,
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provided that in the case of both (A) and (B), upon further presentation thereof being duly made,

such payment is made.

Interpretation

In relation to Australian Domestic Notes, references in this Condition 7 to the ‘‘Principal

Paying Agent’’, ‘‘Paying Agent’’ or ‘‘Registrar’’ shall be deemed to be the Australian Registrar.

8. Taxation

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes, Receipts and Coupons by the
Issuer or (as the case may be) the Guarantor will be made without withholding of or deduction for,

or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of

whatsoever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of the United Kingdom or the taxing

jurisdiction of any territory in which the Issuer is incorporated or resident for taxation purposes, or

any political subdivision of either of the same or by any authority therein or thereof having power to

tax, unless the withholding or deduction of such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges is

required by law. In that event the Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) will pay such

additional amounts as may be necessary in order that the net amounts receivable by the holders after
such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts of principal, and interest, if

applicable, which would have been receivable in respect of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons, as the

case may be, in the absence of any requirement to make such withholding or deduction, except that

no such additional amounts shall be payable in relation to any payment with respect to any Note,

Receipt or Coupon:

(i) presented for payment by, or by a third party on behalf of, a holder who (a) would be

able to avoid such withholding or deduction by satisfying any statutory requirements or by

making a declaration of non-residence or other similar claim for exemption to the relevant

tax authority but fails to do so, or (b) is liable to such taxes, duties, assessments or

governmental charges in respect of such Note, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his having

some connection with the above-mentioned taxing jurisdiction of the Issuer (in the case of

payments by the Issuer) or the United Kingdom (in the case of payments by the
Guarantor) other than the mere holding of such Note, Receipt or Coupon; or

(ii) where such Note, Receipt or Coupon is presented for payment in the jurisdiction in which

the Issuer or the Guarantor is incorporated or resident for tax purposes or in the United

Kingdom; or

(iii) where such withholding or deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is

required to be made pursuant to any law implementing or complying with or introduced in

order to conform to any European Union Directive on the taxation of savings income

implementing the conclusions of the ECOFIN Council meeting of 26 to 27 November 2000

or any agreement between the European Community and any other jurisdiction providing
for equivalent measures; or

(iv) presented for payment by, or on behalf of, a holder who would have been able to avoid

such withholding or deduction by presenting the relevant Note, Receipt or Coupon to

another Paying Agent in a Member State of the European Union; or

(v) presented for payment more than 30 days after the Relevant Date except to the extent that

the holder thereof would have been entitled to such additional amounts on presenting the

same for payment on the last day of such period of 30 days.

For this purpose, the ‘‘Relevant Date’’ means the date on which the payment in respect of the

Note, Receipt or Coupon first becomes due and payable but, if the full amount of the moneys

payable on such date has not been received by the Principal Paying Agent or the Trustee or (in the

case of Canadian Notes) the Canadian Agent on or prior to such date, the ‘‘Relevant Date’’ means

the date on which such moneys shall have been so received and notice to that effect shall have been
given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14.

9. Prescription

The Notes and, if applicable, the Receipts and Coupons (which for this purpose shall not

include Talons) will become void unless presented for payment or, in the case of Australian Domestic

Notes, unless payment is otherwise claimed within a period of 10 years in the case of principal and

five years in the case of interest from the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8) relating hereto.
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The Issuer shall be discharged from its obligation to pay principal on a Registered Note (other than

an Australian Domestic Note) to the extent that the relevant Registered Note certificate has not been

surrendered to the Registrar by, or a cheque which has been duly despatched in the Specified

Currency remains uncashed at, the end of the period of 10 years from the Relevant Date in respect
of such payment. The Issuer shall be discharged from its obligation to pay interest on a Registered

Note to the extent that a cheque which has been duly despatched in the Specified Currency remains

uncashed at the end of the period of five years from the Relevant Date in respect of such payment.

There shall not be included in any Coupon sheet issued on exchange of a Talon any Coupon the

claim for payment in respect of which would be void pursuant to this Condition or Condition 6(b) or

any Talon which would be void pursuant to Condition 6(b).

10. Events of Default and Enforcement

(a) Events of Default in relation to Senior Notes

The Trustee at its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by the holders of at least one-

quarter in nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary

Resolution of the Noteholders shall (subject in each case to being indemnified to its satisfaction), give

notice to the Issuer that the Notes are, and they shall accordingly thereby become, immediately due

and repayable each at their Early Redemption Amount (determined pursuant to Condition 7(f))

together with accrued interest as provided in Condition 7(k), in any of the following events (‘‘Events
of Default’’):

(i) if default is made for a period of seven days or more in the payment of any principal or

14 days or more in the payment of any interest due in respect of the Notes or any of

them; or

(ii) if the Issuer or the Guarantor fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations

under the Notes or the Trust Deed and (except where the Trustee considers such failure to

be incapable of remedy when no such continuation or notice as is hereinafter referred to

will be required) such failure continues for the period of 30 days (or such longer period as
the Trustee may permit) next following the service by the Trustee on the Issuer or the

Guarantor, as the case may be, of notice requiring the same to be remedied; or

(iii) if any loan or loans or other indebtedness for borrowed money (which loan or loans or

other indebtedness has or have an outstanding principal or aggregate principal amount of

at least the Cross Default Amount) of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Principal

Subsidiary becomes or become due and repayable prematurely by reason of an event of

default (however described) or the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary fails
to make any payment in respect thereof on the due date for such payment as extended by

any applicable grace period as originally provided or the security for any such loan or

loans or other indebtedness for borrowed money becomes enforceable or if default is made

by the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary in making any payment due

under any guarantee given by it in respect of any such loan or loans or other indebtedness

for borrowed money of any person having an outstanding principal or aggregate principal

amount of at least the Cross Default Amount; or

(iv) if the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary ceases to carry on the whole or a
substantial part of its business (save, in the case of the Issuer where it is incorporated in

England and Wales, for so long as it remains after such cessation not unable to pay its

debts within the meaning of Section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986, and save, in each

case, for the purposes of a reorganisation on terms approved by the Trustee and save, in

the case of a Principal Subsidiary, where such cessation results from a solvent winding up

of such Principal Subsidiary and the assets thereof attributable directly or indirectly to the

Guarantor are distributed to any one or more of the Issuer, the Guarantor and the other

Subsidiaries), or the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary stops payment of,
or admits inability to pay, its debts as they fall due; or

(v) if an administrative or other receiver or an administrator or other similar official is

appointed in relation to the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary or in

relation to the whole or a material part of the assets of any of them or an encumbrancer

takes possession of the whole or a material part of the assets of any of them, or a distress
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or execution of other process is levied or enforced upon or sued out against the whole or

a material part of the assets of any of them, and, in any of the foregoing cases in relation

to a Principal Subsidiary, is not discharged within 30 days; or

(vi) if an effective resolution is passed or an order is made for the winding up or dissolution of

the Issuer or the Guarantor (except for the purposes of a reconstruction or amalgamation
the terms of which have previously been approved in writing by the Trustee or by an

Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders); or

(vii) if an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the winding up or dissolution of

any Principal Subsidiary (except for the purposes of a reconstruction or amalgamation the

terms of which have previously been approved in writing by the Trustee or by an

Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders or a resolution for the solvent winding up of

such Principal Subsidiary where the assets thereof attributable directly or indirectly to the

Guarantor are distributed to any one or more of the Issuer, the Guarantor and the other

Subsidiaries),

Provided that, in the case of any such Event of Default other than those described in

paragraphs (i) and (vi) above, the Trustee shall have certified to the Issuer that such Event of Default
is, in its opinion, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders.

For the purpose of this Condition, a ‘‘Principal Subsidiary’’ at any time shall mean a Subsidiary
of the Guarantor inter alia:

(i) whose total assets (consolidated in the case of a Subsidiary which itself has subsidiaries)
attributable to the Guarantor represent not less than 10 per cent. of the consolidated total

assets of the Guarantor and its Subsidiaries attributable to the Guarantor, as calculated by

reference to the then latest audited accounts (consolidated or, as the case may be,

unconsolidated) of such Subsidiary and the then latest audited consolidated accounts of the

Guarantor and its Subsidiaries (or, in each case, if no such accounts have been prepared

and audited, calculated as provided in the Trust Deed); or

(ii) to which is transferred the whole or substantially the whole of the assets and undertaking

of a Subsidiary of the Guarantor which immediately prior to such transfer is a Principal

Subsidiary,

all as more particularly defined in the Trust Deed. A report by the Auditors (as defined in the Trust

Deed) of the Guarantor (whether or not addressed to the Trustee) that in their opinion a Subsidiary
of the Guarantor is or is not or was or was not at any particular time a Principal Subsidiary shall, in

the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on all parties.

For the purpose of this Condition, ‘‘Cross Default Amount’’ shall mean the greater of: (a)

£25,000,000 or its equivalent in any other currency or composite currency; and (b) such amount in

sterling as is equal to 1 per cent. of the Adjusted Tangible Net Worth (as defined in the Trust Deed)

of the Guarantor and its Subsidiaries or its equivalent in any other currency or composite currency.

A certificate by the Auditors of the Guarantor as to the amount of the Cross Default Amount shall,

in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on all parties.

(b) Events of Default and Enforcement in relation to Subordinated Notes

In the case of Subordinated Notes, if the Issuer shall not make any payment in respect of the

Notes for a period of 14 days or more after the due date for the same, the Issuer shall be considered
to be in default under the Trust Deed, the Notes and the Coupons and the Trustee may,

notwithstanding the provisions of this Condition 10(b), institute proceedings in England (but not

elsewhere) for the winding-up of the Issuer and/or prove in the winding-up of the Issuer and/or claim

in the liquidation of the Issuer for such payment, provided, however, that the Trustee may only take

any such action on or after the failure by the Issuer to make payment as described in this Condition

10(b) but, save as provided below, may take no further or other action to enforce, prove or claim for

any such payment.

The Trustee may at its discretion and without further notice institute such proceedings against

the Issuer as it may think fit to enforce any obligation, condition or provision binding on the Issuer
under the Trust Deed, the Notes or the Coupons (other than any payment obligation of the Issuer

under or arising from the Trust Deed, the Notes or the Coupons) provided that the Issuer shall not

by virtue of the institution of any such proceedings be obliged to pay any sum or sums relating to

the Notes or Coupons including principal, interest, expenses or damages sooner than the same would

otherwise have been payable by it.
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If, otherwise than for the purposes of reconstruction or amalgamation on terms previously

approved in writing by the Trustee, an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the

winding-up of the Issuer, the Trustee may at its discretion give notice to the Issuer that the Notes

are, and they shall accordingly immediately become, due and repayable at their Early Redemption
Amount, together with accrued interest as provided in the Trust Deed.

The Trustee shall not be bound to take any of the actions referred to in this Condition 10(b) to

enforce the obligations of the Issuer under the Trust Deed, the Notes or the Coupons or any other

action under the Trust Deed or the Notes unless (i) it shall have been so requested by an

Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders or in writing by the holders of at least one-quarter in

principal amount of the Notes then outstanding and (ii) it shall have been indemnified and/or secured

to its satisfaction.

No Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the

Issuer or to prove in the winding-up of the Issuer unless the Trustee, having become so bound to

proceed or being able to prove in such case winding-up, fails to do so within a reasonable period and

such failure shall be continuing, in which case the Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder shall
have only such rights against the Issuer as those which the Trustee is entitled to exercise under this

Condition 10(b). Any such proceedings brought by any Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder

shall be brought in the name of the Trustee, subject to such Noteholder, Receiptholder or

Couponholder indemnifying the Trustee to its satisfaction.

No remedy against the Issuer, other than as referred to in this Condition 10(b), shall be

available to the Trustee or the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, whether for the

recovery of amounts owing in respect of the Notes or under the Trust Deed or in respect of any

breach by the Issuer of any of its other obligations under or in respect of the Notes or under the

Trust Deed (other than amounts owing in respect of the Trustee’s remuneration, costs, expenses and

funds due to the Trustee personally).

11. Replacement of Notes, Receipts, Coupons and Talons

This Condition 11 does not apply to Australian Domestic Notes.

Should any Note or, if applicable, Receipt, Coupon or Talon be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced

or destroyed it may be replaced, in the case of Bearer Notes, Receipts or Coupons, at the specified

office of the Principal Paying Agent or, in the case of Registered Notes, at the specified office of the

Registrar (or in any case such other place of which notice shall have been given to the Noteholders

in accordance with Condition 14) upon payment in any such case by the claimant of the expenses

incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity as the Issuer may

reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Notes or, if applicable, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must

be surrendered before replacements will be issued.

12. Agents

The names of the initial Agents and their initial specified offices are set out below.

The Issuer is entitled, subject to the prior written approval of the Trustee, to vary or terminate

the appointment of any Agent or the Australian Registrar and/or approve any change in the specified

office through which any Agent or the Australian Registrar acts and/or, subject to prior consultation

with the Trustee, appoint additional or other Agents or Australian Registrars, provided that:

(a) there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent and a Registrar;

(b) so long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange or admitted to listing by any other

relevant authority, there will at all times be a Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes)

and a Transfer Agent (in the case of Registered Note other than Australian Domestic
Notes) with a specified office in such place as may be required by the rules and regulations

of the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority;

(c) there will at all times be a Paying Agent with a specified office in a city approved by the

Trustee in continental Europe other than any such jurisdiction in which the Issuer or the

Guarantor is incorporated or resident for tax purposes;

(d) so long as any of the Rule 144A Global Notes payable in a Specified Currency other than

U.S. dollars are held through DTC or its nominee, there will at all times be an Exchange

Agent with a specified office in London;
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(e) so long as any Australian Domestic Notes are outstanding, there will at all times be an

Australian Registrar; and

(f) so long as any Canadian Notes are outstanding, there will at all times be a Canadian

Agent.

In addition, the Issuer shall forthwith appoint a Paying Agent having a specified office in New

York City in the circumstances described in Condition 6(f). Any variation, termination, appointment

or change relating to the Notes shall only take effect (other than in the case of insolvency, when it
shall be of immediate effect) after not less than 30 nor more than 45 days’ prior notice thereof shall

have been given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14.

In acting under the Agency Agreement (and, if applicable, the Sub-Paying Agency Agreement)

and the Registry Services Agreement, respectively, the Agents and the Australian Registrar, act solely

as agents or, as the case may be, registrars of the Issuer and the Guarantor and, in certain

circumstances, of the Trustee and do not assume any obligation to, or relationship of agency or trust

with, any Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders. The Agency Agreement and the Sub-Paying

Agency Agreement contain provisions permitting any entity into which any Agent is merged or

converted or with which it is consolidated or to which it transfers all or substantially all of its assets

to become the successor agent.

The Issuer undertakes that, it will ensure that it maintains a Paying Agent with a specified office
in a Member State of the European Union that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to

European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any other Directive implementing the conclusions of the

ECOFIN Council meeting of 26 to 27 November, 2000 or any law implementing, or complying with,

or introduced in order to conform to, any such Directive PROVIDED THAT under no circumstances

shall the Issuer be obliged to maintain a Paying Agent with a specified office in such Member State

unless at least one European Member State does not require a Paying Agent making payments

through a specified office in that Member State to so withhold or deduct tax.

The Issuer also undertakes that if the European Community reaches an agreement with any

jurisdiction of the nature referred to in Condition 8(iii), the Issuer will ensure that it maintains a

Paying Agent with a specified office in a jurisdiction that will not be obliged to withhold or deduct
tax pursuant to that agreement PROVIDED THAT there is at least one such jurisdiction.

13. Exchange of Talons

On and after the Interest Payment Date on which the final Coupon comprised in any Coupon

sheet matures, the Talon (if any) forming part of such Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the

specified office of the Principal Paying Agent or any other Paying Agent in exchange for a further

Coupon sheet including (if such further Coupon sheet does not include Coupons to (and including)

the final date for the payment of interest due in respect of the Note to which it appertains) a further
Talon, subject to the provisions of Condition 9.

14. Notices

All notices regarding the Bearer Notes will be deemed to be validly given if published in one

leading English language daily newspaper of general circulation in London. It is expected that such

publication will be made in the Financial Times in London. The Issuer shall also ensure that notices

are duly published in a manner which complies with the rules and regulations of any stock exchange

or any other relevant authority on which the Bearer Notes are for the time being listed or by which
they have been admitted to listing. Any such notice will be deemed to have been given on the date of

the first publication. If publication as provided above is not practicable, notice will be given in such

other manner, and will be deemed to have been given on such date, as the Trustee shall approve.

All notices regarding the Registered Notes will be deemed to be validly given if sent by first

class mail or (if posted to an address overseas) by airmail to the holders (or the first named of joint

holders) at their respective addresses recorded in the Register or the Australian Register where

applicable and will be deemed to have been given on the fourth day after mailing and, in addition,

for so long as any Registered Notes are listed on a stock exchange or admitted to listing by any
other relevant authority and the rules of that stock exchange or other relevant authority so require,

the relevant notice will be published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the place or places

required by the rules of that stock exchange or other relevant authority. In addition, notices

regarding Australian Domestic Notes shall also be published in a leading daily newspaper of general

circulation in Australia. It is expected that such notices will normally be published in The Australian
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Financial Review. Any such notice will be deemed to have been given on the date of such publication.

If the giving of notice as provided above is not practicable, notice will be given in such other

manner, and will be deemed to have been given on such date, as the Trustee shall approve.

Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, notice may be given (so long as any Global

Notes representing the Notes are held in their entirety on behalf of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream,
Luxembourg and/or CDS (and so long as the rules of any stock exchange on which the Notes are

listed, or the rules of any other relevant authority by which the Notes have been admitted to listing,

permit)) by delivery of the relevant notice to DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or CDS

(instead of by way of publication or mailing) for communication by them to the holders of the Notes

provided that, in addition, for so long as any Notes are listed on a stock exchange or admitted to

listing by any other relevant authority and the rules of that stock exchange or other relevant

authority so require, such notice will be published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in a

place or places required by the rules of that stock exchange or other relevant authority. Any such
notice shall be deemed to have been given to the holders of the Notes the day after the day on which

the said notice was given to DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or CDS as the case may

be.

Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same,

together (in the case of any Note in definitive form) with the relative Note or Notes, with the

Principal Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes), the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes

other than Canadian Notes), the Canadian Agent (in the case of Canadian Notes) or the Australian

Registrar (in the case of Australian Domestic Notes). Whilst any of the Notes are represented by a

Global Note, such notice may be given by any holder of a Note to the Principal Paying Agent, the
Canadian Agent or the Registrar through DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or CDS, as

the case may be, in such manner as the Principal Paying Agent, the Canadian Agent, the Registrar

and DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or CDS, as the case may be, may approve for

this purpose.

15. Meetings of Noteholders, Modification, Waiver, Determination and Substitution

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of the Noteholders to consider any

matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a

modification of any of the provisions of these Terms and Conditions, the Notes, the Receipts, the
Coupons or any of the provisions of the Trust Deed or the Deed Poll. Such a meeting may be

convened by the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Trustee and shall be convened by the Issuer at the

request of Noteholders holding not less than ten per cent. in nominal amount of the Notes for the

time being outstanding. The quorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution is

one or more persons holding or representing a clear majority in nominal amount of the Notes for the

time being outstanding, or at any adjourned such meeting one or more persons being or representing

Noteholders whatever the nominal amount of the Notes so held or represented, except that at any

meeting the business of which includes the modification of certain provisions of these Terms and
Conditions, the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons, the Trust Deed or the Deed Poll, the quorum shall

be one or more persons holding or representing not less than two-thirds, or at any adjourned such

meeting one or more persons holding or representing not less than one-third, in nominal amount of

the Notes for the time being outstanding. An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the

Noteholders shall be binding on all the Noteholders, whether or not they are present at the meeting,

and on all Receiptholders and Couponholders.

The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders or

Couponholders, to:

(a) any modification of, or any waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of,

any of the provisions of these Terms and Conditions, the Notes, the Receipts, the

Coupons, the Trust Deed, the Registry Services Agreement or the Deed Poll or, in the case
of modification, the Agency Agreement or the Sub-Paying Agency Agreement which, in the

opinion of the Trustee, is not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders; or

(b) any modification of any of the provisions of these Terms and Conditions, the Notes, the

Receipts, the Coupons, the Trust Deed, the Registry Services Agreement or the Deed Poll

which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest error or

to comply with mandatory provisions of applicable law.

The Issuer and the Principal Paying Agent or the Canadian Agent (in the case of Canadian

Notes) or the Australian Registrar (in the case of Australian Domestic Notes) may agree, without the
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consent of the Trustee, the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, to any modification of

any of the provisions of any applicable Final Terms which is of a formal, minor or technical nature

or is made to correct a manifest error.

The Trustee may also determine, without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders or

the Couponholders, that any Event of Default or Potential Event of Default (as defined in the Trust

Deed) shall not be treated as such if the Trustee is satisfied that so to do will not be materially

prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders.

Subject as provided in the Trust Deed, the Trustee, if it is satisfied that so to do would not be

materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders, may agree, without the consent of the

Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, to the substitution of (i) the Guarantor or any other
person or persons incorporated in any country in the world in place of the Issuer as principal debtor

under the Trust Deed, the Deed Poll (where applicable), the Notes and, if applicable, the Receipts

and Coupons provided that, except in the case of the substitution of the Guarantor, the obligations

of such substitute as principal debtor under the Trust Deed, the Deed Poll (where applicable), the

Notes and, if applicable, the Receipts and Coupons shall be guaranteed by the Guarantor in such

form as the Trustee may require or (ii) any successor company of the Guarantor in place of the

Guarantor as guarantor in respect of the Trust Deed, the Deed Poll (where applicable), the Notes

and, if applicable, the Receipts and Coupons. The Trustee may also agree without the consent of the
Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders to the addition of another company as an issuer of

Notes under the Programme and the Trust Deed. Any such addition shall be subject to the relevant

provisions of the Trust Deed and to such amendment thereof and such other conditions as the

Trustee may require.

In connection with the exercise by it of any of its trusts, powers, authorities or discretions

(including, but without limitation, any modification, waiver, authorisation, determination or

substitution), the Trustee shall have regard to the general interests of the Noteholders as a class but

shall not have regard to any interests arising from circumstances particular to individual Noteholders,

Receiptholders or Couponholders (whatever their number) and, in particular, but without limitation,

shall not have regard to the consequences (including any tax consequences) of such exercise for

individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders (whatever their number) resulting from their

being for any purpose domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected with, or subject to the
jurisdiction of, any particular territory and the Trustee shall not be entitled to require, nor shall any

Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder be entitled to claim, from the Issuer, the Guarantor or

any other person any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax consequence of any such

exercise upon individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders except, in the case of the

Issuer and the Guarantor, to the extent provided for in Condition 8 and/or any undertaking given in

addition to, or in substitution for, Condition 8 pursuant to the Trust Deed.

Any such modification, waiver, authorisation, determination, substitution or addition as

aforesaid shall be binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders and, unless

the Trustee agrees otherwise, any such modification or substitution shall be notified to the

Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 as soon as practicable thereafter.

16. Further Issues

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders, the

Receiptholders or the Couponholders to create and issue further notes having terms and conditions

the same as the Notes or the same in all respects save for the issue price and date of issue thereof

and the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon and so as to be consolidated and

form a single series with the outstanding Notes. The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening a

single meeting of the Noteholders and the holders of notes of other Series in certain circumstances

where the Trustee so decides.

17. Notice to FSA

In respect of Subordinated Notes, no modification to these Terms and Conditions or any other

provisions of the Trust Deed shall become effective unless the Issuer shall have given at least one

month’s prior written notice to, and received no objection from, the FSA, or such other period of

notice as the FSA may from time to time require or accept and, in any event, provided that there is

a requirement to give such notice.
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18. Enforcement

At any time after the Notes or any of them shall have become immediately due and repayable

and have not been repaid, the Trustee may, at its discretion and without further notice, institute such
proceedings against the Issuer and/or the Guarantor as it may think fit to enforce repayment thereof

together with accrued interest, if any, and to enforce the provisions of the Trust Deed or the Deed

Poll, but it shall not be bound to institute any such proceedings unless (a) it shall have been so

directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders or so requested in writing by the holders

of at least one-quarter of the nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding and (b) it shall have

been indemnified and/or secured and/or prefunded to its satisfaction. No Noteholder, Receiptholder or

Couponholder shall be entitled to proceed against the Issuer and/or the Guarantor unless the Trustee,

having become bound so to proceed, fails to do so within a reasonable time and such failure is
continuing.

A person who is not a Noteholder has no right by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third

Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of the Notes, but this does not affect any right or remedy

which exists or is available apart from that Act.

19. Governing Law and Submission to Jurisdiction

(a) Governing law

The Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement, the Sub-Paying Agency Agreement, the Notes, the

Receipts and the Coupons, and any non-contractual obligations arising out of, or in connection with,

the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement, the Sub-Paying Agency Agreement, the Notes, the Receipts

and/or the Coupons, are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law except
that Australian Domestic Notes, the Deed Poll and the Registry Services Agreement are governed by,

and shall be construed in accordance with, the laws in force in New South Wales, Australia.

(b) Submission to jurisdiction

The Issuer (except where the Issuer is Abbey National Treasury Services plc) has irrevocably

agreed in the Trust Deed for the exclusive benefit of the Trustee, the Noteholders, the Receiptholders

and the Couponholders that the Courts of England are to have jurisdiction to settle any disputes
which may arise out of or in connection with these Terms and Conditions, the Trust Deed, the

Notes, the Receipts and/or the Coupons (including a dispute relating to any non-contractual

obligations arising out of, or in connection with, these Terms and Conditions, the Trust Deed, the

Notes, the Receipts and/or the Coupons) and that accordingly any suit, action or proceedings arising

out of or in connection with these Terms and Conditions, the Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts

and/or the Coupons (together referred to as ‘‘Proceedings’’) (including any Proceedings relating to any

non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with these Terms and Conditions, the

Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts and/or the Coupons) may be brought in such Courts.

In the case of Australian Domestic Notes, Abbey National Treasury Services plc has irrevocably

agreed for the benefit of Noteholders that the courts of New South Wales, Australia and courts of

appeal from them are to have non-exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out of

or in connection with the Australian Domestic Notes, any Deed Poll or the Registry Services

Agreement and that accordingly any suit, action or proceedings arising out of or in connection with

the Australian Domestic Notes, any Deed Poll or the Registry Services Agreement (together referred

to as ‘‘Australian Proceedings’’) may be brought in such courts.

The Issuer (except, in the case of the Courts of England, where the Issuer is Abbey National

Treasury Services plc) has in the Trust Deed irrevocably waived any objection which it may have now

or hereafter to the laying of the venue of any Proceedings (or any Australian Proceedings) in any

such court and any claim that any such Proceedings (or Australian Proceedings) have been brought in

an inconvenient forum and has further irrevocably agreed that a judgment in any such Proceedings

(or Australian Proceedings) brought in the Courts of England (or the courts of New South Wales

and courts of appeal from them) shall be conclusive and binding upon it and may be enforced in the

courts of any other jurisdiction.

Nothing contained in this Condition shall limit any right to take any suit, action or proceedings

against the Issuer in any other court of competent jurisdiction, nor shall the taking of any suit, action

or proceedings in one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of any suit, action or proceedings in

any other jurisdiction, whether concurrently or not.
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(c) Appointment of Process Agent

The Issuer (except where the Issuer is Abbey National Treasury Services plc) has in the Trust

Deed appointed the Guarantor at its registered office for the time being as its agent for service of
process in England, and has undertaken that, in the event of the Guarantor ceasing so to act, it will

appoint such other person as the Trustee may approve as its agent for service of process in England.

For so long as any Australian Domestic Notes are outstanding, Abbey National Treasury

Services plc has appointed Dabserv Corporate Services Pty Limited (ABN 73 001 824 111) as its

agent for the time being to accept service of process on its behalf in New South Wales in respect of

any legal action or proceedings as may be brought in the courts of New South Wales, Australia or

the federal courts of Australia. In the event of Dabserv Corporate Services Pty Limited (ABN 73 001

824 111) ceasing to act, Abbey National Treasury Services plc will appoint such other agent as the

Trustee may approve.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from each issue of Notes will be used to fund the business of the Group. If in

respect of any particular issue, there is a particular identified use of proceeds, this will be stated in

the applicable Final Terms.
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ABBEY NATIONAL TREASURY SERVICES plc

ANTS is a public limited liability company incorporated and registered in England and Wales

under the Companies Act 1985. ANTS was incorporated on 24 January, 1989 with registered number

2338548, is regulated by the Financial Services Authority and is an authorised person with permission

to accept deposits under the FSMA.

ANTS is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Santander UK (formerly Abbey National plc).

ANTS has given a full and unconditional guarantee in respect of the unsubordinated liabilities of
Santander UK incurred prior to 31 July, 2012 and in turn Santander UK has given a full and

unconditional guarantee in respect of the liabilities of ANTS incurred prior to 31 July, 2012. ANTS

is not a guarantor under the Programme and the guarantee by ANTS does not apply to any

Subordinated Notes.

ANTS’s registered office is at 2 Triton Square, Regent’s Place, London, NW1 3AN. The

telephone number of ANTS’s registered office is 0870 607 6000.

The principal activity of ANTS is to provide treasury, corporate and wholesale banking services.

ANTS contains part of three divisions of the Group:

* Asset & Liability Management (‘‘ALM’’);

* Global Banking & Markets (‘‘GBM’’); and

* Corporate Banking.

ALM is responsible for managing the Group’s structural balance sheet shape and, in

conjunction with Santander UK’s Risk Division, tactical liquidity risk management. This includes

short-term and medium-term funding, covered bond and securitisation programmes. ALM’s

responsibilities also include Santander UK’s Retail Banking’s product and structural exposure to

interest rates and, in that role, ALM is a link between Santander UK’s Retail Banking and SGBM.
ALM recommends and helps to implement Board, Asset and Liability Management Committee and

Risk Committee policies for all aspects of balance sheet management, formulating guidance for, and

monitoring, the overall balance sheet shape, including maturity profile.

GBM is principally structured into two business areas: Rates and Equity. Rates covers sales and

trading activity for fixed income derivatives. Equity comprises the Equity Derivatives, Property

Derivatives and Short Term Markets areas. Equity and residential property derivatives activities

include the manufacture of structured products sold to retail customers both by Santander UK and

by other financial institutions. Short Term Markets runs the securities lending/borrowing and

repurchases (‘‘repo’’) businesses and retains a US branch for funding purposes.

Corporate Banking provides a range of banking services through specialist businesses and

supports the network of Regional Business Centres through which, following the transfer of A&L to

Santander UK by Banco Santander, a broad range of banking products is now offered including

loans, deposits, treasury services, asset finance, cash transmission, trade finance and invoice
discounting. The specialist businesses service customers in various business sectors including Real

Estate, Social Housing and Infrastructure.

As at the date hereof, the following are the members of the Board of Directors of ANTS:

Position Name

Directors Luis de Sousa

Stephen Pateman

Brian Morrison

David Green

The business address of each of the above is 2 Triton Square, Regent’s Place, London NW1

3AN with telephone number 0870 607 6000. None of the above has any activities outside the Group

which are significant within the context of the Group.

Conflicts of Interest

There are no actual or potential conflicts of interest between the duties to ANTS of the persons
listed as members of the Board of Directors above and their private interests or other duties.
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SANTANDER UK PLC AND THE SANTANDER UK GROUP

Background

The Abbey National Building Society (the ‘‘Society’’) was formed in 1944 with the merger of

two long-standing building societies and is now a public limited liability company incorporated and

registered in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985. In 1988, Abbey National plc (now
Santander UK plc) was incorporated as a bank with registered number 2294747 and in 1989 the

Society transferred business to Abbey National plc as part of the conversion and listing on the

London Stock Exchange. In 2003, the brand name was shortened to Abbey.

On 12 November, 2004, Banco Santander completed the acquisition of the entire issued ordinary
share capital of Abbey National plc, implemented by means of a scheme of arrangement under

Section 425 of the Companies Act 1985, making Abbey National plc a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Banco Santander. Banco Santander is one of the largest banks in the world by market capitalisation.

Founded in 1857, Banco Santander has more than 90 million customers and over 14,000 branches.

As of 11 January, 2010, Abbey National plc changed its name to Santander UK plc and now

operates under the Santander brand name.

The registered office of Santander UK is at 2 Triton Square, Regent’s Place, London NW1
3AN. The telephone number of Santander UK’s registered office is +44 (0)870 607 6000.

Corporate Purpose and Strategy

Santander UK’s purpose is to maximise value for its shareholder, Banco Santander, by focusing

on offering a full commercial banking service in the United Kingdom providing value-for-money

products to customers. With the continuing support of Banco Santander, Santander UK aims to be

the best commercial bank in the United Kingdom. As testament to this focus, in both 2008 and 2009,

Santander UK won Euromoney’s ‘‘Best Bank in the U.K.’’ award. Meanwhile, Banco Santander won

Euromoney’s ‘‘Best Bank in Western Europe’’ award in 2009 and the ‘‘Best Bank in the World’’
award in 2008.

Business and Support Divisions

Santander UK’s management structure consists of a number of business and support divisions.

The business divisions consist of:

4 Retail Banking

Retail Banking consists of residential mortgages, savings, banking and consumer credit, online

banking and financial services through cahoot (the Group’s separately branded e-commerce retail
banking and financial services provider), general insurance, Santander Business Banking

(formerly known as Abbey Business), credit cards and earns a commission on products sold

through its agreements with Santander Asset Management UK Limited and Santander Cards

Limited for the provision of asset management and credit card services respectively.

4 Global Banking & Markets

Global Banking & Markets provides financial markets sales, trading and risk management

services, as well as manufacturing retail structured products. Global Banking & Markets is

principally structured into two business areas, Rates and Equity. Rates cover sales and trading
activity for fixed income derivatives. Equity comprises the Equity Derivatives, Property

Derivatives, and Short Term Markets areas. Equity and residential property derivatives activities

include the manufacture of structured products sold to retail customers both by Santander UK

and by other financial institutions. Short Term Markets runs the securities lending/borrowing

and repurchase agreement (‘repo’) businesses and retains a US branch for funding purposes.

4 Corporate Banking

Corporate Banking provides a range of banking services through its network of Regional
Business Centres and specialist businesses. Following the transfer of Alliance and Leicester plc

to Santander UK plc by Banco Santander on 9 January 2009 a broad range of banking

products is now offered including loans, current accounts, deposits, treasury services, asset

finance, cash transmission, trade finance and invoice discounting. The Regional Business Centres

have seen significant growth in their customer base in 2009 and primarily service small and
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medium-sized United Kingdom companies. The specialist businesses within Corporate Banking

service customers in various business sectors including Real Estate, Social Housing, and

Infrastructure.

4 Private Banking

Private Banking consists of Abbey National International Limited, Alliance & Leicester

International Ltd, Bradford & Bingley International Ltd and Santander UK’s majority interest
in Santander Private Banking UK Limited. It offers private banking services and other specialist

banking services.

The support divisions consist of:

4 Retail Products and Marketing – responsible for integrating and gaining the maximum value
from Santander UK’s products, marketing and brand communications to serve Santander UK’s

customers better.

4 Human Resources – responsible for delivering the human resources strategy and personnel

support.

4 Manufacturing – responsible for all information technology, cost control and operations activity,
including service centres.

4 Risk – responsible for ensuring that the Board and senior management team of Santander UK
are provided with an appropriate risk policy and control framework, and to report any material

risk issues to the Risk Committee and the Board.

4 Internal Audit – responsible for supervising the compliance, effectiveness and efficiency of

Santander UK’s internal control systems to manage its risks.

In addition there are a number of corporate units – Corporate Services; Service Quality;

Communications; Strategy & Planning, Financial Accounting & Economics; Group Infrastructure and

Santander Universities in the United Kingdom.

Transfer of retail deposits, branch network and related employees – Bradford & Bingley plc

In September 2008, following the announcement by HM Treasury to take Bradford & Bingley

plc into public ownership, the retail deposits, branch network and its related employees transferred,

under the provisions of the Banking (Special Provisions) Act 2008, to Santander UK. All of Bradford

& Bingley plc’s customer loans and treasury assets, including all its mortgage assets, were taken into

public ownership. The transfer to Santander UK consisted of the £20bn retail deposit base with 2.7

million customers, as well as Bradford & Bingley plc’s direct channels including 197 retail branches,

141 agencies (distribution outlets in third party premises) and related employees. The acquisition price
was £612m, including the transfer of £208m of capital relating to offshore entities. The transfer of

Bradford & Bingley plc’s customers and their retail deposits further strengthened Santander UK’s

retail customer deposit base and franchise.

Capital injection – Santander UK

On 13 October 2008, Banco Santander injected £1bn in the form of Tier one capital into

Santander UK. This capital has, in turn, been transferred to A&L in December 2008 (See

‘‘Acquisitions – Alliance & Leicester plc’’ below).

Acquisitions – Alliance & Leicester plc

In December, 2008, following the acquisition by Banco Santander, S.A. of A&L, Santander UK

injected £950m of capital into A&L through a subscription for: (i) 234,113,712 new A&L ordinary

shares for cash at £2.99 per ordinary share; (ii) US$220m undated subordinated notes issued by A&L;

and (iii) A115m undated subordinated notes issued by A&L. Previously, in October, 2008, Santander
UK subscribed for US$100m undated floating rate subordinated notes issued by A&L. As a result of

the subscription for ordinary shares, Santander UK held 35.6% of the issued ordinary share capital of

A&L at 31 December, 2008.

On 9 January, 2009, in order to optimise the capital, liquidity funding and overall financial

efficiency of the enlarged Santander group, Banco Santander, S.A. transferred all of its A&L shares

to Santander UK in exchange for newly issued ordinary shares of Santander UK. Accordingly,

Santander UK is now the immediate parent company of A&L.
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These business combinations allow the Group to deliver increased critical mass in the United

Kingdom through greater market share.

Santander UK has given a full and unconditional guarantee in respect of the unsubordinated

liabilities of A&L incurred prior to 31 July, 2012. A&L in turn has given a full and unconditional

guarantee in respect of the unsubordinated liabilities of Santander UK incurred prior to 31 July,

2012. Each guarantee is granted pursuant to a deed poll entered into by Santander UK and A&L on

19 March, 2009. The respective forms of the deed poll guarantees are included in the consolidated

annual report and accounts of Santander UK for the year ended 31 December, 2008 and the

consolidated annual report and accounts of A&L for the years ended 31 December, 2008 and
31 December, 2009, each of which are incorporated by reference into this Prospectus. The guarantee

by A&L of any obligation or liability lawfully incurred by Santander UK to any person, would

include any obligation of Santander UK as Guarantor of Senior Notes under the Programme.

A&L is a public limited company incorporated and registered in England and Wales under the

Companies Act 1985. The Alliance & Leicester Building Society (the ‘‘Society’’) was formed in 1985

with the merger of two long-standing building societies, the Alliance Building Society and the
Leicester Building Society. In 1997, A&L was incorporated as a bank and the Society transferred

business to A&L as part of the conversion and listing on the London Stock Exchange. A&L was

incorporated as a public limited company on 10 October 1996 (with registration number 3263713) and

the conversion became effective as of 21 April 1997.

A&L’s purpose is to maximise value for its shareholder, Santander UK, by focusing on offering

a full commercial banking service in the UK providing value-for-money products to customers.

The registered office of A&L is Carlton Park, Narborough, Leicester LE19 0AL. The telephone

number of A&L’s registered office is +44(0) 116 2011000.

A&L’s management structure consists of a number of business and support divisions. The

business divisions consist of: Retail Banking, Corporate Banking and Private Banking. The support
divisions consist of: Retail Products and Marketing, Human Resources, Manufacturing, Risk and

Internal Audit. In addition there are a number of corporate units: Corporate Services, Service

Quality, Group Infrastructure, Strategy & Planning, Financial Accounting & Economics,

Communications and Santander Universities in the UK.

The directors of A&L are set out in the table below, ‘‘Directors of Santander UK’’, which sets
forth the directors of Santander UK. The business address of each of the directors of A&L is 2

Triton Square, Regent’s Place, London NW1 3AN with telephone number 0870 607 6000. There are

no potential conflicts of interest between the duties to A&L of the persons listed under ‘‘Directors of

Santander UK’’ below and their private interests or other duties.

Change of Company Name

As of 11 January, 2010, Abbey National plc changed its name to Santander UK plc and now

operates under the name Santander. A&L will also be rebranded as Santander by the end of the 2010

financial year, as information technology changes ensure any Santander customer in the United

Kingdom can transact in all of its United Kingdom branches. The move is delivering a significant

advantage for customers as they have been able to use 1,000 branches from early 2010 and should be
able to use up to 1,300 branches by the end of the 2010 financial year. The change also reflects the

Group’s policy to operate under a single brand.

Changes to Alliance & Leicester plc: Part VII Transfer

A&L announced on 25 February, 2010 that, subject to Financial Services Authority support and

approval by the High Court of England and Wales, it intends to transfer its business to its immediate

parent company, Santander UK later in the 2010 financial year under a scheme allowed by Part VII

of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

On 27 April, 2010 ANTS and Santander UK issued a notice (the ‘‘Notice’’) to the holders of

the outstanding series of notes (as listed in the schedule to the Notice) in relation to the proposed

transfer (the ‘‘Transfer’’) to Santander UK of the business of A&L under Part VII of the Financial

Services and Markets Act 2000. The Notice explains, among other things, the mechanics of the

Transfer and the relevance to the Notes. The Notice is incorporated by reference into this Prospectus.
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Economic Environment and Competition

Competitive environment, future trends and outlook

The economic environment in 2009 remained very difficult, with falling house prices, volatile

share prices, rising unemployment, and difficulties facing banks, homeowners and savers. The UK’s

retail banks underwent further significant changes, with the UK Government increasing its holdings

of shares in The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc and Lloyds Banking Group plc. The UK

Government continues to support UK banks during the current market turmoil through the Special

Liquidity Scheme, the Asset Protection Scheme, the Credit Guarantee Scheme and the UK Banking

Act 2009.

Santander UK’s main competitors are other UK retail banks, building societies and other

financial services providers such as insurance companies, supermarket chains and large retailers. The

market remains highly competitive, driven largely by market incumbents. Management expects such

competition to continue in response to competition behaviour, consumer demand, technological

changes, the impact of consolidation, regulatory actions and other factors.

2010 is expected to be another difficult year for the UK economy. Although the UK economy

has begun to show signs of emerging from recession, unemployment is predicted to remain high,

resulting in continuing difficulties for banks, homeowners and savers. The outcome of the European

Union’s review of the UK Government’s support for The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc and

Lloyds Banking Group plc may also trigger further restructuring of the retail banking sector in the

UK. Santander UK continues to benefit from the strength of its parent company, Banco Santander,

S.A. and, as part of the Santander group, management remains confident of Santander UK’s strength

and potential to continue growing despite continuing challenging conditions in some of its core
personal financial services markets.
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Directors of Santander UK

The following table sets forth the directors of Santander UK plc.

Position Name Other principal activities

Chairman Lord Terence Burns Chairman, Glas Cymru Cyfyngedig (Welsh Water);
Chairman, Alliance & Leicester plc;
Non-Executive Director, Pearson plc;
President of the Society of Business Economists;
Non-Executive Director, Banco Santander, S.A.;
Fellow, London Business School;
Companion of the Institute of Management;
President, National Institute of Economic and Social
Research;
Vice President of the Royal Economic Society; and
Chairman, Channel Four Television Corporation.

Deputy Chairman
and Non-Executive Director

Juan Rodrıguez Inciarte Chief Executive of Santander Consumer Finance, S.A.;
Non-Executive Director, Banco Santander, S.A.;
Non-Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc;
Director, ABN AMRO Holding N.V.;
Director, ABN AMRO Bank N.V.;
Director, Banco Banif S.A.; and
Director Vista Capital de Expansion S.A.

Chief Executive Antonio Horta-Osorio Chief Executive of Alliance & Leicester plc;
Non-Executive Chairman, Banco Santander Totta S.A.;
Executive Vice President, Banco Santander, S.A.; and
Non-executive Director of the Court of the Bank of England.

Executive Directors Juan Colombás Calafat Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc;

Antonio Lorenzo Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc; and

Alison Brittain Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc.

Non-Executive Directors Jane Barker Chief Executive Officer of Equitas Limited; and
Non-Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc.

Roy Brown Chairman of GKN plc; and
Non-Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc.

José Marı́a Carballo Chairman of La Unión Resinera Española;
Chairman of Vista Desarrollo;
Director of Vista Capital Expansion S.A. S.G.E.C.R.;
Director of Teleférico Pico del Teide S.A; and
Non-Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc.

José Maria Fuster Non-Executive Director of Banesto;
Director, Ingenieria de Software Bancario S.L.;
Executive Vice President of Operations and Technology;
Chief Information Officer for Banco Santander, S.A.; and
Non-Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc.

Rosemary Thorne Non-Executive Director on the board of Smurfitt Kappa
Group plc; and
Non-Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc.

Keith Woodley Non-Executive Director, Alliance & Leicester plc; and
Council Member and Pro-Chancellor, University of Bath.

The business address of each of the directors is 2 Triton Square, Regent’s Place, London NW1

3AN with telephone number 0870 607 6000.

Conflicts of Interest

There are no actual or potential conflicts of interest between the duties to the Guarantor of the

persons listed under ‘‘Directors of Santander UK’’ above and their private interests or other duties.
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BOOK-ENTRY CLEARANCE SYSTEMS

The information set out below is subject to any change in or reinterpretation of the rules,

regulations and procedures of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or CDS (together, the

‘‘Clearing Systems’’) currently in effect. The information in this section concerning the Clearing Systems

has been obtained from sources that the Issuers and the Guarantor believe to be reliable. Investors

wishing to use the facilities of any of the Clearing Systems are advised to confirm the continued

applicability of the rules, regulations and procedures of the relevant Clearing System. None of the

Issuers, the Guarantor, the Trustee, the Dealers and the Agents will have any responsibility or liability

for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests

in the Notes held through the facilities of any Clearing System or for maintaining, supervising or

reviewing any records or payments relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Book-entry Systems

DTC

DTC has advised the Issuers and the Guarantor that it is a limited purpose trust company

organised under the New York Banking Law, a ‘‘banking organisation’’ within the meaning of the

New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System a ‘‘clearing corporation’’ within

the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a ‘‘clearing agency’’ registered

pursuant to Section 17A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for securities

that its participants (‘‘Participants’’) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post trade settlement
among Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic

computerised book-entry changes between Participants’ accounts, thereby eliminating the need for

physical movement of securities certificates. Direct participants include both U.S. and non-U.S.

securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other

organisations (‘‘Direct Participants’’). DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Depositary Trust &

Clearing Corporation (‘‘DTCC’’) DTC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants and

Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing

Corporation, MBS Clearing Corporation and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation (NSCC,
GSCC, MBSCC and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock

Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, Inc. and the National Association of Securities

Dealers, Inc.. Access to the DTC System is also available to others such as securities brokers and

dealers, banks and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a

Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (‘‘Indirect Participants’’). DTC has Standard & Poor’s

highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Direct or Indirect Participants are on file with

the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at

www.dtcc.com.

Under the rules, regulations and procedures creating and affecting DTC and its operations (the

‘‘Rules’’), DTC makes book-entry transfers of Registered Notes among Direct Participants on whose

behalf it acts with respect to Notes accepted into DTC’s book-entry settlement system (‘‘DTC

Notes’’) as described below and receives and transmits distributions of principal and interest on DTC

Notes. The Rules are on file with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. Direct
Participants and Indirect Participants with which beneficial owners of DTC Notes (‘‘Owners’’) have

accounts with respect to the DTC Notes are required to make book-entry transfers and receive and

transmit such payments on behalf of their respective Owners. Accordingly, although Owners who hold

DTC Notes through Direct Participants or Indirect Participants will not possess Registered Notes, the

Rules, by virtue of the requirements described above, provide a mechanism by which Direct

Participants can receive payments and transfer their interest with respect to the DTC Notes.

Purchases of DTC Notes under the DTC System must be made by or through Direct

Participants, which will receive a credit for the DTC Notes on DTC’s records. The ownership interest

of each actual purchaser of each DTC Note (‘‘Beneficial Owner’’) is in turn to be recorded on the

Direct and Indirect Participant’s records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from

DTC of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing

details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect
Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership

interests in the DTC Notes are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Participants

acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their

ownership interests in DTC Notes, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the DTC

Notes is discontinued.
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To facilitate subsequent transfers, all DTC Notes deposited by Participants with DTC are

registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other nominee as may be

requested by an authorised representative of DTC. The deposit of DTC Notes with DTC and their

registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other nominee effect no change in beneficial
ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the DTC Notes; DTC’s records

reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such DTC Notes are credited,

which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain

responsible for keeping an account of their holdings of DTC Notes on behalf of their customers.

Delivery of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct

Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial

Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory

requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the DTC Notes of a Series are

being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct

Participant in such Series to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. nor such other nominee will consent or vote with respect to DTC

Notes. Under its usual procedures, DTC will mail an Omnibus Proxy to the relevant Issuer as soon

as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the DTC Notes are credited on the record date

(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments on the DTC Notes will be made to Cede & Co., or such other

nominee as may be requested by an authorised representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit

Direct Participants’ accounts on the due date for payment in accordance with their respective

holdings shown on DTC’s records unless DTC has reason to believe that it will not receive payment

on the due date. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing

instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers

in bearer form or registered in ‘‘street name’’, and will be the responsibility of such Direct or Indirect

Participant and not of DTC or its nominee or the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor, subject to any
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal and

interest to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorised representative

of DTC is the responsibility of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor, disbursement of such payments

to Direct Participants is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the

Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. None of the Issuers or the

Guarantor accept any responsibility or liability for any such payments to be made by DTC or by

Direct or Indirect Participants.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg each hold securities for their customers and facilitate

the clearance and settlement of securities transactions by electronic book-entry transfer between their

respective account holders. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg provide various services including

safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement of internationally traded securities and securities
lending and borrowing. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg also deal with domestic securities

markets in several countries through established depository and custodial relationships. Euroclear and

Clearstream, Luxembourg have established an electronic bridge between their two systems across

which their respective participants may settle trades with each other.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg customers are world-wide financial institutions,

including underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing

corporations. Indirect access to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg is available to other

institutions that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with an account holder of either

system.

Book-entry Ownership of and Payments in respect of DTC Notes

The relevant Issuer will apply to DTC in order to have each Tranche of Notes represented by
Rule 144A Global Notes accepted in its book-entry settlement system. Upon the issue of any

Rule 144A Global Notes, DTC or its custodian will credit, on its internal book-entry system, the

respective nominal amounts of the individual beneficial interests represented by such Rule 144A

Global Notes to the accounts of DTC Participants. Such accounts initially will be designated by or

on behalf of the relevant Dealer. Ownership of beneficial interests in a Rule 144A Global Note will
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be held through Direct Participants or Indirect Participants of DTC, including the respective

depositaries of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. Ownership of beneficial interests in a Rule

144A Global Note will be shown on, and the transfer of such ownership will be effected only

through, records maintained by DTC or its nominee (with respect to the interests of Direct
Participants) and the records of Direct Participants (with respect to interests of Indirect Participants).

Payments in U.S. dollars of principal and interest in respect of a Rule 144A Global Note

registered in the name of DTC’s nominee will be made to the order of such nominee as the registered

holder of such Note. In the case of any payment in a currency other than U.S. dollars, payment will

be made by the relevant Issuer to the Exchange Agent on behalf of DTC’s nominee and the

Exchange Agent will (in accordance with instructions received by it) remit all or a portion of such

payment for credit directly to the beneficial holders of interests in the Rule 144A Notes in the
currency in which such payment was made and/or cause all or a portion of such payment to be

converted into U.S. dollars and credited to the applicable Participants’ account.

Transfers of Notes Represented by Registered Global Notes

Transfers of any interests in Notes represented by a Registered Global Note within DTC,
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg will be effected in accordance with the customary rules and

operating procedures of the relevant clearing system. The laws in some States within the United

States require that certain persons take physical delivery of securities in definitive form. Similarly,

because DTC can only act on behalf of Direct Participants in the DTC system who in turn act on

behalf of Indirect Participants, the ability of a person having an interest in Notes represented by a

Rule 144A Global Note to pledge such Notes to persons or entities that do not participate in the

DTC system or to otherwise take action in respect of such Notes may depend upon the ability to

exchange such Notes for Notes in definitive form. The ability of any holder of Notes represented by
a Rule 144A Global Note to resell, pledge or otherwise transfer such Notes may be impaired if the

proposed transferee of such Notes is not eligible to hold such Notes through a Direct or Indirect

Participant in the DTC system.

Subject to compliance with the transfer restrictions applicable to the Registered Notes described

under ‘‘Subscription and Sale and Transfer and Selling Restrictions’’, cross-market transfers between

DTC, on the one hand, and directly or indirectly through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg

accountholders, on the other, will be effected by the relevant clearing system in accordance with its

rules and through action taken by the Registrar, the Principal Paying Agent and any custodian
(‘‘Custodian’’) with whom the relevant Registered Global Notes have been deposited.

On or after the Issue Date for any Series, transfers of Notes of such Series between

accountholders in Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and transfers of Notes of such Series

between participants in DTC will generally have a settlement date three business days after the trade

date (T+3). The customary arrangements for delivery versus payment will apply to such transfers.

Cross-market transfers between accountholders in Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg and
DTC Participants will need to have an agreed settlement date between the parties to such transfer.

Because there is no direct link between DTC, on the one hand, and Euroclear and Clearstream,

Luxembourg, on the other, transfers of interests in the relevant Registered Global Notes will be

effected through the Registrar, the Principal Paying Agent and the Custodian receiving instructions

(and where appropriate certification) from the transferor and arranging for delivery of the interests

being transferred to the credit of the designated account for the transferee. In the case of cross-

market transfers, settlement between Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg accountholders and DTC

participants cannot be made on a delivery versus payment basis. The securities will be delivered on a
delivery free of payment basis and arrangements for payment must be made separately.

DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have each published rules and operating

procedures designed to facilitate transfers of beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes among

participants and accountholders of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. However, they are

under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such procedures may be

discontinued or changed at any time. None of the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Trustee, the Agents or

any Dealer will be responsible for any performance by DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg
or their respective Direct or Indirect Participants or accountholders of their respective obligations

under the rules and procedures governing their operations and none of them will have any liability

for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial interests in the

Notes represented by Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any

records relating to such beneficial interests.
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Summary of Certain Matters Relating to Australian Domestic Notes

Settlement and Transfer of Australian Domestic Notes

Austraclear

On issue of any Australian Domestic Notes, ANTS will (unless otherwise specified in the
applicable Final Terms) procure that the Australian Domestic Notes are entered into the settlement
system operated by Austraclear Limited (ABN 94 002 060 773) (‘‘Austraclear’’) (‘‘Austraclear
System’’). On entry, Austraclear will become the sole registered holder and legal owner of the
Australian Domestic Notes. Subject to the rules and regulations known as the ‘‘Austraclear System
Regulations’’ established by Austraclear (as amended or replaced from time to time) to govern the
use of the Austraclear System, participants of the Austraclear System (‘‘Accountholders’’) may acquire
rights against Austraclear in relation to those Australian Domestic Notes as beneficial owners and
Austraclear is required to deal with the Australian Domestic Notes in accordance with the directions
and instructions of the Accountholders. Any potential investors who are not Accountholders would
need to hold their interest in the relevant Australian Domestic Notes through a nominee who is an
Accountholder. All payments by the Issuer in respect of Australian Domestic Notes entered in the
Austraclear System will be made directly to an account agreed with Austraclear or as it directs in
accordance with the Austraclear System Regulations.

Holding of Australian Domestic Notes through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg

On entry in the Austraclear System, interests in the Australian Domestic Notes may be held
through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg. In these circumstances, entitlements in respect of
holdings of interests in the Australian Domestic Notes in Euroclear would be held in the Austraclear
System by HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited as nominee of Euroclear, while entitlements
in respect of holdings of interests in the Australian Domestic Notes in Clearstream, Luxembourg
would be held in the Austraclear System by ANZ Nominees Limited as nominee of Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

The rights of a holder of interests in Australian Domestic Notes held through Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg are subject to the respective rules and regulations of Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg, the arrangements between Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and
their respective nominees and the Austraclear System Regulations.

Transfers

Any transfer of Australian Domestic Notes will be subject to the Corporations Act and the
other requirements set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Australian Domestic Notes and, where
the Notes are entered in the Austraclear System, the Austraclear System Regulations.

Secondary market sales of Australian Domestic Notes settled in the Austraclear System will be
settled in accordance with the Austraclear System Regulations.

Relationship of Accountholders with Austraclear

Accountholders who acquire an interest in Australian Domestic Notes entered in the Austraclear
System must look solely to Austraclear for their rights in relation to such Notes and will have no
claim directly against the Issuer in respect of such Notes although under the Austraclear System
Regulations, Austraclear may direct the Issuer to make payments direct to the relevant
Accountholders.

Where Austraclear is registered as the holder of any Australian Domestic Notes that are lodged
in the Austraclear System, Austraclear may, where specified in the Austraclear System Regulations,
transfer the Australian Domestic Notes to the person in whose Security Record (as defined in the
Austraclear System Regulations) those Australian Domestic Notes are recorded and, as a
consequence, remove those Australian Domestic Notes from the Austraclear System.

Potential investors in Australian Domestic Notes should inform themselves of, and satisfy
themselves with, the Austraclear System Regulations and (where applicable) the rules of Euroclear
and Clearstream, Luxembourg and the arrangements between them and their nominees in the
Austraclear System.

Trustee’s powers

In considering the interests of holders in respect of any Australian Domestic Note that is
entered into the Austraclear System, the Trustee may have regard to any information provided to it
by Austraclear as to the identity (either individually or by category) of its Accountholders with
entitlements to such Note and may consider such interests as if such Accountholders were the holders
of such Note.

104

c102367pu070Proof6:5.5.10B/LRevision:0OperatorWilD



Summary of Certain Matters Relating to Canadian Notes

CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. (‘‘CDS’’)

CDS was formed in November 2006 pursuant to the restructuring of The Canadian Depository
for Securities Limited (‘‘CDS Ltd’’). After the restructuring, CDS Ltd, founded in 1970, remains the
holding company for CDS and two other operating subsidiaries. CDS is Canada’s national securities
clearing and depository services organisation. Functioning as a service utility for the Canadian
financial community, CDS provides a variety of computer automated services for financial institutions
and investment dealers active in domestic and international capital markets. CDS participants (‘‘CDS
Participants’’) include banks (including the Canadian Subcustodians (defined below)), investment
dealers and trust companies and may include certain of the Dealer(s) when appointed. Indirect access
to CDS is available to other organisations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship
with a CDS Participant. Transfers of ownership and other interests, including cash distributions, in
Notes in CDS may only be processed through CDS Participants and will be completed in accordance
with existing CDS rules and procedures. CDS operates in Montreal, Toronto, Calgary, Vancouver
and Halifax to centralise securities clearing functions through a central securities depositary.

CDS is wholly-owned by CDS Ltd. CDS Ltd. is a private corporation, owned one-third by
investment dealers, one-third by banks and one-third by trust companies through their respective
industry associations. CDS is the exclusive clearing house for equity trading on the Toronto Stock
Exchange and also clears a substantial volume of over the counter trading in equities and bonds.

Global clearance and settlement procedures

Initial settlement for Notes settling and clearing in CDS will be made in immediately available
Canadian dollar funds. Beneficial interests in the Notes will be represented through book-entry
accounts of financial institutions acting on behalf of beneficial owners as direct and indirect
participants in CDS. Investors may elect to hold interests in the Notes directly through any of CDS
(in Canada), or (if so indicated in the applicable Final Terms) Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg
(in Europe) if they are participants of such systems, or indirectly through organisations which are
participants in such systems. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg will hold interests on behalf of
their participants through customers’ securities accounts in their respective names on the books of
their respective Canadian subcustodians, each of which is a Canadian schedule I chartered bank
(‘‘Canadian Subcustodians’’), which in turn will hold such interests in customers’ securities accounts
in the names of the Canadian Subcustodians on the books of CDS.

Secondary market trading between CDS Participants will be in accordance with market
conventions applicable to transactions in book-based Canadian domestic bonds. Secondary market
trading between Euroclear participants and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg participants will occur in the
ordinary way in accordance with the applicable rules and operating procedures of Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg and will be settled using the procedures applicable to conventional
Eurobonds in immediately available funds.

Transfers between CDS and Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg

Links have been established among CDS, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg to facilitate
the initial issuance of Notes and cross-market transfers of Notes associated with secondary market
trading. CDS will be directly linked to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg through the CDS
accounts of the respective Canadian Subcustodians of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Cross-market transfers between persons holding directly or indirectly through CDS Participants,
on the one hand, and directly or indirectly through Euroclear participants or Clearstream,
Luxembourg participants, on the other, will be effected in CDS in accordance with CDS rules;
however, such cross-market transactions will require delivery of instructions to the relevant clearing
system by the counterparty in such system in accordance with its rules and procedures and within its
established deadlines. The relevant clearing system will, if the transaction meets its settlement
requirements, deliver instructions to CDS directly or through its Canadian Subcustodian to take
action to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving Notes in CDS, and making or
receiving payment in accordance with normal procedures for settlement in CDS. Euroclear
participants and Clearstream, Luxembourg participants may not deliver instructions directly to CDS
or the Canadian Subcustodians.

Because of time-zone differences, credits of Notes received in Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg as a result of a transaction with a CDS Participant will be made during subsequent
securities settlement processing and dated the business day following the CDS settlement date. Such
credits or any transactions in such Notes settled during such processing will be reported to the
relevant Euroclear participants or Clearstream, Luxembourg participants on such business day. Cash
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received in Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as a result of sales of Notes by or through a
Euroclear participant or a Clearstream, Luxembourg participant to a CDS Participant will be received
with value on the CDS settlement date but will be available in the relevant Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg cash account only as of the business day following settlement in CDS.

106

c102367pu070Proof6:5.5.10B/LRevision:0OperatorWilD



TAXATION

The comments below are of a general nature and are based on the Issuers’ and the Guarantor’s

understanding of current tax law and practice as at the date of this Prospectus. They relate only to the

position of persons who are the absolute beneficial owners of the Notes and may not apply to certain

classes of Noteholders (such as dealers in securities) to whom special rules may apply. They are not

exhaustive. They relate only to the deduction from interest on the Notes for or on account of tax in the

United Kingdom (and do not deal with any other United Kingdom tax implications of acquiring, holding

or disposing of the Notes) and to certain aspects of Australian, Canadian and U.S. Federal Income tax.

The United Kingdom tax treatment of Noteholders depends on their individual circumstances and may be

subject to change in the future. Prospective noteholders who may be unsure of their tax position or who

may be subject to tax in a jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom, the United States, Australia, or

Canada or who are resident or ordinarily resident in, but not domiciled in, the United Kingdom for tax

purposes, should seek their own professional advice.

UK Taxation

1. Each of ANTS and Santander UK plc, provided that it continues to be a bank for the

purposes of Section 991 of the Income Tax Act 2007 (‘‘ITA 2007’’) and provided that the

interest on the Notes which it issues is paid in the ordinary course of its business within

the meaning of Section 878 of ITA 2007, is entitled to make payments of interest on such

Notes without withholding or deduction for or on account of United Kingdom income tax.

2. Payments of interest on Notes issued by ANTS and Santander UK plc (whether or not

paragraph 1 above applies) which are, in each case, ‘‘quoted Eurobonds’’ within the

meaning of Section 987 of ITA 2007 may be made without withholding or deduction for

or on account of United Kingdom income tax by Issuers and Paying Agents. Notes will

constitute ‘‘quoted Eurobonds’’ while they are admitted to trading on a recognised stock

exchange and either they are included in the United Kingdom official list (within the
meaning of Part 6 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000) or they are officially

listed, in accordance with provisions corresponding to those generally applicable in

European Economic Area states, in a country outside the United Kingdom in which there

is a recognised stock exchange (as defined in section 1005 ITA 2007).

In the UK, the UK Listing Authority is a competent authority and the London Stock

Exchange is a recognised stock exchange. So long as this remains the case, securities will
constitute ‘‘quoted Eurobonds’’, so long as they are admitted to the Official List by the

UK Listing Authority and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Regulated

Market.

In other cases tax may, subject to any relief available under any applicable double taxation

convention, have to be withheld from payments of interest on the Notes at the rate set out

in paragraph 3 below.

3. Where United Kingdom tax is withheld, the rate is the ‘‘basic rate’’ of income tax

(currently 20 per cent.).

4. Any persons in the United Kingdom paying interest to, or receiving interest on behalf of,
another person, may be required to provide certain information to HM Revenue &

Customs regarding the identity of the payee or person entitled to the interest. HM

Revenue & Customs also has power to obtain information from any person in the United

Kingdom who pays amounts payable on the redemption of any ‘‘deeply discounted

securities’’ for the purposes of the Income Tax (Trading and Other Income) Act 2005 to or

receives such amounts for the benefit of another person, although HM Revenue &

Customs published practice indicates that HM Revenue & Customs will not exercise the

power referred to above to require this information in respect of such amounts payable on
redemption of Notes where such amounts are paid on or before 5 April, 2011. Such

information may include the name and address of the person beneficially entitled to the

amount payable on redemption. Any information obtained may, in certain circumstances,

be exchanged by HM Revenue & Customs with the tax authorities of the jurisdiction in

which the Noteholder is resident for tax purposes.

107

c102367pu070Proof6:5.5.10B/LRevision:0OperatorWilD



5. Directive on the taxation of savings income

Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, Member States

are required to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments

of interest (or similar income) paid by a person to an individual in that other Member

State or to certain limited types of entities established in that other Member State.
However, for a transitional period, Luxembourg and Austria are instead required (unless

during such period they elect otherwise) to impose a withholding system in relation to such

payments (the ending of such transitional period being dependent upon the conclusion of

certain other agreements relating to information exchange with certain other countries). A

number of non-EU countries and territories, including Switzerland and certain dependent

or associated territories of some Member States, have adopted similar measures (a

withholding system in the case of Switzerland).

On 15 September, 2008 the European Commission issued a report to the Council of the

European Union on the operation of the Directive, which included the Commission’s
advice on the need for changes to the Directive. On 13 November, 2008 the European

Commission published a more detailed proposal for amendments to the Directive, which

included a number of suggested changes. On 24 April, 2009 the European Parliament

approved an amended version of these changes. If any of those proposed changes are

implemented in relation to the Directive, they may amend or broaden the scope of the

requirements described above.

Prospective Noteholders who may be affected by any of these requirements are advised to

seek their own professional advice.

U.S. Taxation

The applicable Final Terms relating to any Tranche of Notes, all or a portion of which are to

be offered or sold to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person will set forth information

regarding the U.S. federal income tax treatment of any such Notes. U.S. persons considering the

purchase of Notes should consult their own tax advisers concerning the application of U.S. federal

income tax laws to their particular situations as well as any consequences of the purchase, ownership
and disposition of Notes arising under the laws of any other taxing jurisdictions.

Australian Taxation

Any reference to the ‘‘Issuer’’ in this Australian Taxation section is a reference only to ANTS as

Issuer of the Australian Domestic Notes.

Interest Withholding Tax

So long as the Issuer remains a non-resident of Australia and the Australian Domestic Notes

issued by it are not attributable to a permanent establishment of the Issuer in Australia, payments of

principal and interest made under the Australian Domestic Notes will not be subject to Australian
interest withholding tax. So long as the Guarantor continues to be a non-resident of Australia and

the Guarantee is not attributable to a permanent establishment of the Guarantor in Australia, any

payment by the Guarantor under the Guarantee should not be subject to Australian interest

withholding tax.

The Issuer has been advised that:

(a) other withholding taxes on payments in respect of the Australian Domestic Notes – so

long as the relevant Issuer remains a non-resident of Australia and the Australian

Domestic Notes issued by it are not attributable to a permanent establishment in

Australia, the tax file number requirements of Part VA of the Income Tax Assessment Act

1936 of Australia (‘‘ITAA’’) and section 12-140 of Schedule 1 to the Taxation

Administration Act 1953 of Australia (‘‘TAA’’) should not apply in connection with the
Australian Domestic Notes issued by the Issuer;

(b) supply withholding tax – payments in respect of the Australian Domestic Notes can be

made free and clear of the ‘‘supply withholding tax’’ imposed under section 12-190 of

Schedule 1 to the TAA;

(c) goods and services tax (‘‘GST’’) – neither the issue nor receipt of the Australian Domestic

Notes will give rise to a liability for GST in Australia on the basis that the supply of

Australian Domestic Notes will comprise either an input taxed financial supply or (in the
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case of an offshore subscriber) a GST free supply. Furthermore, neither the payment of

principal or interest by the Issuer, nor the disposal of the Australian Domestic Notes,

would give rise to any GST liability in Australia;

(d) stamp duty and other taxes – no ad valorem stamp, issue, registration or similar taxes are

payable in Australia on the issue or transfer of any Australian Domestic Notes; and

(e) death duties – no Australian Domestic Notes will be subject to death, estate or succession

duties imposed by Australia, or by any political subdivision or authority therein having

power to tax, if held at the time of death.

Recent developments for the taxation of financial arrangements

The Tax Laws Amendment (Taxation of Financial Arrangements) Act 2009 (Cth) (the ‘‘TOFA

Act’’) has recently been enacted. The TOFA Act contains new rules which represent a new code for

the taxation of receipts and payments in relation to ‘‘financial arrangements’’. The new rules contain

a number of different methods for bringing to account gains and losses in relation to ‘‘financial

arrangements’’ (including fair value, accruals, retranslation, realisation, hedging and financial records).

The new rules apply from the commencement of the first tax year beginning on or after 1 July,

2010 (although taxpayers may be able to make an election to apply the rules for a tax year

commencing on or after 1 July, 2009 if they wish to do so). Further, the new rules are not to apply

to ‘‘financial arrangements’’ which are current as at the commencement date. In relation to current

‘‘financial arrangements’’ at that time, taxpayers may elect to apply the new rules if they wish, but
certain tax adjustments would need to be made if such an election is made.

The new rules introduced by the TOFA Act will not apply to impose interest or other
withholding taxes on payments in respect of the Australian Domestic Notes issued by the Issuer.

Canadian Taxation

The applicable Final Terms relating to any Tranche of Notes, all or a portion of which are to

be offered or sold to, or for the account or benefit of, a resident of Canada, may set forth

information regarding Canadian taxation. Any discussion of taxation and related matters contained

herein does not address Canadian tax considerations. Canadian investors should consult with their

own legal and tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of an investment in Notes in their
particular circumstances and with respect to the eligibility of Notes for investment by such investor

under relevant Canadian legislation and regulations.

PROSPECTIVE NOTEHOLDERS WHO ARE IN ANY DOUBT AS TO THEIR TAX

POSITION OR WHO MAY BE SUBJECT TO TAX IN A JURISDICTION OTHER THAN THE

UNITED KINGDOM, THE UNITED STATES, CANADA OR AUSTRALIA SHOULD SEEK

INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE.

109

c102367pu070Proof6:5.5.10B/LRevision:0OperatorWilD



SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE AND TRANSFER AND SELLING RESTRICTIONS

The Dealers have in a programme agreement (the ‘‘Programme Agreement’’) dated 5 May, 2010

agreed with the Issuers and the Guarantor a basis upon which each Issuer may from time to time

agree to issue Notes. Any such agreement will extend to those matters stated under ‘‘Form of the

Notes’’ and ‘‘Terms and Conditions of the Notes’’. In the Programme Agreement, the relevant Issuer
(failing which, the Guarantor) has agreed to reimburse the Dealers for certain of their expenses in

connection with the issue of Notes under the Programme and to indemnify the Dealers against certain

liabilities incurred by them in connection therewith.

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as

the Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the

applicable Final Terms may, outside Australia and on a market operated outside Australia, over-allot

Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Notes at a level higher
than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance that the Stabilising

Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will undertake stabilisation action.

Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which adequate public disclosure of the

terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes is made and, if begun, may be ended at any time,

but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant Tranche of

Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of Notes. Any stabilisation

action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilising Manager(s) (or person(s)

acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.

Selling Restrictions

United States

Each Dealer has acknowledged, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme

Agreement will be required to acknowledge, that the Notes have not been and will not be registered

under the Securities Act, and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in accordance with Regulation S under the Securities Act

or pursuant to an exemption from or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of

the Securities Act. Terms used in the preceding sentence have the meanings given to them by

Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Notes in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or

delivered within the United States or its possessions or to U.S. persons, except in certain transactions

permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in the preceding sentence have the meanings given to
them by the United States Internal Revenue Code and regulations thereunder.

Each Dealer has agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme Agreement

will be required to agree, that except as permitted by the Programme Agreement, it has not offered,

sold or delivered Notes and it will not offer, sell or deliver Notes (i) as part of their distribution at

any time or (ii) otherwise until 40 days after the completion of the distribution of all Notes of the

relevant Tranche, within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons and

only in accordance with Rule 903 of Regulation S or, if applicable, Rule 144A under the Securities
Act and it will have sent to each distributor, dealer or person receiving a selling concession, fee or

other remuneration that purchases Notes from it or through it during the distribution compliance

period a confirmation or notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and sales of the Notes within

the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons.

The Notes are being offered and sold only (a) outside the United States to persons other than

U.S. persons (‘‘foreign purchasers’’, which term includes dealers or other professional fiduciaries in

the United States acting on a discretionary basis for foreign beneficial owners, other than an estate or
trust) in reliance upon Regulation S and (B) to a limited number of QIBs in compliance with

Rule144A.

Terms used in this section of ‘‘Selling Restrictions’’ have the meanings given to them by

Regulation S.

In addition, until 40 days after the completion of the distribution of all Notes comprising any
Tranche, any offer or sale of Notes within the United States by any dealer (whether or not

participating in the offering) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Each issuance of Index Linked Notes, Dual Currency Notes and other structured notes shall be

subject to such additional U.S. selling restrictions as the relevant Dealer may agree as a term of the
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issuance of such Notes, which additional selling restrictions shall be set out in the applicable Final

Terms.

Each purchaser of Notes will be deemed to have represented and agreed as follows:

(1) It is purchasing the Notes for its own account or an account with respect to which it

exercises sole investment discretion and that it and any such account is either (A) a QIB

and is aware that the sale to it is being made in reliance on Rule 144A, or (B) a foreign

purchaser that is outside the United States (or a foreign purchaser that is a dealer or other
fiduciary as referred to above).

(2) It acknowledges that the Notes have not been registered under the Securities Act or any

other applicable U.S. State securities laws and may not be offered or sold within the

United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except as set forth

below.

(3) It agrees that the Issuer has no obligation to register the Notes under the Securities Act.

(4) It will not resell or otherwise transfer any Notes within two years after the original

issuance of the Notes except (A) to the Issuer or any affiliate thereof, (B) inside the United
States to a person whom the seller reasonably believes is a QIB purchasing for its own

account or for the account of a QIB in a transaction complying with Rule 144A,

(C)outside the United States in compliance with Rule 903 or Rule 904 under the Securities

Act, (D) pursuant to the exemption from registration provided by Rule 144 under the

Securities Act (if available) or (E) pursuant to an effective registration statement under the

Securities Act in each case, in accordance with all applicable U.S. State securities laws.

(5) It will give to each person to whom it transfers Notes notice of any restrictions on transfer

of those Notes.

(6) It understands that the Notes offered in reliance on Rule 144A or Regulation S will be

represented by Registered Notes or Bearer Global Notes. Before any interest in a

Regulation S Global Note or in a Rule 144A Global Registered Note may be offered,
sold, pledged or otherwise transferred to a person who is not a QIB or a foreign

purchaser, the transferee will be required to provide the Issue Agent with a written

certification (the form of which certification can be obtained from the Trustee) as to

compliance with the transfer restrictions referred to above.

(7) It understands that each of the Notes will bear a legend substantially to the following

effect unless otherwise agreed by the Issuer and the holder of particular Notes:

Any Notes that are offered, sold or transferred in the United States or to or for the

account or benefit of a U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S) will either be issued in the

form of Definitive Registered Notes, registered in the name of the registered holder thereof,

or be represented by a Rule 144A Global Registered Note which will be deposited with a

custodian for, and registered in the name of a nominee of, DTC.

(8) It acknowledges that the Issuer and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the

foregoing acknowledgements, representations and agreements and agrees that if any of such

acknowledgements, representations or agreements made by it are no longer accurate, it

shall promptly notify the Issuer; and if it is acquiring any Notes as a fiduciary or agent for

one or more accounts it represents that it has sole investment discretion with respect to

each such account and that it has full power to make the foregoing acknowledgements,
representations and agreements on behalf of each such account.

Each Definitive Registered Note will bear a legend to the following effect:

‘‘THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS DEFINITIVE REGISTERED NOTE AND ANY
GUARANTEE IN RESPECT THEREOF HAVE NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE,

REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE

‘‘SECURITIES ACT’’), OR WITH ANY SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF ANY

STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF THE UNITED STATES, AND, PRIOR TO THE DATE

WHICH IS TWO YEARS AFTER THE ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE HEREOF, MAY BE

TRANSFERRED ONLY PURSUANT TO THE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION

REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH ACT AS SET FORTH BELOW.

THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, BY PURCHASING THE NOTES IN RESPECT

OF WHICH THIS DEFINITIVE REGISTERED NOTE IS ISSUED, (1) REPRESENTS FOR THE

BENEFIT OF THE ISSUER AND FOR ANY AGENT OR SELLER WITH RESPECT TO THE
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NOTES THAT IT IS THE SOLE BENEFICIAL OWNER OF THE NOTES REPRESENTED

HEREBY OR IS PURCHASING SUCH NOTES FOR ONE OR MORE ACCOUNTS

MAINTAINED BY IT OR OVER WHICH IT EXERCISES SOLE INVESTMENT DISCRETION

AND THAT EITHER (A) IT AND ANY SUCH ACCOUNT ARE NOT U.S. PERSONS (AS
DEFINED IN REGULATION S OF THE SECURITIES ACT) AND ARE NOT PURCHASING

SUCH NOTES FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF A U.S. PERSON, OR (B) IT AND ANY

SUCH ACCOUNT ARE (OR ARE HOLDING SUCH NOTES FOR THE BENEFIT OF)

QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS (‘‘QIBS’’) AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE

SECURITIES ACT, (2) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN, AND WILL

NOT BE, REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED,

SOLD, RESOLD OR DELIVERED IN THE UNITED STATES EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN

EXEMPTION FROM SUCH ACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS HEREOF, AND (3)
AGREES, FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE ISSUER, THAT SUCH NOTES MAY ONLY BE

OFFERED, SOLD, RESOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED OR DELIVERED

(A) TO A NON-U.S. PERSON IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH

THE PROVISIONS OF REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (B) TO A

PERSON WHO THE SELLER REASONABLY BELIEVES TO BE A QIB WHO IS AWARE

THAT THE RESALE, PLEDGE OR OTHER TRANSFER IS BEING MADE IN RELIANCE ON

RULE 144A OR PURSUANT TO ANOTHER EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER

THE SECURITIES ACT AND WHO HAS DULY COMPLETED AN INVESTMENT LETTER
(THE FORM OF WHICH IS ATTACHED TO THE AGENCY AGREEMENT AND CAN BE

OBTAINED FROM THE REGISTRAR).

PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT THE SELLERS OF THE

NOTES MAY BE RELYING ON THE EXEMPTION FROM THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5

OF THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE 144A.

EACH HOLDER OF THIS DEFINITIVE REGISTERED NOTE AGREES THAT IT WILL
DELIVER TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM THIS DEFINITIVE REGISTERED NOTE IS

TRANSFERRED A NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND.

FOR THE PURPOSES HEREOF, ‘‘OFFSHORE TRANSACTION’’ AND ‘‘U.S. PERSON’’

SHALL HAVE THE MEANINGS GIVEN TO THEM IN RULE 902 OF REGULATION S

UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.’’

Each Rule 144A Global Registered Note will bear a legend to the following effect:

‘‘THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS GLOBAL NOTE AND ANY GUARANTEE IN

RESPECT THEREOF HAVE NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE, REGISTERED UNDER THE

U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE ‘‘SECURITIES ACT’’), OR WITH ANY

SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF

THE UNITED STATES, AND, PRIOR TO THE DATE WHICH IS TWO YEARS AFTER THE

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE HEREOF, MAY BE TRANSFERRED ONLY PURSUANT TO THE

EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH ACT AS SET
FORTH BELOW.

THE HOLDER HEREOF, BY PURCHASING THE NOTES IN RESPECT OF WHICH

THIS GLOBAL NOTE IS ISSUED (OR ANY BENEFICIAL INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION

HEREIN) ON ITS OWN BEHALF AND ON BEHALF OF ANY ACCOUNT FOR WHICH IT IS

PURCHASING THIS GLOBAL NOTE OR ANY BENEFICIAL INTEREST OR

PARTICIPATION HEREIN, (1) REPRESENTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE ISSUER AND

FOR ANY AGENT OR SELLER WITH RESPECT TO SUCH NOTES THAT IT IS THE SOLE
BENEFICIAL OWNER OF THE NOTES REPRESENTED HEREBY OR IS PURCHASING

SUCH NOTES FOR ONE OR MORE ACCOUNTS MAINTAINED BY IT OR OVER WHICH

IT EXERCISES SOLE INVESTMENT DISCRETION AND THAT EITHER (A) IT AND ANY

SUCH ACCOUNT ARE NOT U.S. PERSONS (AS DEFINED IN REGULATION S OF THE

SECURITIES ACT) AND ARE NOT PURCHASING SUCH NOTES FOR THE ACCOUNT OR

BENEFIT OF A U.S. PERSON, OR (B) IT AND ANY SUCH ACCOUNT ARE (OR ARE

HOLDING SUCH NOTES FOR THE BENEFIT OF) QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS

(‘‘QIBS’’) AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (2)
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT SUCH NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE,

REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD,

RESOLD OR DELIVERED IN THE UNITED STATES EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN

EXEMPTION FROM SUCH ACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS HEREOF, (3)
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AGREES TO NOTIFY ANY SUBSEQUENT TRANSFEREE OF THE TRANSFER

RESTRICTIONS SET OUT HEREIN AND THAT IT WILL BE A CONDITION TO SUCH

TRANSFER THAT THE TRANSFEREE WILL BE DEEMED TO MAKE THE

REPRESENTATIONS SET OUT HEREIN, AND (4) AGREES, FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE
ISSUER, THAT SUCH NOTES MAY ONLY BE OFFERED, SOLD, RESOLD, PLEDGED OR

OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED OR DELIVERED (A) TO A NON-U.S. PERSON IN AN

OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF REGULATION

S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR (B) TO A PERSON WHO THE SELLER REASONABLY

BELIEVES TO BE A QIB THAT IS AWARE THAT THE RESALE, PLEDGE OR OTHER

TRANSFER IS BEING MADE IN RELIANCE ON RULE 144A OR PURSUANT TO

ANOTHER EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.

PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT THE SELLERS OF THE

NOTES MAY BE RELYING ON THE EXEMPTION FROM THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5

OF THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE 144A.

EACH HOLDER OF THIS GLOBAL NOTE OR AN INTEREST HEREIN AGREES THAT

IT WILL DELIVER TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM THIS NOTE OR AN INTEREST HEREIN
IS TRANSFERRED A NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND.

FOR THE PURPOSES HEREOF, ‘‘OFFSHORE TRANSACTION’’ AND ‘‘U.S. PERSON’’
SHALL HAVE THE MEANINGS GIVEN TO THEM IN RULE 902 OF REGULATION S

UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.

Each Regulation S Global Note will bear a legend to the following effect:

‘‘THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS GLOBAL NOTE AND ANY GUARANTEE IN
RESPECT THEREOF HAVE NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE, REGISTERED UNDER THE

U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE ‘‘SECURITIES ACT’’), OR WITH ANY

SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF

THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFER, SALE, PLEDGE OR TRANSFER OF THE NOTES

REPRESENTED BY THIS GLOBAL NOTE IS SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS AND

RESTRICTIONS. BY PURCHASING OR OTHERWISE ACQUIRING THE NOTES

REPRESENTED BY THIS GLOBAL NOTE, THE HOLDER THEREOF ACKNOWLEDGES

THAT THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS GLOBAL NOTE ARE ‘‘RESTRICTED
SECURITIES’’ THAT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT. THE

HOLDER AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE ISSUER THAT, IF IT SHOULD DECIDE

TO DISPOSE OF THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS GLOBAL NOTE PRIOR TO THE

DATE WHICH IS 40 DAYS AFTER THE COMPLETION OF THE DISTRIBUTION OF THE

NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS GLOBAL NOTE, THE NOTES REPRESENTED BY THIS

GLOBAL NOTE MAY BE OFFERED, RESOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED

ONLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT AND ONLY (A) TO PERSONS

WHOM THE SELLER REASONABLY BELIEVES TO BE QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL
BUYERS (‘‘QIBS’’), AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A (‘‘RULE 144A’’) UNDER THE SECURITIES

ACT, OR (B) OTHERWISE TO NON-U.S. PERSONS IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN

ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT; PROVIDED THAT,

IN THE CASE OF A TRANSFER PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (A), A TRANSFEROR OF THE

NOTES WILL BE REQUIRED (1) TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER TO THE ISSUER AND THE

REGISTRAR A TRANSFER CERTIFICATE (THE FORM OF WHICH IS ATTACHED TO THE

AGENCY AGREEMENT AND CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE REGISTRAR) AND (2) TO

EXCHANGE THE PORTION OF THIS GLOBAL NOTE TO BE SO TRANSFERRED FOR AN
INTEREST IN A RULE 144A GLOBAL REGISTERED NOTE OR A DEFINITIVE

REGISTERED NOTE (AS SET OUT IN THE APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS) TO BE

REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF THE TRANSFEREE.

EACH HOLDER OF THIS NOTE OR AN INTEREST HEREIN AGREES THAT IT WILL

DELIVER TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM THIS NOTE OR AN INTEREST HEREIN IS

TRANSFERRED A NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND.

FOR THE PURPOSES HEREOF, ‘‘OFFSHORE TRANSACTION’’ AND ‘‘U.S. PERSON’’

HAVE THE MEANINGS GIVEN TO THEM BY RULE 902 OF REGULATION S UNDER THE

SECURITIES ACT.’’
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Public Offer Selling Restriction under the Prospectus Directive

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the

Prospectus Directive (each, a ‘‘Relevant Member State’’), each Dealer has represented and agreed, and
each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that

with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that

Relevant Member State (the ‘‘Relevant Implementation Date’’) it has not made and will not make an

offer of Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated by this prospectus as completed by

the final terms in relation thereto to the public in that Relevant Member State, except that it may,

with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date, make an offer of such Notes to

the public in that Relevant Member State:

(a) if the final terms in relation to the Notes specify that an offer of those Notes may be

made other than pursuant to Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant
Member State (a ‘‘Non-exempt Offer’’), following the date of publication of a prospectus

in relation to such Notes which has been approved by the competent authority in that

Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member

State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State, provided

that any such prospectus has subsequently been completed by the final terms contemplating

such Non-exempt Offer, in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, in the period

beginning and ending on the dates specified in such prospectus or final terms, as

applicable;

(b) at any time to legal entities which are authorised or regulated to operate in the financial

markets or, if not so authorised or regulated, whose corporate purpose is solely to invest

in securities;

(c) at any time to any legal entity which has two or more of (1) an average of at least 250

employees during the last financial year; (2) a total balance sheet of more than A43,000,000

and (3) an annual net turnover of more than A50,000,000, as shown in its last annual or

consolidated accounts;

(d) at any time to fewer than 100 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as

defined in the Prospectus Directive) subject to obtaining the prior consent of the relevant

Dealer or Dealers nominated by the Issuer for any such offer; or

(e) at any time in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus

Directive,

provided that no such offer of Notes referred to in (b) to (e) above shall require the Issuer or

any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a

prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an ‘‘offer of Notes to the public’’ in relation

to any Notes in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any

means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable

an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Notes, as the same may be varied in that Member

State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State and the expression
‘‘Prospectus Directive’’ means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any relevant implementing measure

in each Relevant Member State.

United Kingdom

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the

Programme will be required to represent and agree, that:

(a) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or

cause to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity

(within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the
issue or sale of any Notes in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not

apply to the Issuer or the Guarantor; and

(b) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect

to anything done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United

Kingdom.
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Australia

No prospectus or other disclosure document (as defined in the Corporations Act 2001 of the

Commonwealth of Australia) in relation to the Programme or the Notes has been, or will be, lodged
with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (‘‘ASIC’’). Each Dealer has represented

and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent

and agree, that (unless the applicable Final Terms or another supplement to this Prospectus otherwise

provides) it:

(a) has not made or invited, and will not make or invite, an offer of the Notes for issue or

sale in the Commonwealth of Australia (including an offer or invitation which is received

by a person in the Commonwealth of Australia); and

(b) has not distributed or published, and will not distribute or publish, this Prospectus or any

other offering material or advertisement relating to any Notes in the Commonwealth of

Australia,

unless:

(i) the aggregate consideration payable by each offeree is at least A$500,000 (or its equivalent

in an alternative currency, in either case disregarding moneys lent by the offeror or its

associates);

(ii) the offer or invitation does not require disclosure to investors under Parts 6D.2 or 7.9 of

the Corporations Act 2001 of the Commonwealth of Australia;

(iii) such action complies with all applicable laws, regulations and directives; and

(iv) such action does not require any document to be lodged with ASIC or any other

regulatory authority.

In addition, each Dealer has agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme

will be required to agree, that, in relation to Australian Domestic Notes issued by Abbey National

Treasury Services plc, it will comply with the directive issued by the Assistant Treasurer of the
Commonwealth of Australia dated 23 September, 1996 as contained in Banking (Exemption) Order

No. 82 which requires all offers and transfers to be for a consideration of at least A$500,000.

Banking (Exemption) Order No. 82 does not apply to transfers which occur outside Australia.

Japan

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and

Exchange Act of Japan (Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended; the ‘‘FIEA’’) and each Dealer has
represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to

represent and agree, that it will not offer or sell any Notes, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or

for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (as defined under Item 5, Paragraph 1, Article 6 of the

Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Control Law (Law No. 228 of 1949, as amended)), or to others

for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, a resident of

Japan except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of and otherwise in

compliance with the FIEA and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of

Japan.

Hong Kong

Each Dealer has represented and agreed that:

1. it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell in Hong Kong, by means of any

document, any Notes other than (i) to ‘‘professional investors’’ as defined in the Securities

and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong and any rules made under that
Ordinance; or (ii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a

‘‘prospectus’’ as defined in the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong or which do

not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning that Ordinance; and

2. it has not issued or had in its possession for the purposes of issue, and will not issue or

have in its possession for the purposes of issue, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, any

advertisement, invitation or document relating to the Notes, which is directed at, or the
contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public of Hong Kong (except if

permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to

Notes which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or

only to ‘‘professional investors’’ as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance and

any rules made under that Ordinance.
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Singapore:

This Prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of

Singapore under the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the ‘‘Securities and
Futures Act’’). Accordingly, the Notes may not be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an

invitation for subscription or purchase nor may this Prospectus or any other document or material in

connection with the offer or sale or invitation for subscription or purchase of any Notes be circulated

or distributed, whether directly or indirectly, to any person in Singapore other than (i) to an

institutional investor pursuant to Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, (ii) to a relevant

person or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions specified in

Section 275, of the Securities and Futures Act or (iii) pursuant to, and in accordance with the

conditions of, any other applicable provision of the Securities and Futures Act.

Each of the following relevant persons specified in Section 275 of the Securities and Futures Act

which has subscribed or purchased Notes, namely a person who is:

(a) a corporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the
Securities and Futures Act)) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the

entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an

accredited investor; or

(b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold

investments and each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor,

should note that shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or

the beneficiaries’ rights and interest in that trust shall not be transferred for six months after

that corporation or trust has acquired the Notes under Section 275 of the Securities and Futures

Act except:

(1) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act or to a
relevant person or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A) of the Securities and Futures

Act and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275 of the Securities and

Futures Act;

(2) where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer; or

(3) by operation of law.

Canada

The Notes have not been and will not be qualified for sale under the securities laws of any

province or territory of Canada. Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each new Dealer

appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that:

(a) it has not offered, sold or distributed and will not offer, sell or distribute any Notes,

directly or indirectly, in Canada or to or for the benefit of any resident of Canada, other

than in compliance with the applicable securities laws; and

(b) it has not and will not distribute or deliver the Prospectus, or any other offering material

in connection with any offering of Notes in Canada, other than in compliance with the
applicable securities laws of Canada or any province or territory thereof.

General

Each Dealer has severally agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will

be required to agree, with the Issuers and the Guarantor that it will observe all applicable laws and

regulations in any jurisdiction in which it may offer, sell or deliver Notes and that it will not, directly

or indirectly, offer, sell or deliver Notes or distribute or publish this document, any prospectus,

circular, advertisement or other offering material (including, without limitation, any supplement to

this document) in relation to the Notes in or from any country of jurisdiction except under
circumstances that will to be the best of its knowledge and belief result in compliance with any

applicable laws and regulations, and all offers, sales and deliveries of Notes by it will be made on the

foregoing terms.

The restrictions on offerings may be modified by the agreement of the Issuers, the Guarantor

and the Dealers following a change in a relevant law, regulation or directive. Any such modification

will be set out in the applicable Final Terms applicable to each Series of Notes or in a supplement to
this document.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Incorporation

Abbey National Treasury Services plc and Santander UK plc were incorporated in England and

Wales on 24 January, 1989 and 12 September, 1988 respectively, and with registered numbers 2338548
and 2294747 respectively.

2. Authorisation

The continuation of the Programme and the issue of Notes (with maturities not exceeding 30

years) was duly confirmed and authorised by resolutions of the Board of Directors of Abbey National

Treasury Services plc dated 8 May, 2007. Pursuant to such resolutions, authority was delegated to the

Chief Executive Officer or any two directors of Santander UK plc to sub-delegate authority to
authorise the update of the Programme. Pursuant to such sub-delegated authority excercised pursuant

to MTN approvals and authorisations dated 3 September, 2009, the update of the Programme by

ANTS has been duly authorised by Update Approvals and Authorisations of the ANTS dated

21 April, 2010. The continuation of the Programme and the giving of Guarantees was duly confirmed

and authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors of Santander UK plc dated 27 March,

2007. Pursuant to such resolution, authority was delegated to the Chief Executive Officer or any two

directors of Santander UK plc to sub-delegate authority to authorise the update of the Programme.

Pursuant to such sub-delegated authority excercised pursuant to an MTN approval and authorisation
dated 3 September, 2009, the update of the Programme has been duly authorised by an Update

Approval and Authorisation of the Guarantor dated 21 April, 2010.

3. Listing of Notes on the Official List

The listing of Notes on the Official List will be expressed as a percentage of their nominal

amount (excluding accrued interest). It is expected that each Tranche of Notes which is to be

admitted to listing on the Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Regulated

Market will be admitted separately as and when issued, subject only to the issue of a Global Note or
Notes initially representing the Notes of such Tranche. The acceptance of the Programme on the

Official List in respect of Notes is expected to be granted on or around 10 May, 2010.

4. Documents Available

So long as Notes are capable of being issued under the Programme, copies of the following

documents will, when published, be available for inspection during usual business hours on any

weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excepted) at the registered office of each Issuer and the
Guarantor and at the specified offices of the Paying Agents save that items (iv) and (v) will not be

available at the specified offices of the Paying Agents (and items (i), (vi) and (vii) will be available for

collection free of charge):

(i) the memorandum and articles of association of each Issuer and the memorandum and

articles of association of the Guarantor and A&L;

(ii) the consolidated and non-consolidated audited financial statements of ANTS and the

Guarantor in respect of the financial years ended 31 December, 2008 and 31 December,

2009 (including the form of the Santander UK guarantee, on pages 148 to 150 of the
Guarantor’s Annual Report and Accounts for the financial year ended 31 December, 2008,

in respect of the unsubordinated liabilities of A&L incurred prior to 31 July, 2012). The

audited consolidated annual financial statements of Santander UK for the financial year

ended 31 December, 2008 have been amended in the Annual Report and Accounts of

Santander UK for the financial year ended 31 December, 2009 to reflect the transfer of

A&L to Santander UK from Banco Santander in exchange for ordinary shares of

Santander UK (please see note 47 of the Annual Report and Accounts of Santander UK

for the financial year ended 31 December, 2009 which is incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus at page 9). With respect to Santander UK’s audited consolidated annual

financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December, 2008, potential investors

should read the Annual Report and Accounts of Santander UK for the year ended

31 December, 2009 and not the Annual Report and Accounts of Santander UK for the

year ended 31 December, 2008;
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(iii) the audited consolidated and non-consolidated annual financial statements of A&L in

respect of the financial year ended 31 December, 2008 and the audited consolidated and

non-consolidated annual financial statements of A&L in respect of the financial year ended

31 December, 2009 (including the form of the A&L guarantee, on pages 119 to 121 of the
A&L Annual Report and Accounts for the financial year ended 31 December, 2009, in

respect of the unsubordinated liabilities of Santander UK incurred prior to 31 July, 2012);

(iv) the Programme Agreement, the Agency Agreement and the Trust Deed (which contains the

Guarantee, the forms of Global Notes, Notes in definitive form, Receipts, Coupons and

Talons);

(v) the Deed Poll in respect of Australian Domestic Notes;

(vi) the Registry Services Agreement (excluding any schedules thereto) in respect of Australian

Domestic Notes;

(vii) this Prospectus;

(viii) any future information memoranda, offering circulars, prospectuses and supplements to this

Prospectus and any other documents incorporated herein or therein by reference;

(ix) in the case of each issue of listed Notes subscribed pursuant to a subscription agreement,

the subscription agreement (or equivalent document); and

(x) Final Terms (save that Final Terms relating to an unlisted Note will only be available for

inspection by a holder of such Note and such holder must produce evidence satisfactory to

the relevant Issuer and the Paying Agent as to its holding of Notes and identity).

A copy of the Trust Deed and items (i), (ii), (iv), (vi), (vii), (viii), (ix) and (x) (insofar as they

relate to ANTS and any Australian Domestic Notes) will be available for inspection during normal

business hours in Australia on any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excepted) at the specified

office of the Australian Registrar.

5. Clearing Systems

The Notes in bearer and registered form (other than Australian Domestic Notes) have been

accepted for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. The appropriate Common

Code and ISIN for each Tranche of Bearer Notes allocated by Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. In addition, the relevant Issuer may

make an application for any Notes in registered form to be accepted for trading in book-entry form

by DTC or CDS. The CUSIP and/or CINS numbers for each Tranche of Registered Notes, together

with the relevant ISIN and Common Code, will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. If the

Notes are to clear through an additional or alternative clearing system the appropriate information

will be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The address of Euroclear is 3 Boulevard du Roi Albert II, B.1210 Brussels, Belgium and the

address of Clearstream, Luxembourg is Avenue J. F. Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg.

The address of DTC is 55 Water Street, 25th Floor, New York, NY 10041-0099, United States

of America.

If accepted for admission to the Austraclear System, interests in Australian Domestic Notes may

be held through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg. In these circumstances, entitlements in

respect of holdings of interests in the Australian Domestic Notes in Euroclear would be held in the

Austraclear System by a nominee of Euroclear (currently HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia)

Limited) while entitlements in respect of holdings of interests in the Australian Domestic Notes in

Clearstream, Luxembourg would be held in the Austraclear System by a nominee of Clearstream,

Luxembourg (currently ANZ Nominees Limited).

The rights of a holder of interests in Australian Domestic Notes held through Euroclear or

Clearstream, Luxembourg are subject to the respective rules and regulations for accountholders of

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, the terms and conditions of agreements between Euroclear

and Clearstream, Luxembourg and their respective nominee and the rules and regulations of the

Austraclear System.

In addition, any transfer of interests in the Australian Domestic Notes which is held through

Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg will, to the extent such transfer will be recorded in the

Austraclear System, be subject to the Corporations Act 2001 of Australia and the requirements set

out in Condition 1.
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6. Significant or Material Change

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of each of the Issuers’,

A&L’s and the Guarantor’s respective groups since 31 March, 2010 and there has been no material
adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the Group or, the ANTS Group or, the A&L

Group since 31 December, 2009.

7. Litigation

Santander UK, along with seven other financial institutions, has been involved in legal

proceedings with the Office of Fair Trading (the ‘‘OFT’’), regarding the legal status and enforceability

of unarranged overdraft fees (the ‘‘OFT Proceedings’’). The OFT Proceedings were concerned with
whether certain of the financial institutions’ terms and conditions are subject to the fairness test in

the Unfair Terms in Consumer Contract Regulations 1999 (the ‘‘Regulations’’) and whether they are

capable of being ‘penalties’ at common law.

In April, 2008 the High Court confirmed that Santander UK’s then current terms and

conditions were not capable of being penalties at common law. This finding was not appealed by the
OFT. The High Court also found that the relevant terms were assessable for fairness under the

Regulations. On 26 February, 2009, the Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal against the High

Court’s judgment made by the relevant financial institutions and held that unarranged overdraft fees

were assessable for fairness under the Regulations.

The House of Lords gave the relevant financial institutions permission to appeal this judgment.
The hearing before the House of Lords took place on 23 to 25 June, 2009. The Supreme Court

(previously The House of Lords) gave its judgment on 25 November, 2009 and ruled that the level of

the unauthorised overdraft fees of the relevant financial institutions could not be assessed for fairness

under the Regulations (to the extent that the terms pursuant to which the fees are levied are in plain

and intelligible language), although they may be assessed for fairness on some other basis. On

22 December, 2009, the OFT announced that it would not be continuing with its investigation into

the fairness of unarranged overdraft fees.

Those companies in the Group against whom complaints in respect of unarranged overdraft fees

remained after the Supreme Court decision have rejected the vast majority of such complaints, and it

is understood that the Financial Ombudsman Service has also rejected the vast majority of complaints

that it had had on hold since the commencement of the OFT Proceedings. Group companies have

started to invite County Courts to dismiss those claims against them which have been stayed since the

commencement of the OFT Proceedings and which relate to the issues covered in the OFT
proceedings. It is presently anticipated that such Group companies will continue with this approach.

If there are any further significant developments in relation to the proceedings set out above, the

Issuers and the Guarantor will make any announcements which they are required to make under any

applicable laws and/or any rules relevant to admission to the Official List.

Other than the proceedings disclosed in the preceding paragraphs, the Santander UK Group is

not, nor has been, involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such

proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Issuers, the Guarantor or A&L is aware)

which may have or had, in the 12 months prior to the date hereof, a significant effect on the

financial position or profitability of the Santander UK Group, the Issuers, the Guarantor or A&L

and its subsidiaries.

8. Other Matters

Abbey National Treasury Services plc has received a demand from an overseas tax authority

relating to the repayment of certain tax credits and related charges. Following modifications to the

demand, its nominal amount stands at £74m at the balance sheet exchange rate (2008: £80m). At 31

December 2009, additional interest in relation to the demand could amount to £34m at the balance

sheet exchange rate (2008: £34m). Abbey National Treasury Services plc received legal advice that it
had strong grounds to challenge the validity of the demand. In September 2006, Abbey National

Treasury Services plc won its case at the first stage of the litigation process. In January 2007, the tax

authority appealed this decision. However, in December 2006, a ruling was published of a similar case

unconnected to the Group but which might affect Abbey National Treasury Services plc’s position. In

this instance, the courts ruled against the taxpayer.
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9. Auditors

The consolidated accounts of Santander UK, the Group, A&L and the ANTS Group for the

years ended 31 December, 2009 and 31 December, 2008 were audited by Deloitte LLP, Chartered
Accountants and Registered Auditors, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing UK

and Ireland and have been reported on without qualification. The auditors of Santander UK, the

Group and the ANTS Group have no material interest in Santander UK, the Group, A&L or the

ANTS Group. The consolidated balance sheet of Santander UK for the years ended 31 December,

2009, 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income, recognised income and

expense, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December, 2009 have been

audited by Deloitte LLP, independent registered public accountants, in accordance with the standards

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and have been reported on
without qualification and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the restatement of the

consolidated balance sheet and cash flow statements for the year ended 31 December, 2008 to reflect

the transfer of A&L’s shares to Santander UK.

The Trust Deed will provide that the Trustee may rely on any certificate or report of the

auditors or any other expert as sufficient evidence of the facts stated therein in accordance with the

provisions of the Trust Deed whether or not called for by or addressed to the Trustee and whether

or not any such certificate or report or engagement letter or other document entered into by the

Trustee and the auditors or any other expert in connection therewith contains a monetary or other

limit on the liability of the auditors or such other expert.

10. Australian Regulatory Controls

The Banking (Foreign Exchange) Regulations and other regulations in Australia prohibit

payments, transactions and dealings with assets having a prescribed connection with certain countries

or named individuals or entities subject to international sanctions or associated with terrorism.

11. Bearer Notes and the relevant Receipts, Coupons or Talons will bear a legend to the effect that

any U.S. person holding the same will be subject to limitations under the United States income tax

laws, including those under Sections 165(j) and 1287(a) of the United States Internal Revenue Code

of 1986, as amended.

12. Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 (the ‘‘Act’’) provides, inter alia, that persons

who are not parties to a contract governed by the laws of England and Wales may be given

enforceable rights under such contract. Unless specifically provided in the applicable Final Terms to

the contrary, this Programme expressly excludes the application of the Act to any issue of Notes
under the Programme.

13. Post Issuance Information

Save as set out in the Final Terms, the Issuers do not intend to provide any post-issuance

information in relation to any issue of Notes.
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